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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STAT EMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K of The Chefs’ Warebe, Inc. contains forward-looking statements iwithe meaning of Section 27A of
the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Se2fiénof the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, asraleé. Forward-looking statements
provide our current expectations or forecasts nfreievents and are not statements of historicél Tdnese forward-looking statements include
information about possible or assumed future evémttuding, among other things, discussion andyaisaof our future financial condition,
results of operations, our strategic plans andabljes, cost management, liquidity and abilityeéfimance our indebtedness as it matures,
anticipated capital expenditures (and access titatppequired to complete projects, amounts ohadistributions to our stockholders in the
future, if any, and other matters. Words such asi¢gpates,” “expects,” “intends,” “plans,” “belies,” “seeks,” “estimates” and variations of
these words and similar expressions are intendatktdify forward-looking statements. These statetmare not guarantees of future
performance and are subject to risks, uncertaiatiglsother factors, some of which are beyond ontrob are difficult to predict and/or could
cause actual results to differ materially from thespressed or forecasted in the forward-lookiatestents.

Forward-looking statements involve inherent undgetyaand may ultimately prove to be incorrect dséa Investors in our common stock are
cautioned not to place undue reliance on forwaoting statements. Except as otherwise may benextjby law, we undertake no obligatior
update or revise forward-looking statements teertfthanged assumptions, the occurrence of ungattid events or actual operating results.
Our actual results could differ materially from siecanticipated in these forward-looking statemasta result of various factors, including, but
not limited to, the following:

« our success depends to a significant extent uponargeeconomic conditions, including disposabl@me levels and changes in
consumer discretionary spendit

» asignificant portion of our future growth is dedent upon our ability to expand our operationstinexisting markets and to
penetrate new markets through acquisitic

« we may not be able to successfully or timely congptee pending acquisition of Del Monte Capitol M€a. and certain related
entities “Del Monte”) and such failure could adversely impact our busimesl the market price of our common stc

- if we complete the pending acquisition of Del Mgnt& may not realize the anticipated benefits efttAnsaction, which could
adversely impact our business and our operatingtse

« we may not achieve the benefits expected from oguiaitions;

. we may have difficulty managing and facilitatingr duture growth;

- conditions beyond our control could materially affthe cost and/or availability of our specialtpdoproducts or center-of-the-plate
products and/or interrupt our distribution netwc

« ourincreased distribution of center-of-the-plateducts, like meat, poultry and seafood, followmg acquisitions of Michael's Finer
Meats, LLC (“Michael’s”) and Allen Brothers, Inc'Allen Brothers”), as well as our pending acqusitiof Del Monte, involves risks
that we have not historically face

« our business is a low-margin business and ourtpraigins may be sensitive to inflationary and athary pressures;

« group purchasing organizations may become moreeaitiour industry and increase their efforts td adr customers as members of
these organization

« because our foodservice distribution operationcaneentrated in certain culinary markets, we aseaptible to economic and other
developments, including adverse weather conditionhese area:

» damage to our reputation or lack of acceptancainpecialty food products, center-of-thkate products and/or the brands we car
existing and new markets could materially and asklgrimpact our business, financial condition @utes of operations

« our customers are generally not obligated to caetipurchasing products from us;

« we have experienced losses due to our inabiliotiect accounts receivable in the past and coxiegence increases in such losses
in the future if our customers are unable to payrttiebts to us in a timely manner or at

« product liability claims could have a material acbeeeffect on our business, financial conditiomesults of operations;

« Fuel cost volatility may have a material adverdeafon our business, financial condition or resoltoperations;

« new information or attitudes regarding diet andlthear adverse opinions about the health effecthefroducts we distribute could
result in changes in consumer eating habits, wbithd have a material adverse effect on our busjfemncial condition or results
operations

» we have significant competition from a variety ofisces, and we may not be able to compete sucdgssfu

« our substantial indebtedness may limit our abtlityinvest in the ongoing needs of our business;

- our ability to raise capital in the future may baited;

« we may be unable to obtain debt or other finandimgjuding financing necessary to execute on oquaition strategy, on favorable
terms or at all




- information technology system failures or breaabfesur network security could interrupt our opevat and adversely affect our
business

« ourinvestments in information technology may natduce the benefits that we anticipate;

« we may not be able to adequately protect our extalial property, which, in turn, could harm theueabf our brands and adversely
affect our busines:

« our business operations and future developmentdmkignificantly disrupted if we lose key membafrour management team;

« our insurance policies may not provide adequatel$ef coverage against all claims, and fluctuatitsgirance requirements and costs
could negatively impact our profitability. In addm, if we fail to establish proper reserves andcathtely estimate future expenses,
costs associated with our self-insured group médigarkers’ compensation liability and auto liahjlplans may adversely affect our
business, financial condition or results of operadi

« increases in our labor costs, including as a regu#tbor shortages, the unionization of some afamsociates, the price or
unavailability of insurance and changes in govemimnegulation, could slow our growth or harm ousibess

« We are subject to significant governmental regatatind failure to comply could subject us to endoment actions, recalls or other
penalties, which could have a material adversecedfie our business, financial condition or resafteperations

. federal, state, provincial and local tax ruleshie United States and Canada may adversely impatiusiness, financial condition or
results of operation:

« an adverse outcome of an ongoing New York statasait could have a material adverse effect orbosiness, financial condition
and results of operation

« the price of our common stock may be volatile andstockholders could lose all or a part of theireistment;

« concentration of ownership among our existing etigeofficers, directors and their affiliates magpent new investors from
influencing significant corporate decisiol

» if securities analysts or industry analysts dowdgraur stock, publish negative research or remort not publish reports about our
business, our stock price and trading volume cdaltline;

« we do not intend to pay dividends for the foresée&liure and our stock may not appreciate in value

« ourissuance of preferred stock or debt securitiedd adversely affect holders of our common staui#t discourage a takeover; and

- some provisions of our charter documents and Dekaleav may have anti-takeover effects that coustairage an acquisition of us
by others, even if an acquisition would be benafith our stockholders, and may prevent attemptsunystockholders to replace or
remove our current manageme

This list of risks and uncertainties, however,idyaa summary of some of the most important facémd is not intended to be exhaustive.
Investors in our common stock should carefully egwthe risks that are set forth under the captiRisk Factors” included in Part I, Item 1A of
this Form 10-K.

Unless this Form 10-K indicates otherwise or thetert otherwise requires, the terms “The Chefs’ &dause,” “we,” “our,” “our Company,”
“the Company” or “us” as used in this Form 10-Kerefo The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc. and its subsekari

Item 1. BUSINESS

We are a premier distributor of specialty food prad in the United States and Canada. We are fdausserving the specific needs of chefs
who own and/or operate some of the leading menwedrindependent restaurants, fine dining estabkstisy country clubs, hotels, caterers,
culinary schools, bakeries, patisseries, chocoigteruise lines, casinos and specialty food stioréise United States and Canada. We believe
that we have a distinct competitive advantage imisg these customers as a result of our extersgiertion of distinctive and hard-to-find
specialty and center-of-the-plate food products,paduct knowledge and our customer service.

We define specialty food products as gourmet fasingredients that are of the highest grade jtguai style as measured by their
uniqueness, exatic origin or particular processireghod. Our product portfolio includes over 31,80ck-keeping units (“SKUs”) from more
than 1,600 different suppliers and is comprisethprily of imported and domestic specialty food prei, such as artisan charcuterie, special
cheeses, unique oils and vinegars, truffles, cagtarcolate and pastry products. We also offendensive line of center-of-the-plate products,
including custom cut beef, seafood and hormonegeétry, as well as broadline food products, sasttooking oils, butter, eggs, milk and
flour. When marketing our products to our customeses focus our efforts on chefs, and we believé, thyaoffering a wide selection of both
distinctive and hard-to-find products, togetherhadenter-of-the-plate proteins and staple broadboe products, we are able to differentiate
ourselves from larger, traditional broadline foadsee distributors, while simultaneously enabling customers to utilize us as their primary
foodservice distributor. Additionally, as a resofitour acquisition of Allen Brothers in Decembel20we market certain of our center-of-the-
plate products directly to consumers through a anadl e-commerce platform.




Since the formation of our predecessor in 1985haxe expanded our distribution network, producta@n and customer base both
organically and through acquisitions. From Deceni#r2010 to December 26, 2014, our net revenueased from approximately $330
million to approximately $837 million. During theperiods and in prior years, our sales to both ae@vexisting customers have increased as
result of an increase in the breadth and deptluopmduct portfolio, our commitment to customenvee, the efforts of our experienced and
sophisticated sales professionals, the increasedfutechnology in the operations and managemeoaiobusiness and our ongoing
consolidation of the fragmented specialty foodsmrdistribution industry. Since April 2012, we ha@npleted six acquisitions which have
increased our penetration in existing markets, eapd our footprint into new markets and/or enharaedproduct capabilities. The up-front
purchase prices for these six acquisitions ranged $2.3 million to $53.5 million, resulting in aggate up-front cash consideration of more
than $153.6 million, which we funded with borrowingnder our existing senior secured credit faesitia portion of which we repaid with
proceeds from the issuance of $100.0 million ofaresecured notes in April 2013, and the procedasipcommon stock offering completec
September 2013.

Additionally, on January 11, 2015, we entered mtefinitive agreement to acquire substantiallyohthe assets and certain equity interests o
Del Monte for approximately $191.2 million (subjeéctcustomary working capital adjustments as welirsal audited results of the acquired
entities), consisting of (i) $127.5 million in casthich will be funded from cash on hand and add#l borrowings under our existing credit
arrangements, (ii) 1.2 million shares of our commtutk (valued at $22.00 per share), and (iii) $38illion in convertible subordinated notes
with a six-year maturity bearing interest at 2.5%hva conversion price of $29.70 per share. In talti we have agreed to pay additional
contingent consideration which is expected to tapgroximately $25.5 million (subject to certaimda@ions and upon the successful
achievement of adjusted EBITDA targets over theysirs following the closing of the acquisitionn Gebruary 24, 2015, we received notice
that we had been granted early termination of thitimg period applicable to our proposed acquisitd Del Monte under federal anti-trust
regulations. The transaction is subject to satigfa®f customary closing conditions and is expedteclose near the end of the first quarter of
2015 or early in the second quarter of 2015. Dehtdsupplies high quality, USDA inspected beefkptamb, veal, poultry and seafood
products to Northern California. In addition, Debhte’s staff of highly-skilled butchers is ablepimvide fresh, portion-controlled products to
satisfy all of their customers’ needs on a fresit;to-order basis.

Excluding our direct-to-consumer business, we ellyeserve more than 22,600 customer locationsiimf@urteen primary geographic markets
across the United States and Canada, including YW, Washington, D.C., Los Angeles, San Francises, Vegas, Miami, Portland, Seattle,
Columbus, Cincinnati, Chicago, Vancouver, Edmorénd Toronto. By leveraging an experienced and stiphted sales force of
approximately 335 sales and customer service siofieals, we maintain collaborative relationshipthwtihousands of chefs while also acting

a critical marketing arm and route-tearket for many of our suppliers. We operate 2fritistion centers and provide service six days akng
many of our service areas, utilizing our fleet efidery trucks to fill our customers’ orders.

Competitive Strengths

We believe that, during our over 30-year historg,lvave achieved, developed and/or refined thevialip strengths which provide us with a
distinct competitive position in the foodservicstdbution industry and also the opportunity toiagh superior margins relative to most large
broadline foodservice distributors:

Leading Distributor of Specialty Food Products imiW of the Key Culinary MarkeiBased on our management’s industry knowledge and
experience, we believe we are the largest distribeit specialty food products, as measured by alessin the New York, Washington, D.C.,
San Francisco and Los Angeles metropolitan markégsbelieve these markets, along with a numbethredranarkets we serve, including Las
Vegas, Miami, Philadelphia, Boston, Napa ValleyrtRad, Seattle, Chicago, Vancouver and Toronteate and set the culinary trends for the
rest of the United States and Canada and provigéths/aluable insight into the latest culinary anénu practices. Furthermore, we believe
our established relationships with many of thedbefs, culinary schools and dining establishmanthése key culinary markets have bene
us when we entered into new markets where we leetleat chefs at our potential customers were géndrrsowledgeable of our brand and
commitment to quality and excellence from their ekgnce working in other markets which we servéhoough their personal relationships
throughout the culinary industry.

Expansive Product OfferinWe offer an extensive portfolio of high-quality sgty food products, ranging from basic ingredgeand staples,
such as milk and flour, to custom cut steaks aafbsel and pastries, as well as delicacies andalpegigredients sourced from North
America, Europe, Asia and South America, which wkelve helps our customers distinguish their mémms. We carry more than 31,800
SKUs and we constantly evaluate our portfolio aricbduce new products to address regional trendpeeferences and ensure that we are ol
the leading edge of broader culinary trends. Thinomgr importing division, we provide our customesigh access to a portfolio of exclusive
items, including regional olive oils, truffles anbarcuterie from Italy, Spain, France and other iv@ednean countries. In addition, and as
evidence of our commitment to aid our customers@ating unique and innovative menu items, we @atultilize our sourcing relationships
and industry insights to procure additional produbtat we do not regularly carry but that our costos specifically request. We believe that
breadth and depth of our product portfolio facié&gour customers’ ability to distinguish and ertdgatheir menu offerings and differentiates us
from larger traditional broadline foodservice distitors. For example, we provide a selection ofertban 160 different varieties of olive oil,
while large broadline foodservice distributors oofyry, on average, 5-10 types of olive oil.




Critical Route-to-Market for Specialty Food SuppdieNe currently distribute products from more than0D,@lifferent suppliers, with no single
supplier currently representing more than 5% oftotal purchases. Our suppliers are located throuigorth America, Europe, Asia and
South America and include numerous small, familyred entities and artisanal food producers. Wetladatrgest customer for many of our
suppliers. As a result, our experienced and sdphtet sales professionals, customer relationsmpsdistribution platform are important to
these suppliers’ route-to-market, which enabletwfer a wide range of products on an exclusiasi

Expanding Base of Premier Customer RelationslOur breadth and depth of product offerings couplet our highly regarded customer
service has allowed us to develop and retain d mystomer base that is comprised of chefs who ormwork at more than 22,600 of the
nation’s leading menu-driven independent restasrdime dining establishments, country clubs, tsytehterers, culinary schools, bakeries,
patisseries, chocolatiers, cruise lines, casindssgrcialty food stores. Our focus on product sielecproduct knowledge and customer service
has rewarded us with a number of long-term custariationships, which often begin when chefs atmduced to us while attending the
nation’s leading culinary schools, including TheliGary Institute of America and The French Culindmgtitute, both of which have been
customers of ours for more than eight years. Basenur management’s industry experience and oatioeships and dealings with our
customers, we believe we are the primary distribaf@pecialty food products to the majority of @ustomers that are not part of our direct-to
consumer center-of-the-plate business.

Collaborative Professional and Educational Relaships with our Customer®/e employ a sophisticated and experienced sales fur
approximately 335ales and customer service professionals, a signifnumber of whom have formal culinary trainidggrees in the culina
arts or prior experience working in the culinargustry. Equipped with advanced culinary and induktrowledge, our sales professionals seel
to establish a rapport with our customers’ chedghat they can more fully understand and antieipla¢ needs of and offer cost-effective food
product solutions to the chefs who own or opeifaésé businesses. We believe that the specializmalédge base of our sales professionals
enables us to take a more collaborative and edudtapproach to selling our gourmet foods andedigmts and to further differentiate
ourselves from our traditional broadline compettor

Expertise in Logistics and DistributioWe have built a first-class, scalable inventory agggment and logistics platform that enables us to
efficiently fill our customers’ orders and to prafbly meet our customers’ needs for varying drapssihigh service levels and timely delivery.
Our average distribution service level, or the patage of in-stock items ordered by customersatenot part of our direct-to-consumer
center-of-the-plate business that were deliverethbyequested date, was in excess of 97% in 20ié¢h we believe is among the highest
rates in the foodservice distribution industry. M\2tL distribution centers located throughout thé&édhStates and Canada, we are able to
leverage our geographic footprint and reduce dowumd freight costs. This scale enables us to miaifat portfolio of more than 31,800 SKUs,
and through the operation of our sophisticatedrindgion technology, inventory management and laistystems, we believe we provide our
customers with some of the highest levels of custaservice and responsiveness in our industry.

Experienced and Proven Management TeOur senior management team has demonstrated titg tdhgrow the business through various
economic environments. With collective experientmore than 90 years at The Chefs’ Warehouserédgressor and other foodservice
distribution companies, our founders and senioragament are experienced operators and are passabait our future. Our senior
management team is comprised of our founders, Hawexperienced professionals with expertisévénfoodservice distribution industry and
in a wide range of functional areas, including fioa and accounting, sales and marketing, operaiigiosmation technology, legal and human
resources.

Our Growth Strategies

We believe substantial organic growth opportunigigist in our current markets through increasecefration of our existing customers and the
addition of new customers, and we have identified markets that we believe also present opporamitir future expansion. Key elements of
our growth strategy include the following:

Increase Penetration with Existing CustomiVe intend to sell more products to our existing@oeers by increasing the breadth and depth o
our product selection and increasing the efficieoicgur sales professionals, while at the same tiomtinuing to provide excellent customer
service. We are a data-driven and goal-orientedrozgtion, and our management and sales professiareahighly focused on our weekly
sales and gross profit contribution from each afrmn-direct-to-consumer customers and increasiagitimber of unique products we
distribute to such customers. We believe our adiprisactivity since our initial public offering fiects this focus, as we have sought to
complement our existing product offerings and egkasur product capabilities through our Octoberf28dquisition of Euro Gourmet Inc.
(“Euro Gourmet”), a wholesale specialty distribubdimported and domestic products, our Decembé&B2quisition of Allen Brothers, a
leading processor and distributor of premium guatieats, our May 2013 acquisition of Qzina Spegigtiods North America Inc. (“Qzina"
leading supplier of gourmet chocolate, dessertpasdry products, and our August 2012 acquisitiollizhael’s, a specialty protein distributor
which specializes in custom cut beef, seafood dher@enter-of-the-plate products. Additionally, January 11, 2015, we entered into a
definitive agreement to acquire substantially athe assets and certain equity interests of Dehteloa supplier of high quality, USDA
inspected beef, pork, lamb, veal, poultry and sedfaroducts, and, subject to the satisfaction sfamary closing conditions, we expect to
close the Del Monte transaction near the end ofiteequarter of 2015.




Expand our Customer Base Within our Existing MakAs of December 26, 2014, we served more than 2z,68tbmer locations, excluding
our direct-to-consumer business, in the UnitedeStahd Canada. We plan to expand our market gh#ne fragmented specialty food
distribution industry by cultivating new custometationships within our existing markets througé tontinued penetration of menu-driven
independent restaurants, fine dining establishmentmtry clubs, hotels, caterers, culinary schdm&eries, patisseries, chocolatiers, cruise
lines, casinos and specialty food stores. We beles have the opportunity to continue to gain miaskare in our existing markets by offering
an extensive selection of specialty food produtsayell as center-of-the-plate proteins and trawléi broadline staple food products through
our unique, collaborative and educational salexr&sffand efficient, scalable distribution solution.

Improve our Operating Margin/As we continue to grow, we believe that the investta we are making in our inventory management and
logistics platform, along with improved efficiensiéhat we are working to achieve in our generaladministrative functions, should yield b
improved customer service and profitability. Utiiig our fleet of delivery trucks, we usually filistomer orders within 12-24 hours of order
placement. We intend to continue to offer our comts this high level of customer service, while mteining our focus on realizing efficienc
and economies of scale in purchasing, warehoudietgjbution and general and administrative funasievhich, when combined with
incremental fixed-cost leverage, we believe willddo continued improvements in our operating nmaogier time.

Pursue Selective AcquisitiorThroughout our over 30-year history, we have swsfodly identified, consummated and integrated npugti
strategic acquisitions, which were designed togase our penetration in existing markets, expandomtprint into new markets and/or
enhance our product capabilities. We believe thatr time, we will be able to improve the operasi@amd overall profitability of each acquired
company by leveraging our sourcing relationshipgrtivide an expanded product portfolio, implementinr tested sales force training
techniques and metrics and installing improved Wwanse management and information systems. We kelievhave the opportunity to
capitalize on our existing infrastructure and exiperby continuing to selectively pursue opporttiniacquisitions in order to expand the
breadth of our distribution network, increase operating efficiency and add additional products eagiabilities. Since our initial public
offering (“IPO”), we have completed seven acquisi§ which have increased our penetration in exjstiarkets, expanded our footprint into
new markets and enhanced our product capabilitiesare currently in the process of implementingiategration team” that is dedicated to
onboarding new acquisitions as quickly and effitieas possible. We expect the integration teafmetp streamline the acquisition process
anticipate that it will enable us to achieve expddienefits and synergies more quickly. Havingaanteedicated to integration will help us
make sure the people, processes and products wibradigh acquisitions are consistent with the oéstur business and will allow our
management team to focus its attention on our dajay operations.

Our Markets and the Customers that We Serve

Excluding our direct-t@onsumer business, we distribute our specialty fioducts to over 22,600 distinct customer locatifsom distributiol
centers located in our primary markets, which idelilNew York, Washington, D.C., San Francisco, Lagdles, Las Vegas, Miami, Portland,
Seattle, Columbus, Cincinnati, Chicago, Vancoukemonton and Toronto. We also serve customersiimaber of other markets, including
Philadelphia, Boston and Napa Valley. We beliea thany of these markets set the culinary trendghforest of the United States and Cai
and provide us with valuable insight into the latdinary and menu trends. We have establishddlmmlative professional and educational
relationships with some of the United States’ aati&ia’s most demanding chefs, which allows us ticipate the needs of, and offer cost-
effective food product solutions to, our customehsle allowing our customers to locate ingrediahit will enable them to create unique and
differentiated menu items. Our target customerkide menu-driven independent restaurants, finendiestablishments, country clubs, hotels,
caterers, culinary schools, bakeries, patissectes;olatiers, cruise lines, casinos and specialtg Stores. We have no meaningful customer
concentration as our top ten customers accountddds than 12% of total net sales for our 201eafigear.

Additionally, as a result of our acquisition of &l Brothers in December 2013, we have also begomat&et certain of our center-of-the-plate
proteins directly to consumers through a mail alcdmmerce platform.

Set forth below is a breakdown of the primary gaphic markets we serve and the year we enteredneaxtet:




MARKET NAME GEOGRAPHIES SERVED YEAR ENTERED

New York Boston to Atlantic City 1985
Washington, D.C Philadelphia to Richmon 1999
Los Angeles Santa Barbara to San Die 2005
San Francisc Napa Valley to Monterey Be 2005
Las Vegas Las Vegas 2005
Miami Miami 2010
Portland Bend, OR to Seattle, W 2011
Columbus Midwest 2012
Cincinnati Dayton, OH to Lexington, K 2013
Chicago Chicago 2013
Vancouvel Vancouver and Western Cang 2013
Edmonton Edmonton and Calgal 2013
Toronto Toronto 2013
Seattle Seattle 2013

We extend credit to virtually all of our non-dirg¢ckconsumer customers on varying terms. Most ofoostomers have payment terms from 2C
60 days. We complete a formal credit assessmealt néw non-direct-to-consumer customers, and gedi€and Collections Department
regularly evaluates credit terms for each suchotnst based upon several factors, including oragpuency, average order size, the types of
products purchased and the length of the relatipngtie believe that we are skilled at managingaustr credit.

Our Specialty Food Products

We strive to be the primary food source solutiondor customers, and, to this end, we offer outarusrs a comprehensive product portfolio
that ranges from basic ingredients and staple$, asienilk and flour, to custom-cut steaks and sehénd pastries, as well as delicacies and
specialty ingredients sourced from North Americardpe, Asia and South America. We carry more tHBB@ SKUs and we are fully
committed to utilizing our sourcing relationshipsdandustry insights to procure products that wendbregularly carry but that our customers
specifically request as they seek to create ungaueinnovative menu items.

The sales mix for the principal product categofigeach of the 2014, 2013 and 2012 fiscal yeass i®llows (dollars in thousands):

December 26, 201 December 27, 201 December 28, 201

Center of Plat: $311,33¢ 37% $214,00: 32% $123,04° 26%
Dry Goods 169,93! 20% 144,59: 22% 119,75! 25%
Pastries and other Bakery Prodt 140,86! 17% 118,87t 18% 64,62 14%
Cheese: 83,06¢ 10%  76,40( 11% 69,22: 14%
Dairy Products 58,14¢ 7%  47,54f 7% 42,98 9%
Oils and Vinegar: 56,85¢ 7%  55,73¢ 8% 49,86 10%
Kitchen Supplies 16,41¢ 2% 16,39: 2% 10,80( 2%
Total $836,62! 10C% $673,54! 10C% $480,29: 10(%

We continuously evaluate potential additions to praduct portfolio based on both existing and apéted trends in the culinary industry. Our
buyers have numerous contacts with suppliers thvougNorth America, Europe, Asia and South Ameaod are always looking for new and
interesting products that will aid our customersheey seek to keep up with the latest developmierttse culinary industry. Our ability to
successfully distribute a significant portion oé ttotal production of smaller, regional and artedaspecialty food producers allows us the
opportunity to be these producers’ primary router@rket in our markets without, in most cases, myius to make contractual commitme
regarding guaranteed volume. We are also abldlipeubur size and successful track record of tisting products sourced from outside the
United States and Canada to resist efforts fromynediour foreign suppliers to push importing casfisonto us.

We seek to differentiate ourselves from our contpetiby offering a more extensive depth and breaflfpecialty products. We carry a wide
range of highguality specialty food products, including artisdrarcuterie, specialty cheeses, unique oils anebairs, truffles, caviar, chocol
and pastry products across each of our marketsydaiso offer a number of items in each of oupeetive markets that are tailored to meet
the unique preferences of the individual chefdat tarket. We regularly rotate our inventory tertify and bring to market new products tha
will continue to support our value proposition.




Within our product offerings, we carry numerous goet brands, and at the same time, we seek to nmxpnoduct contribution through the
sale of our proprietary brands, which we offer imumber of staple products, including bulk olivk talian grating cheeses and butter. We

believe that our ability to offer simultaneouslghiquality specialty foods and ingredients, cewnfethe-plate products and more traditional

broadline staple food products provides our custeméth foodservice distribution solutions that afficient and cost effective.

Our Sophisticated and Experienced Sales Professidsa

We employ a sophisticated and experienced sales fifrapproximately 335 sales and customer seprigfessionals focused on meeting our
customers’ goals and objectives, while concurreadlycating them regarding our latest products aodder culinary trends. To ensure a high
level of customer service, we seek to maintairtia £ approximately one sales professional forg of our customers, excluding our
direct-to-consumer customers. Our sales forcengposed of the following three distinct groups which all focused on providing outstanding
service to our customers:

« Outside Sales Associatdgesponsible for identifying sales opportunitiegjeating customers and acting as our public reptatees.
« Inside Sales AssociateResponsible for processing customer orders andgirmg for delivery and payment.

« Product SpecialistsResponsible for maintaining specialized productkiedge and educating our outside sales associatesustomers
regarding new products and general developmergsviaral specific categories, including proteinf@ed, pastry and chees

A significant number of our sales professionalsenformal culinary training, degrees in the culinargs and/or prior experience working in the
culinary industry. We strive to harness this culjnenowledge and passion for food and to conculygambmote an entrepreneurial working
environment. Utilizing advanced pricing optimizatisoftware available to them on a real-time basis sales professionals are afforded
flexibility to determine the pricing of individugiems for our customers within a range of priciqgions. The majority of our outside sales
professionals are compensated on a commission basigheir performance is measured primarily ugheir gross profit dollars obtained. We
have historically experienced low turnover amongsmaasoned sales professionals.

Because we are highly focused on collaborating withcustomers and educating them regarding oestlgroducts and broader culinary
trends, we view the ongoing education and traimhgur sales force as crucial to our continued ssscTo ensure that our sales professionals
remain on the forefront of new culinary products &mends, we regularly hold “vendor shows” at oistribution centers, where our sales force
is able to interact with vendors and learn moreuélite vendors’ latest product offerings and thégsmance of these products relative to
competitive offerings.

Our Suppliers

We are committed to providing our customers withuanvaled portfolio of specialty food products,vasll as a comprehensive broadline
product offering and center-of-the-plate produ€ts fulfill this commitment, we maintain strong seoing relationships with numerous
producers of high-quality artisan and regional gdcfood products, as well as a wide range oBldiime product suppliers and protein
vendors. Our importing arm also provides us witbeds to exclusive items such as regional olive wiléfles and charcuterie sourced from
Italy, Spain, France and other Mediterranean caasitr

We constantly seek out and evaluate new produdaigdier to satisfy our customers’ desire to be afftinefront of the latest culinary and menu
trends, and, as evidence of our commitment to aiccastomers in creating unique and innovative nimas, we regularly utilize our sourci
relationships and industry insights to procure pgireducts that we do not regularly carry but that customers specifically request.

We currently distribute products from more thar0OD,@lifferent suppliers and no single supplier repréed more than 5% of our total purch
for the fiscal year ended December 26, 2014. Wiy caultiple products and utilize multiple suppliénsall of our product categories, thereby
eliminating our dependence upon any single supphidditionally, we seek to limit commodity risk lilizing sophisticated forecasting and
inventory management systems to minimize the irorgrtarrying time of commodity-oriented productsldry leveraging the specialized
product knowledge of our product specialists to aggnpurchasing and inventory levels when apprapriat

Our Operations and Distribution Centers

Operating out of 21 distribution centers of varysige and providing service six days a week in mamegas, we utilize our fleet of delivery
trucks to fill customer orders, usually within 12-Bours of order placement. Our average distribusiervice level, or the percentage oftoek
items ordered by customers that were deliveredheyequested date, was in excess of 97% as of fisaaended December 26, 2014, which
our management believes is among the highest ifotddservice distribution industry. To achieve #hbigh service levels, we have invested
significantly in sophisticated warehousing, invemtoontrol and distribution systems, as descrilmeghore detail below.




We have begun to implement pick-to-voice technolioggach of our distribution facilities, which wéhable our warehouse employees to fill
orders with greater speed and accuracy.

Products are delivered to our distribution cenpensarily by contract carriers, the suppliers thetmes and our fleet of trucks. We lease our
trucks from national leasing companies and regifimak that offer competitive services. Customeaterss are assembled in our distribution
centers and then sorted, placed on pallets an@dbanto trucks and trailers in delivery sequende ajority of our trucks and delivery
trailers have multiple, temperature-controlled caniments that ensure all product is delivered ¢octistomer at its optimal temperature.

We employ advanced routing and logistics plannoignsare, which maximizes the number of daily delige that each of our trucks can make,
while also enabling us to typically make deliven@thin each customer’s preferred 2-3 hour timedeiw. For our direct-t@onsumer busines
we ship through nationally recognized couriers. 88® use GPS and vehicle monitoring technologgguilarly evaluate the condition of our
delivery trucks and monitor the performance of diivers, by tracking their progress relative taitlielivery schedule and providing
information regarding hard braking, idling and fsstrts. Our use of this technology allows us tode@t proactive fleet maintenance, provide
timely customer service and improve our risk managye.

Our Technology Systems

We maintain an advanced information technologyfptat that enables us to manage our operations @orasvarious markets, as we seek to
drive our growth and profitability and ensure ttie needs of our customers are met in an accumndtefficient manner. We have made
significant investments in distribution, salespimhation and warehouse management systems oviastrgeven years, and are in the proce
implementing a fully-integrated ERP system. Weadse in the process of implementing a fully intégdawarehouse management system at
some of our recently acquired distribution fae#iti Our systems improvements include the implertientar enhancement of a web-based
purchasing and advanced planning system that prevadvanced forecasting and planning tools, vehicieitoring and route optimization
software and pick-to-voice and directed put-awasteaps. Over the last five years, we have also impfged an internally developed, web-
based reporting tool which provides real-time sgieising and profitability analysis for our managent and sales professionals. These
improvements have been made in an effort to impoaveefficiency, as we continue to grow our busind¥e believe that our current systems
are scalable and can be leveraged to support tunefgrowth.

Intellectual Property

Except for the Spoleto, Bel Aria, Grand Reservey#ista, Argonaut, Praml, Black Falls, Michael'9yd€oa, Crescendo, Matisse, Qzina, Allen
Brothers, The Great Steakhouse Steaks and The'GHafehouse trademarks, we do not own or haveigi to use any patent, trademark,
trade name, license, franchise or concessionptgedf which would have a material adverse effaaar business, financial condition or
results of operations.

Competition

The foodservice distribution industry is highly costitive. We compete with numerous smaller distobsion a local level, as well as with a
limited number of national broadline foodservicstdbutors. Certain of these distributors have tgnefinancial and other resources than we dc
Bidding for contracts or arrangements with custamparticularly larger hotels and caterers, is liglhmpetitive and distributors may market
their services to a particular customer over a lpegod of time before they are invited to bid. Wédieve that most purchasing decisions in the
foodservice distribution industry are based up@nghality and price of the product distributed émel distributor’s ability to completely and
accurately fill orders and deliver them in a timedgnner.

Employees
As of December 26, 2014, we had approximately 1f@itime employees, 121 of whom currently operate uraleollective bargainir
agreement. This collective bargaining agreemenirexpn August 2017. Approximately 159, or 12.4%poar employees (including the 1

who operate under a collective bargaining agreenseatrepresented by unions. We offer attractiveagmnsation and benefit packages, an
believe our relationship with our employees issfatitory.
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Regulation

As a distributor of specialty food products and hea seafood in the United States and Canadarev&u@ject to regulation by numerous
international, federal, state, provincial and loegjulatory agencies. For example, at the U.Srétdievel, we are subject to the Federal Food,
Drug and Cosmetic Act, the Bioterrorism Act andulagjons promulgated by the U.S. Food and Drug Adsiriation (“FDA”"). The FDA
regulates manufacturing and holding requirement$ofads, specifies the standards of identity fotaia foods and prescribes the format and
content of certain information required to appeafand product labels, among other responsibilities certain product lines, we are also
subject to the Federal Meat Inspection Act, theltRo®roducts Inspection Act, the Perishable Adtio@al Commodities Act, the Country of
Origin Labeling Act and regulations promulgatedréumder by the U.S. Department of Agriculture (“USR The USDA imposes standards
for product quality and sanitation, including thepection and labeling of meat and poultry prodaaots the grading and commercial accept
of produce shipments from vendors. In January 2Pitdsident Obama signed into law the FDA Food $aftdernization Act, which greatly
expands the FDA's authority over food safety, inahg giving the FDA power to order the recall okafe foods, increase inspections at food
processing facilities, issue regulations regardirggsanitary transportation of food, enhance tragkind tracing requirements and order the
detention of food that it has “reason to belieweadulterated or misbranded, among other provisibms products we distribute in Canada are
also subject to regulation and inspection by He@khada and the Canadian Food Inspection Agenays@pliers are also subject to similar
regulatory requirements and oversight. The faitareomply with applicable regulatory requiremerasid result in civil or criminal fines or
penalties, product recalls, closure of facilitieoperations, the loss or revocation of existingiises, permits or approvals or the failure to
obtain additional licenses, permits or approvalsaw jurisdictions where we intend to do business.

We are also subject to state and local regulatioough such measures as the licensing of ourtiasilienforcement by state and local health
agencies of state and local standards for our ptedind facilities and regulation of our trade ficas in connection with the sale of products.
Our facilities are generally inspected at leastuatiy by federal and/or state authorities. Thesdifees are also subject to inspections and
regulations issued pursuant to the Occupationa@t$aind Health Act by the U.S. Department of Laldrich require us to comply with certe
manufacturing, health and safety standards to groie employees from accidents and to establighidacommunication programs to transmi
information about the hazards of certain chemipadsent in certain products that we distribute. Camadian warehouse, distribution faciliti
repackaging activities and other operations alsasabject to regulation and inspection by the CamaBood Inspection Agency and provincial
health authorities.

Our trucking operations are regulated by the Serferansportation Board, the Federal Highway Adntiat®n, Transport Canada and
Canadian provincial transportation authoritiesadigition, interstate motor carrier operations atgexct to safety requirements prescribed by
U.S. Department of Transportation and other relefederal and state agencies. Such matters as tnaighdimension of equipment are also
subject to federal and state regulations. We belibat we are in compliance with applicable reguiatequirements relating to our motor
carrier operations. Our failure to comply with dggplicable motor carrier regulations could resulsubstantial fines or revocation of our
operating permits.

Our operations are subject to a broad range ofdéédsate, provincial and local environmental teahd safety laws and regulations, including
those governing discharges to air, soil and waterhandling and disposal of hazardous substameketha investigation and remediation of
contamination resulting from releases of petrolguoducts and other hazardous substances.

We believe that we are in material compliance withinternational, federal, state, provincial anddl regulations applicable to our operations,
and management is unaware of any related issuesithahave a material adverse effect upon our kssirfinancial condition or results of
operations.

Litigation and Insurance

We may be subject to lawsuits, claims and assedsrirethe normal course of business. Our managedusd not believe that there are any
suits, claims or unasserted claims or assessmentirg which would have a material adverse effaabur operations or financial condition.

We maintain comprehensive insurance packages esibect to our facilities, equipment, product lidildirectors and officers, workers’
compensation and employee matters in amounts whatagement believes to be prudent and customalnyrviite foodservice distribution
industry.

Seasonality

Excluding our direct-to-consumer business, we gdlyedo not experience any material seasonalitywéler, our sales and operating results
may vary from quarter to quarter due to factordsag changes in our operating expenses, managesnadility to execute our operating and
growth strategies, personnel changes, demand fgeroducts, supply shortages, weather patterngandral economic conditions.

Our direct-to-consumer business is subject to sedglictuations, with direct-to-consumer centeittod-plate protein sales typically higher
during the holiday season in our fourth quartecpadingly, a disproportionate amount of operatiagtcflows from this portion of our business
is generated in the fourth quarter. Despite a Bt portion of these sales occurring in the fowuarter, there are operating expenses,
principally advertising and promotional expenshksytighout the year.
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Inflation

Our profitability is dependent, among other things, our ability to anticipate and react to changethe costs of key operating resour
including food and other raw materials, labor, ggeaind other supplies and services. Substantisdé@ses in costs and expenses could in
our operating results to the extent that such asee cannot be passed along to our customersniptaet of inflation on food, labor, energy
occupancy costs can significantly affect the padiility of our operations.

Available Information

Our principal executive office is located at 10GEaidge Road, Ridgefield, Connecticut 06877, amctelephone number is (203) 894-1345.
Our annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reportd=orm 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and mleadments to those reports will be
made available free of charge through the InvaéR@ations section of our website (http://www.chedsghouse.com) as soon as practicable
after such material is electronically filed with, farnished to, the Securities and Exchange Conianig8§SEC”). Material contained on our
website is not incorporated by reference into tport.

We have also adopted a Code of Business Condudtthics (“Code of Ethics”) that applies to all afremployees, including our principal
executive officer, principal financial officer, pgipal accounting officer and controller. Our Cadé=thics is publicly available on the Investor
Relations section of our website (http://www.cheds@house.com) and is available free of charge lityngito The ChefsWarehouse, Inc., 1(
East Ridge Road, Ridgefield, Connecticut 0687 7n:Ativestor Relations. If we make any substantiverdments to the Code of Ethics or
grant any waiver, including any implicit waiverpfm a provision of the Code of Ethics to our primtipxecutive officer, principal financial
officer, principal accounting officer or controller persons performing similar functions, we imtén make any legally required disclosures
regarding such amendments or waivers on the Inv&&lations section of our website (http://www.dvedrehouse.com).

Please note that our website address is providad asactive textual reference only.

The public may also read and copy any materials W file with the SEC at the SE€C'Public Reference Room at 100 F Street,
Washington, D.C. 20549. The public may obtain infation on the operation of the Public ReferencerRby calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-
0330. The SEC also maintains an Internet websaé ¢bntains reports, proxy and information statesiemd other information regard
issuers, including us, that file electronically wwthe SEC located at http://www.sec.gov.

Executive Officers

NAME & POSITION AGE BUSINESS EXPERIENCE
Christopher Pappas 55 Christopher Pappais our founder and has served as our chief exexofiicer since 1985
President, Chief Executive Officer and and has been a director on our board and our lexidnan since our IPO, and he also
Chairman of the Board of Directors served as a director and the chairman of the bafaodr predecessor company, Chefs’

Warehouse Holdings, LLC. He has been our presisiane April 11, 2009 and before that
was our president from our formation to Januar®0D7. Prior to founding our company, Mr.
C. Pappas played basketball professionally in Eeifop several years following his
graduation from Adelphi University in 1981 with a&helor of Arts degree in Business
Administration. Mr. C. Pappas currently overseésfabur business activities, with a focus
on product procurement, sales, marketing, strategglopment, business development and

operations
John Pappas 51 John Pappais a founder of our company and currently servesuavice chairman, a
Vice Chairman and Director position he has held since March 1, 2011. Fromfaumding in 1985 to March 1, 2011, he

served as our chief operating officer. Mr. J. Pappas been a director on our board since ot
IPO, and he also served as a director on the lafardr predecessor company, Chefs’
Warehouse Holdings, LLC. He has over 30 years péggnce in logistics, facility
management and global procurement and overseawtwork of distribution centers
nationwide. Mr. J. Pappas is also active in theettgpment of our corporate strate

John Austin 53 John Austiris our chief financial officer and assistant cogiersecretary, positions he has
Chief Financial Officer & Assistant held since July 1, 2012. Prior to joining our compae was a founder and chief financial
Corporate Secretary officer of The Hilb Group, LLC, a regional mid-matkinsurance brokerage firm formed in

2009 which focused primarily on property and caguakurance and employee benefits
services. Prior to joining The Hilb Group in 2008;. Austin was employed by Performance
Food Group Company (“PFG”), a Richmond, Virginiased publicly-traded foodservice
distributor, from 1995 to 2009. Mr. Austin servead last six years at PFG as that company’s
chief financial officer. Prior to joining PFG, MAustin spent four years as the assistant
controller for General Medical Corporation, a Riaimd, Virginia-based distributor of
medical supplies. He also spent the first six yehtss career in public accounting, primarily
with the Richmond, Virginia office of Deloitte & Trrhe.
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Frank O’ Dowd
Chief Information Officer

Patricia Lecouras
Chief Human Resources Officer

Alexandros Aldous
General Counsel & Corporate Secretary

57

59

34

Frank CDowd is our chief information officer, a position he Hasld since February 15,
2007. Mr. O'Dowd has extensive experience manamifigmation technology in rapidly
growing organizations. Prior to joining our compahg was the chief information officer at
GAF Materials Corporation, a North American roofimgnufacturer, from June 1997 to A
2006, where he guided the company’s IT functiothasorganization grew from a regional
supplier to a large multinational corporation. I@'Dowd’s prior professional experience
also includes experiences at Reed Elsevier, NewsWMegazine and Wyeth Pharmaceutic
Mr. O'Dowd holds a Bachelor of Arts degree from Teiversity of Dayton and a Master of
Arts degree from Stony Brook Universi

Patricia Lecourasis our chief human resources officer, a positios Ishs held since March
2007. Ms. Lecouras joined our company from GE Gagbmmercial Finance where she
vice president, human resources from 2001 to 2B€i@r to her time with GE Capital
Commercial Finance, Ms. Lecouras was with Nine Vsies (f/k/a Fischer Camuto
Corporation) and Xerox. Ms. Lecouras’s professiaglerience is multidisciplinary and
includes prior experience working in finance andrglated functions. She also has earned ¢
six sigma master black belt certification. Ms. Leas holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in
Psychology and Social Work from Skidmore Colle

Alexandros Aldouis our general counsel, a position he has hel&gwining us in March
2011, and our corporate secretary, a position Bénbll since July 27, 2011. Prior to joining
our company, he served as a legal consultant idono Barclays Capital, the investment
banking division of Barclays Bank PLC, from NovemB809 to December 2010.

Mr. Aldous also served as an attorney with Watsamley & Williams from August 2008 to
September 2009, where he specialized in mergeraemqasitions and capital markets, ant
an attorney with Shearman & Sterling LLP from O&oB005 to August 2008, where he
specialized in mergers and acquisitions. Mr. Aldaceived a Bachelor of Arts degree in
Classics and Government from Colby College, a Ioistor and M.A. from American
University and an LL.M. from the London School afdiomics and Political Science.

Mr. Aldous is licensed to practice law in the Stat&New York, Washington, D.C. and
England and Wales and is authorized as house danrtbe State of Connectict
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Item 1A. RISK FACTORS

Our business, financial condition and results afrafions are subject to various risks and unceigaginncluding those described below and
elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. ®astion discusses factors that, individually othia aggregate, we think could cause our
actual results to differ materially from our expegtiand historical results. Our business, finarmaldition or results of operations could be
materially adversely affected by any of these ri¥Ke note these factors for investors as permiitethe Private Securities Litigation Reform
Act of 1995.

Our success depends to a significant extent uponeagal economic conditions, including disposable ome levels and changes in consumer
discretionary spending.

Because our target customers include menu-drivéep@ndent restaurants, fine dining establishmeats)try clubs, hotels, caterers, culinary
schools, bakeries, patisseries, chocolatiers, etirigs, casinos and specialty food stores, ounbss is exposed to reductions in disposable
income levels and discretionary consumer spendimgncertain economic environments, like those Itfze been present in the United States
and Canada over the last several years, consudiscsétionary spending may be negatively impadiéateover, in times of high
unemployment rates, reduced home values, highdefdlome foreclosures, high gas prices, investioases, personal bankruptcies, reducec
access to credit and/or reduced consumer configenosumers similarly may be less willing to spéistretionary dollars. Economic
conditions may remain volatile and may continueefaress consumer confidence and discretionary spgifor the near term. If the uncertain
economic conditions of the last five years contifarea prolonged period of time or worsen, consigmaay choose to spend discretionary
dollars less frequently which could result in alohexin consumers’ food-away-from-home purchasestiqularly in more expensive
restaurants, and, consequently, adversely impadiukinesses of our customers by, among othersthiaducing the frequency with which our
customers’ customers choose to dine out or the atribay spend on meals while dining out. If ourtoners’ sales decrease, our profitability
could decline as we spread fixed costs across erlealume of sales. Moreover, if a prolonged dowmior uncertain outlook in the economy
persists for an extended period of time or becoma® pervasive, consumers might ultimately makg@asting changes to their discretionary
spending behavior, including dining out less fratlyeon a permanent basis. Accordingly, adverseigha to consumer preferences or
consumer discretionary spending, each of whichctbelaffected by many different factors which aweaf our control, could harm our
business, financial condition or results of operagi Our continued success will depend in part uporability to anticipate, identify and
respond to changing economic and other conditiodstlae impact that those conditions may have oerelinary consumer spending.

A significant portion of our future growth is depetent upon our ability to expand our operations imioexisting markets and to penetra
new markets through acquisitions.

We intend to expand our presence in our existingkata by adding to our existing customer base tjindhe expansion of our product portfc
and the increase in the volume and/or number aftfase orders from our existing customers. We caasgire investors in our common stock
however, that we will be able to continue to susfidl expand or acquire critical market presenteur existing markets, as we may not
successfully market our specialty food and centghe-plate products and brands or may encountgetaand/or more well-established
competitors with substantially greater financiaaerces. Moreover, competitive circumstances andwuoer characteristics in new segments
of existing markets may differ substantially fronose in the segments in which we have substamxjrgence. If we are unable to expand in
existing markets, our ability to increase our raxenand profitability may be affected in a mateaiadl adverse manner.

We also regularly evaluate opportunities to acqatheer companies. To the extent our future growtiuides acquisitions, we cannot assure
investors in our common stock that we will succalbgidentify suitable acquisition candidates, abtinancing for such acquisitions, if
necessary, consummate such potential acquisitdfestively and efficiently integrate any acquirentities or successfully expand into new
markets as a result of our acquisitions. Moreotethe extent that we acquire companies that aneipally involved in the distribution of
products that we have not historically distributidcs fresh produce, there may be additional riskd we face.

We may not be able to successfully or timely cortgotbe pending acquisition of Del Monte and suchiltae could adversely impact our
business and the market price of our common stock.

On January 11, 2015, we entered into a definitgre@ment to acquire substantially all of the assetscertain equity interests of Del Monte
approximately $191.2 million (subject to customaayrking capital adjustments as well as final audlitesults of the acquired entities),
consisting of (i) $127.5 million in cash, which ke funded from cash on hand and additional bamgsvunder our existing credit
arrangements, (ii) 1.2 million shares of our commtuck (valued at $22.00 per share), and (iii) $38illion in convertible subordinated notes
with a six-year maturity bearing interest at 2.5%wa conversion price of $29.70 per share. In#altiwe have agreed to pay additional
contingent consideration which is expected to tapgroximately $25.5 million (subject to certaimddions and upon the successful
achievement of adjusted EBITDA targets over theysixrs following the closing of the acquisition ®ebruary 24, 2015, we received notice
that we had been granted early termination of thitimg period applicable to our proposed acquisitd Del Monte under federal anti-trust
regulations. The transaction is subject to satisfamf customary closing conditions, and is expddb close near the end of the first quarter o
2015 or early in the second quarter of 2015.
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Risks and uncertainties related to the proposessaction include, among others: (1) the occurrefi@ny event, change or other circumstance
that could give rise to the termination of the agnent to acquire Del Monte, (2) the failure to eonsate the acquisition of Del Monte for
reasons including that the conditions to the clgsire not satisfied or waived by us, (3) the risi third-party approvals or consents required
for the transaction are not obtained and (4) litagamay be filed which could prevent or delay ttensaction.

The completion of the pending Del Monte transact#osubject to the satisfaction of certain condisiset forth in the Asset Purchase
Agreement and the Merger Agreement, each datechdadd, 2015, including there being no materialeade effect on Del Monte prior to the
closing of the transaction and other customary itimmd. We will be unable to complete the pendinguasition of Del Monte until each of the
conditions to closing is either satisfied or waived

We have incurred significant costs, expenses agglfiir professional services and other transactists in connection with the proposed
transaction, as well as the diversion of managemesutrces, for which we will have received littleno benefit if the closing of the transac
does not occur.

For these and other reasons, our failure to compet Del Monte transaction could have a matedaéese impact on our business, financial
condition and results of operations.

If we complete the pending acquisition of Del Montge may not realize the anticipated benefits of thansaction, which could adverse
impact our business and our operating results.

If the Del Monte transaction is completed, we cesvjgle no assurance that (1) the anticipated beneffithe transaction, including cost savings
and synergies, will be fully realized in the tinmarhe anticipated or at all, (2) the costs or diffies related to the integration of Del Monte’s
business and operations into ours will not be gretian expected, (3) unanticipated costs, changd®xpenses will not result from the
transaction, (4) litigation relating to the transaic will not be filed, (5) there will not be disfas regarding whether we are obligated to pay th
additional contingent consideration in connectigthythe transaction, (6) we will be able to retk@y personnel, including John DeBenedetti,
and (7) the transaction will not cause disruptmiodr business and operations and our relationstithscustomers, employees and other third
parties. If one or more of these risks are realitezbuld have a material adverse impact on ogirtass, financial condition and results of
operations.

We may not achieve benefits expected from our asijians.

We believe that there are risks related to acqgicimmpanies, including overpaying for acquisitidnsing key employees of acquired
companies, failing to identify potential liabilifeassociated with the acquisition of the busineiss o our acquisition and failing to achieve
potential synergies. Additionally, our businesslddae adversely affected if we are unable to irdggthe companies we acquire.

A significant portion of our past growth has beehiaved through acquisitions of or mergers witheofttistributors of specialty food products
and center-of-the-plate protein items, such asompleted acquisitions of Provvista Specialty Fodals. (“Provvista”), Praml International,
Ltd. (“Praml”), Michael’s, Queensgate Foodservit@ueensgate”), Allen Brothers and Euro Gourmet. fDture acquisitions, including our
pending acquisition of Del Monte, may have a matexdverse effect on our results of operationgjqadarly in periods immediately following
the consummation of those transactions while treraifons of the acquired business are being intedjraith our operations. Achieving the
benefits of acquisitions depends on timely, effitiand successful execution of a number of postiaitapn events, including successful
integration of the acquired entity. Integrationuigs, among other things:

e maintaining the existing customer and supplier lzaskpersonne

e optimizing delivery routes

» coordinating administrative, distribution and figarfunctions; an

* integrating management information systems antpes.

The integration process may temporarily rediresbugces previously focused on reducing product cestilting in lower gross profits in
relation to sales. In addition, the process of cminly companies could cause the interruption oy toss of momentum in, the activities of the
respective businesses, which could have an adeéfesg on their combined operations. In an efforstreamline the acquisition and integratior
process and achieve expected benefits and synengiesquickly, we implemented an “integration teaduting fiscal 2014, which is dedicat
to onboarding new acquisitions, as quickly anccedfitly as possible. We believe that having a tdedicated to integration will help make
sure the people, processes and products we adehthexquisitions are consistent with the rest ofbasiness and will allow our management
team to focus its attention on our day-to-day of@na. If we are unable to fully implement the &gtation team” in a timely manner or at all,
the acquisition integration process could contittudivert the attention of management, and anyadliffies or problems encountered in the
integration process could have a material advdfset@®n our business, financial condition or résoff operations.
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In connection with our acquisition of businessethimfuture, including our pending acquisition aflMonte, we may decide to consolidate the
operations of any acquired business with our exgstiperations, as we have done with the operatibhkarry Wils & Co. (“Harry Wils”),

which we acquired in 2011, and Praml, or make othanges with respect to the acquired businesghwdauld result in special charges or
other expenses. Our results of operations alsobreadversely affected by expenses we incur in ngakaguisitions, by amortization of
acquisition-related intangible assets with defitiites and by additional depreciation attributaiol@cquired assets. Any of the businesses we
acquire may also have liabilities or adverse ojggassues, including some that we fail to discdwefiore the acquisition, and our indemnity
such liabilities typically has been limited and mejth respect to future acquisitions, also be tgdi Additionally, our ability to make any
future acquisitions may depend upon obtaining &fthl financing or the consents of our lenders.&g not be able to obtain this additional
financing or these consents on acceptable terrasalt. Moreover, we may need to finance our adtjaisactivity with the issuance of equity
or debt securities, which may have rights and pesifges superior to those of our common stock anithe case of common equity securities,
may be issued at such prices and in such amoumsyagause significant dilution to our then-exigtstommon stockholders. To the extent we
seek to acquire other businesses in exchange faromumon stock, fluctuations in our stock priceldduave a material adverse effect on our
ability to complete acquisitions.

In addition, although we enter into acquisitionesggments with each company or business we acqaitedntain customary representations,
warranties, covenants and indemnities, there iguamantee that we will recover all of our losses thay result from a breach of such
agreements. For example, most acquisition agreanecentain baskets or deductibles and caps anditioris on damages and on periods in
which we may bring a claim. In addition, there &&nno guarantee that we will be successful on thétsnof any claim that we bring arising
out of a breach of an acquisition agreement orifive¢ are successful on the merits in bringindaine that the sellers of the businesses we
acquire will be able to pay us for our losses. M@gr, the costs that we incur to investigate amt@ematter may not be fully recoverable.

Also, as a result of an acquisition, we may entar & new business or market or offer productsdfiggr from our core business. Any such t
business or market or the sale and distributiomesf products may present new challenges for uswanghay not be able to overcome such
challenges. Moreover, we may seek to distributéfardnt set of products than the business thaheepiire, which may cause a loss of
customers of those businesses if we can no loragey the products they desire or charge more fosdhproducts than was charged before we
acquired the business.

Ouir failure to realize the benefits expected fram acquisitions could result in a reduction in giiee of our common stock as well as in
increased costs, decreases in the amount of expestenues and diversion of management’s time aahy and could materially and
adversely impact our business, financial conditbonesults of operations.

We may have difficulty managing and facilitating oduture growth.

At times since our inception, we have rapidly exgethour operations through organic growth, acqaisstor otherwise. This growth has
placed and will continue to place significant dea&inpon our administrative, operational and finaheisources. This growth, however, may
not continue. To the extent that our customer baskour distribution networks continue to growsthiture growth may be limited by our
inability to acquire new distribution facilities expand our existing distribution facilities, makeguisitions, successfully integrate acquired
entities, implement information systems initiatiesadequately manage our personnel.

Moreover, our future growth may be limited in playtthe size and location of our distribution cestéts we near maximum utilization of a
given facility, our operations may be constrainad mefficiencies may be created, which could aselgraffect our results of operations unles:
the facility is expanded, volume is shifted to dmeotfacility or additional processing capacity églad. Conversely, as we add additional
facilities or expand existing operations or fai@ht{ excess capacity may be created. Any excessitgmay also create inefficiencies and
adversely affect our results of operations. We oaassure investors in our common stock that webailable to successfully expand our
existing distribution facilities or open new distution facilities in new or existing markets as dee to facilitate growth.

Even if we are able to expand our distribution reetyour ability to compete effectively and to mgaduture growth, if any, will depend on
our ability to continue to implement and improvesggtional, financial and management informatiortesys on a timely basis and to expand,
train, motivate and manage our employees. We cassatre investors in our common stock that outiagigpersonnel, systems, procedures
and controls will be adequate to support the fugmosvth of our operations. Accordingly, our inatyilto manage our growth effectively could
have a material adverse effect on our businesadial condition or results of operations.
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Conditions beyond our control could materially affethe cost and/or availability of our specialtydd products or center-of-the-plate
products and/or interrupt our distribution networl

Our profitability and operating margins are dependgon, among other things, our ability to anttgand react to any interruptions in our
distribution network and changes to food costsaradlability. We obtain a significant portion of ospecialty food products and center-of-the-
plate products from local, regional, national ameinational third-party suppliers. We generallyndd enter into long-term contracts with our
suppliers, whereby they would be committed to pevproducts to us for any appreciable duratiormneé t Although our purchasing volume
can provide leverage when dealing with supplieastigularly smaller suppliers for whom we may beithlargest customer, suppliers may not
provide or may be unable to provide the specialbdfproducts or center-of-the-plate products welrie¢he quantities and at the times and
prices we request. Failure to identify an alterrsaterce of supply for these items or comparabléeyrts that meet our customers’ expectation:
may result in significant cost increases. Additignaveather, governmental regulation, water stgeta availability and seasonality may affect
our food costs or cause a disruption in the quanfibur supply. For example, weather patterngeent years have resulted in lower than
normal levels of rainfall and snowfall in key agtitiral states such as California, impacting tHegof water and the corresponding prices of
food products grown in states facing drought coodg. Additionally, the route-to-market for sometio¢ products we sell, such as baking
chocolate, depends upon the stability of politidathates and a stable labor force in developingpnat such as the Ivory Coast. In such
countries, political and social unrest may causepitices for these products to rise to levels bdybnse that our customers are willing to pay,
if the product is available at all. If we are uratd obtain these products, our customers may&elfkerent supplier for these or other product:
which could negatively impact our business, finahcondition or results of operations.

We do not currently use financial instruments tddeeour risk exposure to market fluctuations inghiee of food products. Similarly, our
suppliers may also be affected by higher coststiwcg or produce and transport food products, disawdy other related expenses that they
pass through to their customers, which could résdiigher costs for the specialty food productsemter-of-the-plate products they supply to
us. Our inability to anticipate and react to chaggiood costs through our sourcing and purchasiagtiges in the future could therefore
negatively impact our business, financial condittomesults of operations.

We are also subject to material supply chain iofgions based upon conditions outside of our carifiltese interruptions could include work
slowdowns, work interruptions, strikes or other ee employment actions taken by employees of@ussir suppliers, short-term weather
conditions or more prolonged climate change, capddions, product recalls, water shortages, trartafion interruptions within our
distribution channels, unavailability of fuel ocieases in fuel costs, competitive demands andaiatisasters or other catastrophic events,
such as food-borne ilinesses or bioterrorism. Tfieiency and effectiveness of our distributionwetk is dependent upon our supplieability

to consistently deliver the specialty food produatsl meat, poultry and seafood we need in the gigsnand at the times and prices we req
Accordingly, if we are unable to obtain the spegiéod products or meat, poultry or seafood tlahprise a significant percentage of our
product portfolio in a timely manner and in the oitées and at the prices we request as a resalhpbf the foregoing factors or otherwise, we
may be unable to fulfill our obligations to custam&ho may, as a result of any such failure, remoother distributors for their food product
needs or change the types of products they buy @t products that are less profitable for us.

Our increased distribution of center-of-the-plateqrlucts, like meat, poultry and seafood, followingr acquisitions of Michael's and Allen
Brothers and our pending acquisition of Del Mont&volves risks that we have not historically face

With our acquisitions of Michael's and Allen BrotBeas well as our pending acquisition of Del Momtéarger percentage of our revenues is
expected to come from center-of-the-plate prodiae has historically been the case. With our imeee distribution of center-of-the-plate
products like meat, poultry and seafood, we areensasceptible to increases in the prices of thos#ugts, and we cannot assure investors in
our common stock that all or part of any increasests experienced by us from time to time can Issgrhalong to consumers of our products,
in a timely manner or at all. Conversely, rapid deward pricing for these products, including assalteof restrictions on the exporting of U.S.
beef products or lower demand internationally fo®Lbeef products, may result in our lowering auircgs to our customers even though our
inventory on hand is at a higher cost. The supptymarket price of our centef-the plate products are typically more volatilan most of ou
core specialty products and are dependent upornietyaf factors over which we have no control lirding the relative cost of feed and
energy, weather, livestock diseases, governmentatgn and the availability of beef, chicken aedfood.

The prices of our meat and poultry products argeligrdependent on the production of feed ingrediemhich is affected primarily by the
global level of supply inventories and demand &md ingredients, the agricultural policies of th&.Land foreign governments and weather
patterns throughout the world. In particular, weatbatterns often change agricultural conditionanirunpredictable manner. A significant
change in weather patterns could affect supplidseaf ingredients, as well as the industry’s abtlit obtain feed ingredients or deliver
products. More recently, feed prices have been atepiaby increased demand both domestically fomsthand globally for protein production.
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Additionally, our center-of-the-plate businessubject to risks relating to animal health and diesa An outbreak of diseases affecting
livestock (such as foot-and-mouth disease or bosppongiform encephalopathy, commonly referred tmad cow disease) could result in
restrictions on sales of products, restrictionporchases of livestock from suppliers or widespmestruction of livestock. Outbreaks of
diseases, or the perception by the public thatudloreak has occurred, or other concerns regardsggases, can lead to inadequate supply,
cancellation of orders by customers and adversigitybany of which can have a significant negatimpact on consumer demand and, as a
result, on our business, financial condition ouhssof operations.

In addition, meat, seafood and poultry products weadistribute could be subject to recall becahsg are, or are alleged to be, contaminated
spoiled or inappropriately labeled. Our meat andltpp products may be subject to contamination isgase-producing organisms, or
pathogens, such &ssteria monocytogenesSalmonellaand generid&.coli. These pathogens are generally found in the emviemt, and, as a
result, there is a risk that they, as a resulbofifprocessing, could be present in the meat anirp@roducts that we distribute. These
pathogens can also be introduced as a result abjmep handling in our facilities or at the consutesel. These risks may be controlled,
although not eliminated, by adherence to good naatufing practices and finished product testing.ha&fee little, if any, control over proper
handling before we receive the product or onceptioeuct has been shipped to our customers. lllaedsieath may result if the pathogens are
not eliminated before these products are sold stoooers.

We are also susceptible to increases in the poitear seafood products. The prices of our seafooducts are largely dependent on the
continuous supply of fresh seafood, which in tusold be affected by a large number of factors,udirlg, but not limited to, environmental
factors, the availability of seafood stock, weatb@nditions, water contamination, the policies asglilations of the governments of the
relevant territories where such fishing is carmed, the ability of the fishing companies and fishen that supply us to continue their
operations and pressure from environmental or driiglats groups. The major raw material for ourfeed products is fresh seafood, and any
shortage in supply or upsurge in demand of freafosel may lead to an increase in prices, which atversely affect our profitability
including as a result of increased production castslower profit margins.

Our operations are subject to extensive regulaimhoversight by the USDA, the FDA and other feljastate, local and foreign authorities
regarding the processing, packaging, storage,ysafistribution, advertising and labeling of itoducts. Recently, food safety practices and
procedures in the meat processing industry have sg@gject to more intense scrutiny and oversighthbyUSDA. Failure to comply with
existing or new laws and regulations could resulidministrative penalties and injunctive relig¥ilocemedies, fines, interruption of
operations, recalls of products or seizures of @rigs, potential criminal sanctions and persomaky or other damage claims. These reme
changes in the applicable laws and regulationssmoglery of currently unknown conditions could iease costs, limit business operations anc
reduce profitability.

Our business is a low-margin business and our ptafiargins may be sensitive to inflationary and dafbnary pressures.

We operate within a segment of the foodserviceiligion industry, which is an industry charactedzy a high volume of sales with
relatively low profit margins. Although our profitargins are typically higher than more traditiobadadline foodservice distributors, they are
still relatively low compared to other industrigebfit margins. Most of our sales of specialty prots are at prices that are based upon produ
cost plus a percentage markup. As a result, veligibd costs have a direct impact upon our prafitpbProlonged periods of product cost
inflation may have a negative impact on our pnofirgins and results of operations to the exterdngaunable to pass on all or a portion of
such product cost increases to our customers.ditiaad, product cost inflation may negatively impaonsumer discretionary spending
decisions within our customers’ establishmentscvitould adversely impact our sales. Converselyalige most of our sales of specialty
products are at prices that are based upon pradstplus a percentage markup, our profit levelg beanegatively impacted during periods of
product cost deflation even though our gross pesia percentage of sales may remain relativelgtant If our product mix changes, we may
face increased risks of compression of our margiasye may be unable to achieve the same levebéif pargins as we are able to capture ot
our traditional specialty products. For instance,hvave experienced increased margin compressiouriprotein category beginning in the tl
quarter of 2013 which has continued throughout 20flthis compression continues, our operating iprofirgin and results of operations could
be materially and adversely impacted. To comperfsatewer gross margins, we, in turn, must redineeexpenses that we incur to service
customers or our net income or operating margin beagegatively impacted. Our inability to effectivprice our specialty food products or
center-of-the-plate products, to quickly responihftationary and deflationary cost pressures ancktluce our expenses could have a materic
adverse impact on our business, financial condiioresults of operations.
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Group purchasing organizations may become more aetin our industry and increase their efforts to d@ur customers as members of
these organizations.

Some of our customers, including a majority of batel customers, purchase their products from tmutith group purchasing organizations.
These organizations have increased their efforégtegate the purchasing power of smaller, inddgarrestaurants in an effort to lower the
prices paid by these customers on their foodseosiders, and we have experienced some pricing yme&®m these purchasers. If these grou
purchasing organizations are able to add a sigmfioumber of our customers as members, we magrbed to lower the prices we charge
these customers in order to retain the businesshwinuld negatively affect our business, financiahdition or results of operations.
Additionally, if we were unable or unwilling to lav the prices we charge for our products to a lthetlwas satisfactory to the group
purchasing organization, we may lose the businEd®ee of our customers that are members of tbegmizations, which could have a
material adverse impact on our business, finamaatition or results of operations.

Because our foodservice distribution operations a@ncentrated in certain culinary markets, we aresseptible to economic and oth
developments, including adverse weather conditidnghese areas.

Our financial condition and results of operations lighly dependent upon the local economies otthi@ary markets in which we distribute
our products. In recent years, certain of these&ketahave been more negatively impacted by theatheronomic crisis, including
experiencing higher unemployment rates and weatesihg market conditions, than other areas of thikeld States and Canada. Moreover,
sales of our specialty products in our New York kedrwhich we define as our operations on the Easist of the United States spanning fromn
Boston to Atlantic City, accounted for approximgt8% of our net sales in our 2014 fiscal year. Ak&etherefore particularly exposed to
downturns in this regional economy. Following canswation of our pending acquisition of Del Monte, widl have significant operations in
the San Francisco Bay area and Los Angeles, CailifoDeterioration in the economic conditions of key markets generally, or in the local
economy of the New York metropolitan area or SaanEisco bay or Los Angeles, California areas, $igadly, could affect our business,
financial condition or results of operations in aterially adverse manner.

In addition, given our geographic concentrationkepregional occurrences such as adverse weaihditions, terrorist attacks and other
catastrophic events could have a material advéfset ®n our business, financial condition or résof operations. Adverse weather condition:
can significantly impact the business of our custsrand our ability to profitably and efficientlpreduct our operations and, in severe cases,
could result in our trucks being unable to makeveeles or cause the temporary closure or the detitn of one or more of our distribution
centers. Our operations and/or distribution centdrieh are located in (i) New York City, Ohio, Wasfjton D.C., Chicago and Canada are
particularly susceptible to significant amountsonbwfall and ice, (i) Miami are particularly sugptible to hurricanes and (iii) Los Angeles and
San Francisco are particularly susceptible to gagkes and mudslides. In addition, our restaunastbeners, many of which are independently
owned with operations limited to one or two marketay be less able to withstand the impact on thgsiness from adverse weather condi
than national chain restaurants because they at@aito spread the risks of such events across nouséocations. In some cases these
customers may not be able to re-open their restésjrand consequently make payment to us for ptsgueviously provided, if the weather
event or other catastrophic event is severe —qudatily if they lacked sufficient insurance or thisisurance claims are not processed quickly.

Due to their prominence as, among other charatitsislensely-populated major metropolitan citied as international hubs for intermodal
transportation, a majority of our markets are kn@sriargets for terrorist activity and other catagtic events. If our or our customers’
operations are significantly disrupted or if anya@r more of our distribution centers is tempoyacibsed or destroyed for any of the foregoing
reasons, our business, financial condition or tesafloperations may be materially adversely afféctn anticipation of any such adverse
weather conditions, terrorist attacks, man-madastiss or other unforeseen regional occurrencebawe implemented a disaster recovery
plan. Should any of these events occur, and if i@auaable to execute our disaster recovery plammes experience challenges in acquiring
and distributing our products, failures or delayshe recovery of critical data, delayed reportimgl compliance with governmental entities,
inability to perform necessary corporate functians other breakdowns in normal operating procedingscould have a material adverse
effect on our business and create exposure to &tnaitive and other legal claims against us.

Damage to our reputation or lack of acceptance afrspecialty food products, cent-of-the-plate products and/or the brands we carry i
existing and new markets could materially and adsely impact our business, financial condition orgelts of operations.

We believe that we have built a strong reputat@rttie breadth and depth of our product portfolid the brands we carry and that we must
protect and grow their value to be successful inftiture. Any incident that erodes consumer comfigein or affinity for our specialty food or
center-of-theplate products or brands, whether or not justifeld significantly reduce their respective valaes damage our business. If
customers perceive or experience a reduction injiadity or selection of our products and brandswrcustomer service, or in any way
believe that we failed to deliver a consistentlgifive experience, our business, financial conditio results of operations may be affected in e
materially adverse manner.
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A specialty foods distribution business such as @an be adversely affected by negative publiaityeavs reports, whether or not accurate,
regarding food quality issues, public health consgillness, safety, injury or government or indu$indings concerning our products or others
across the food distribution industry. Although naese taken steps to mitigate food quality, pubgelth and other foodservice-related risks,
these types of health concerns or negative puplicihnot be completely eliminated or mitigated exa/ harm our results of operations and
damage the reputation of, or result in a lack akatance of, our products or the brands we carry.

In addition, our ability to successfully penetratav markets may be adversely affected by a lackvaireness or acceptance of our product
portfolio or our brands in these new markets. Todhtent we are unable to foster name recognitioinaéfinity for our products and brands in
new markets, we may not be able to penetrate thaskets as anticipated, and, consequently, ourthrovay be significantly delayed or
impaired.

Our customers are generally not obligated to contenpurchasing products from us.

Most of our customers buy from us pursuant to irtlial purchase orders, as we generally do not émtefong-term agreements with our
customers for the purchase of our products. Becawseustomers are generally not obligated to cometipurchasing products from us, we
cannot assure investors in our common stock tleavdlume and/or number of our customers’ purchaders will remain constant or increase
or that we will be able to maintain or add to oxiisgng customer base. Significant decreases ivtfigme and/or number of our customers’
purchase orders or our inability to retain or gimwy current customer base may have a material sehegfect on our business, financial
condition or results of operations.

We have experienced losses due to our inabilitgdtiect accounts receivable in the past and coulgherience increases in such losses in the
future if our customers are unable to pay their dslio us in a timely manner or at al

Certain of our customers have experienced bankyuptsolvency and/or an inability to pay their detd us as they come due. If our customer
suffer significant financial difficulties or bankstcies, they may be unable to pay their debts o agtimely manner or at all. It is possible that
our customers may contest their obligations toymynder bankruptcy laws or otherwise. Even ifaugtomers do not contest their obligations
to pay us, if our customers are unable to pay thalits to us in a timely manner, it could advergmlyact our ability to collect accounts
receivable and may require that we take largeripiavs for bad debt expense. Moreover, we may bawnegotiate significant discounts anc
extended financing terms with these customerséh susituation in an attempt to secure paymenbdiestanding debts. Accordingly, if we are
unable to collect upon our accounts receivabldag tome due in an efficient and timely manner,buginess, financial condition or results of
operations may be materially and adversely affeddenling periods of economic weakness, like thosehave recently experienced, small to
medium-sized businesses, like many of our indepa@staurant and fine dining establishment custeymeay be impacted more severely ant
more quickly than larger businesses. Consequehtyability of such businesses to repay their alians to us may deteriorate, and in some
cases this deterioration may occur quickly, whiohld adversely impact our business, financial cimdlior results of operations.

Product liability claims could have a material adwe effect on our business, financial condition cgsults of operations

Like any other distributor of food products, wedam inherent risk of exposure to product liabitilgims if the products we sell cause injury ol
illness. We may be subject to liability, which cddile substantial, because of actual or allegedhouination in products sold by us, including
products sold by companies before we acquired théenhave, and the companies we have acquired tadidiability insurance with respect
product liability claims. This insurance may nohtioue to be available at a reasonable cost dt, a@ral it may not be adequate to cover
product liability claims against us or against afighe companies we have acquired. We generally s@atractual indemnification from
manufacturers or suppliers of the product, butsuch indemnification is limited, as a practical tegtto the creditworthiness of the
indemnifying party. If we or any of our acquiredhgoanies do not have adequate insurance or cordtastiemnification available, product
liability claims and costs associated with prodectalls, including a loss of business, could haweagerial adverse effect on our business,
financial condition or results of operations.

Fuel cost volatility may have a material adverséeet on our business, financial condition or resalbf operations.

Fuel cost volatility may have a negative impacban business, financial condition or results ofratiens. The cost of diesel fuel can increase
the price we pay for products as well as the cesténcur to distribute products to our custometsede factors, in turn, may negatively impact
our net sales, margins, operating expenses andtopgresults. Although we have been able to plsgya portion of increased fuel costs to
our customers in the past, there is no guarantezawelo so again. If fuel costs continue to renaaielevated levels, like those we are currentl
experiencing, or increase in the future, we mayeerpce difficulties in passing all or a portiontbése costs along to our customers, which
could have a material adverse effect on our busjrigmncial condition or results of operations.
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New information or attitudes regarding diet and higa or adverse opinions about the health effectstbé& products we distribute could rest
in changes in consumer eating habits, which couldye a material adverse effect on our business, fio@l condition or results of
operations.

Consumer eating habits may impact our businesg@suét of changes in attitudes regarding diettzemlth or new information regarding the
health effects of consuming the products we disteblf consumer eating habits change significantly may be required to modify or
discontinue sales of certain items in our productfplio, and we may experience higher costs assediwith the implementation of those
changes. Additionally, changes in consumer eatatiite may result in the enactment of laws and egguis that impact the ingredients and
nutritional content of our products or require aslisclose the nutritional content of products. @bamce with these laws and regulations, as
well as others regarding the ingredients and nemd content of our products, may be costly antetconsuming. We cannot make any
assurances regarding our ability to effectivelyporsl to changes in consumer health perceptionssoitmg new laws or regulations or to ac
our menu offerings to trends in eating habits.

We have significant competition from a variety afiwrces, and we may not be able to compete succigsfu

The foodservice distribution industry is highlydraented and competitive, and our future succesddwilargely dependent upon our ability to
profitably meet our customers’ needs for certainrgtet foods and ingredients, varying drop sizegh Isiervice levels and timely delivery. We
compete with numerous smaller distributors on alléavel, as well as with a limited number of largeaditional broadline foodservice
distributors. We cannot assure investors in ourraomstock that our current or potential competiteitbnot provide specialty food products
and ingredients, protein items or services thatarmsparable or superior to those provided by wsdapt more quickly than we do to evolving
culinary trends or changing market requirements. diso possible that alliances among competitag develop and rapidly acquire signific
market share. Accordingly, we cannot assure investoour common stock that we will be able to cetepeffectively against current and
future competitors, and increased competition neaylt in price reductions, reduced gross marginsless of market share, any of which cc
have a material adverse effect our business, finboandition or results of operations.

Our substantial indebtedness may limit our abiliy invest in the ongoing needs of our business.

We have a substantial amount of indebtedness. Beoémber 26, 2014, we had approximately $143.komibf total indebtedness. In
particular, we had approximately $27.0 million datsling under our senior secured term loan fadlityl we had $100.0 million outstandingc
senior secured notes. In addition, at Decembe2@84 we owed $11.0 million under a constructiomlaabuild out our Bronx, New York
distribution facility, and we also had $5.5 milliontstanding under capital leases and other fimgragreements for computer equipment,
vehicles and software. Additionally, we are finangcthe cash portion of the purchase price for Dehtd with borrowings under our senior
secured revolving credit facility. Moreover, astpaErthe consideration in connection with our pewggdacquisition of Del Monte, we will issue
to certain of the sellers $38.3 million in conviel¢i subordinated notes with a six-year maturityriogginterest at 2.5% with a conversion price
of $29.70 per share. The Del Monte transactioxjeeted to close near the end of the first quaft@015 or early in the second quarter of
2015.

Our indebtedness could have important consequeéadegestors in our common stock. For example,iodebtedness:

* requires us to utilize a substantial portion of cash flows from operations to make paymentswrir@ebtedness, reducing the
availability of our cash flows to fund working ctadi capital expenditures, development activity atfter general corporate purpos

e increases our vulnerability to adverse general @eon or industry conditions

« limits our flexibility in planning for, or reactintp, changes in our business or the industrieshiclwve operate

* makes us more vulnerable to increases in inteaéss$, as borrowings under our senior secured ltmamfacility and senior secured
revolving credit facility are at variable rat¢

» limits our ability to obtain additional financing the future for working capital or other purpodaesjuding to finance acquisitions; a

* places us at a competitive disadvantage comparedrtoompetitors that have less indebtedr

If our earnings are insufficient to fund our op@ras, including our acquisition growth strategy, wil need to raise additional capital or issue
additional debt, including longer-term, fixed-rakebt, to pay our indebtedness as it comes due aurasvailability under our senior secured
revolving credit facility is exhausted. If we aneable to obtain funds necessary to make requirgoheats or if we fail to comply with the
various requirements of our senior secured creditifies, the agreement governing our senior sgtaotes or our convertible subordinated
notes issued in connection with the Del Monte asitjan, we would be in default, which would perrhie holders of our indebtedness to
accelerate the maturity of the indebtedness, trdrcase of the convertible subordinated notesjardthe notes to common stock resulting in
the holders of those notes and their affiliatesobh@ng one of our largest stockholders, and couldsealefaults under any indebtedness we mz
incur in the future. Any default under our indelriesss requiring the repayment of outstanding bomgsvivould have a material adverse effect
on our business, financial condition and resultsperations. If we are unable to refinance or repayindebtedness as it becomes due, we mze
become insolvent and be unable to continue opestio
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Although the agreements governing our senior selcenedit facilities and our senior secured notadaia restrictions on the incurrence of
additional indebtedness, these restrictions argesutn a number of qualifications and excepti@rg] the indebtedness incurred in compliance
with these restrictions could be substantial. Atkese restrictions do not prevent us from incgrobligations that do not constitute
indebtedness. The lenders under our senior sectedd facilities and the holders of our seniorsed notes have consented to our proposed
issuance of the convertible subordinated notes.

The agreements governing our senior secured dealities and our senior secured notes requireusaintain fixed charge coverage ratios
and leverage ratios, which become more restrictisgr time. Our ability to comply with these ratioghe future may be affected by events
beyond our control, and our inability to comply lwthe required financial ratios could result inedadilt under our senior secured credit
facilities or our senior secured notes. In the ée¢rvents of default, the lenders under our sesgcured credit facilities or the holders of our
senior secured notes could elect to terminate fgndommitments and declare all borrowings outstamdiogether with accrued and unpaid
interest and other fees, to be immediately duepaydble. See “Management’s Discussion and Anabfdisnancial Condition and Results of
Operations— Liquidity and Capital Resources.”

Our ability to raise capital in the future may bénited.

Our business and operations may consume resoumcksling availability under our senior securedaleing credit facility, faster than we
currently anticipate. In the future, we may needdise additional funds through the issuance of equity securities, debt, including longer-
term, fixed-rate debt, or a combination of bothd#ibnal financing may not be available on favoeatdrms or at all. If adequate funds are not
available on acceptable terms, we may be unalilentbour capital requirements or grow our busirteesugh acquisitions, or otherwise. If we
issue new debt securities, the debt holders mag hghts senior to those of our common stockholtteraake claims on our assets, and the
terms of any debt could restrict our operationsluiding our ability to pay dividends on our comnsiack. If we issue additional equity
securities, existing stockholders will experiendatobn, and the new equity securities could hagéts senior to those of our common stock.
Because our decision to issue securities in anydutffering will depend upon market conditions atiger factors beyond our control, we
cannot predict or estimate the amount, timing eumgaof our future offerings. Thus, our stockhoklbear the risk of our future securities
offerings reducing the market price of our commtmtls and diluting their interest.

We may be unable to obtain debt or other financinggluding financing necessary to execute on ourcagsition strategy, on favorable tern
or at all.

There are inherent risks in our ability to borrogbticapital. Our lenders, including the lendersipi@ating in our senior secured credit
facilities, and the holders of our senior securetdés may have suffered losses related to theiidgrashd other financial relationships,
especially because of the general weakening anghoaa uncertainty of the national economy overghst six years, increased financial
instability of many borrowers and the declininguabf their assets. As a result, lenders may bedosodvent or tighten their lending
standards, which could make it more difficult farto borrow under our senior secured revolvingitfedility, refinance our existing
indebtedness or obtain other financing on favorsdries or at all. Our access to funds under ouossecured credit facilities is dependent
upon the ability of our lenders to meet their furgdcommitments. Our financial condition and resafteperations would be adversely affectec
in a material manner if we were unable to draw fuadder our senior secured revolving credit fachiécause of a lender default or if we had
to obtain other cost-effective financing.

Longer term disruptions in the capital and credirkets as a result of uncertainty, changing oreiased regulation, reduced alternatives or
failures of significant financial institutions calihdversely affect our access to liquidity neeaedfir business. Any disruption could requirt
to take measures to conserve cash until the mastadigize or until alternative credit arrangemest®ther funding for our business can be
arranged. Such measures could include deferringat@sxpenditures (including our entry into new ks, including through acquisitions) and
reducing or eliminating other discretionary usesaxh.

Information technology system failures or breacheSour network security could interrupt our operaths and adversely affect our busine

We rely upon our computer systems and network $trfis@ture across our operations. Our businessvegdhe storage and transmission of
many types of sensitive or confidential informatiorcluding customers’ and suppliers’ personal infation, private information about
employees, and financial and strategic informatibaut us and our operations. Our operations deppod our ability to protect our computer
equipment and systems against damage from phykif| fire, power loss, telecommunications failoreother catastrophic events, as well as
from internal and external security breaches, @susvorms and other disruptive problems. Any danmadailure of our computer systems or
network infrastructure that causes an interrupitioour operations could have a material adverscefin our business, financial condition or
results of operations. Although we employ bothrimé resources and external consultants to coralwtiting and testing for weaknesses in ou
systems, controls, firewalls and encryption andridtto maintain and upgrade our security technosogloperational procedures to prevent
such damage, breaches or other disruptive problimas can be no assurance that these securityunesaaill be successful.
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Our investments in information technology may notquluce the benefits that we anticipate.

In an attempt to reduce our operating expensegase our operational efficiencies, boost our dpayanargins and more closely track the
movement of our inventory in our protein businass,have aggressively invested in the developmethiraplementation of new information
technology. We may not be able to implement theskrtological changes in the time frame we havengldnand any delays in implementat
could negatively impact our business, financialditian or results of operations. In addition, tlwesis to make these changes may exceed our
estimates and will likely exceed any benefits thatrealize during the early stages of implementatitven if we are able to implement the
changes as planned, and within our cost estimategjay not be able achieve the expected efficisnciest savings and operational
enhancements from these investments which could Aaadverse effect on our business, financialitiondr results of operations.

We may not be able to adequately protect our irtefial property, which, in turn, could harm the va of our brands and adversely affect
our business.

Our ability to implement our business plan sucadlstlepends in part upon our ability to furtheilddrand recognition, including for our
proprietary products, using our trademarks, semriaeks and other proprietary intellectual propeirigluding our names and logos. We have
registered or applied to register a number of mad@marks. We cannot assure investors in our constoak that our trademark applications
will be approved. Third parties may also opposetmdemark applications, or otherwise challengeuser of the trademarks. In the event that
our trademarks are successfully challenged, weddoeifforced to rebrand our goods and services,hadoald result in loss of brand
recognition and could require us to devote res@utgeadvertising and marketing new brands. If dfores to register, maintain and protect our
intellectual property are inadequate, or if anydhparty misappropriates, dilutes or infringes upan intellectual property, the value of our
brands may be harmed, which could have a matefiarae effect on our business, financial conditioresults of operations and might pre\
our brands from achieving or maintaining marketegptance.

We may also face the risk of claims that we haféniged third parties’ intellectual property right§third parties claim that we have infringed
or are infringing upon their intellectual properights, our operating profits could be affectedimaterially adverse manner. Any claims of
intellectual property infringement, even those withmerit, could be expensive and time consumirgdgfend, require us to rebrand our
services, if feasible, divert management'’s attenéind resources or require us to enter into royalticensing agreements in order to obtain th
right to use a third party’s intellectual properyny royalty or licensing agreements, if requiredy not be available to us on acceptable term
or at all. A successful claim of infringement agins could result in our being required to payidigant damages, enter into costly license or
royalty agreements, or stop the sale of certaidyts or services, any of which could have a negampact on our business, financial
condition or results of operations and could haunfature prospects.

Our business operations and future development ecbhbé significantly disrupted if we lose key membefour management team.

The success of our business significantly depepds the continued contributions of our founders ke employees, both individually and as
a group. Our future performance will substantiaipend upon our ability to motivate and retain §bpher Pappas, our chairman, president
and chief executive officer, John Pappas, our ei@rman, and John Austin, our chief financial @dfiand assistant corporate secretary, as
as certain other senior key employees. The lofiseo$ervices of any of our founders or key emplsya®luding key employees of the
businesses we have acquired, or may acquire, imgulbhn DeBenedetti, if we consummate our pendaggisition of Del Monte, could have
a material adverse effect on our business, finhooiadition or results of operations. We have rasom to believe that we will lose the services
of any of these individuals in the foreseeablereithowever, we currently have no effective repiaeet for any of these individuals due to
their experience, reputation in the foodservicéritlistion industry and special role in our operatio

Our insurance policies may not provide adequatedksvof coverage against all claims, and fluctuatimgurance requirements and costs
could negatively impact our profitability. In adddn, if we fail to establish proper reserves andeagiately estimate future expenses, the ¢
associated with our self-insured group medical, ers’ compensation liability and auto liability ples may adversely affect our business,
financial condition or results of operations

We believe that our insurance coverage is custofieayusinesses of our size and type. Howevergethes types of losses we may incur that
cannot be insured against or that we believe arearamercially reasonable to insure. These losdesyld they occur, could have a material
and adverse effect on our business, financial ¢cmmdor results of operations. In addition, thetawfsvorkers’ compensation insurance, genera
liability insurance and directors’ and officersalliility insurance fluctuates based upon our hisabtrends, market conditions and availability.
Because our operations principally are centerédrge, metropolitan areas, our insurance costhigteer than if our operations and facilities
were based in more rural markets. Additionally,Itieimsurance costs in general have risen sigmflgaover the past few years. These
increases, as well as federal legislation requieimgployers to provide specified levels of heal$umance to all employees, could have a
negative impact upon our business, financial camdivr results of operations, and there can bessarance that we will be able to success!
offset the effect of such increases with plan modtfons and cost control measures, additionalatpey efficiencies or the pass-through of
such increased costs to our customers.
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Effective October 1, 2011, we began maintainingl&iasured group medical program. We record ailitgifor medical claims during the
period in which they occur, as well as an estinaditecurred but not reported claims. Managementmeines the adequacy of these accruals
based on a monthly evaluation of our historicainetaexperience and medical cost trends. Projectibfisture loss expenses are inherently
uncertain because of the random nature of insuralag@s occurrences and could be significantlyaéd if future occurrences and claims
differ from these assumptions and historical tretidse suffer a substantial loss that is not cedeby our self- insurance reserves, the loss ar
attendant expenses could harm our business andtmgeresults. We have purchased stop loss covéragethird parties which limits our
exposure above the amounts we have self-insured.

Effective August 1, 2012, we became self-insuredivforkers’ compensation and automobile liabilitydeductibles or seffasured retentions «
$350,000 for workers compensation and $250,00@ditsmobile liability per occurrence. The amountexcess of our deductibles are fully
insured by third party insurers. Liabilities assted with this program are estimated in part bysaaring historical claims experience and cos
trends. Projections of future loss expenses armerantily uncertain because of the random naturesefrance claims occurrences and could be
significantly affected if future occurrences andieis differ from these assumptions and historieaids.

Increases in our labor costs, including as a resaftlabor shortages, the unionization of some ofrassociates, the price or unavailability
insurance and changes in government regulation cddlow our growth or harm our business.

We are subject to a wide range of labor costs. Bseaur labor costs are, as a percentage of resenigher than other industries, we may be
significantly harmed by labor cost increases.

Our operations are highly dependent upon our egpeeid and sophisticated sales professionals. @@ahlifdividuals have historically been in
short supply and an inability to attract and retaiem may limit our ability to expand our operaidn existing markets, as well as our ability

penetrate new markets. We can make no assuraratesdiwill be able to attract and retain qualifiedividuals in the future. Additionally, the
cost of attracting and retaining qualified indivédsimay be higher than we currently anticipate, @d result, our profitability could decline.

We are subject to the risk of employment-relatiégddtion at both the state and federal levelsudiclg claims styled as class action lawsuits,
which are more costly to defend. Also, some emplaytamelated claims in the area of wage and hoyrutiis are not insurable risks.

Despite our efforts to control costs while stilbpiding competitive healthcare benefits to ourfstaémbers, significant increases in healthcare
costs continue to occur, and we can provide norassa that our cost containment efforts in thi;avél be effective. Moreover, we are
continuing to assess the impact of federal healhlesislation on our healthcare benefit costs, sigdificant increases in such costs could
adversely impact our operating results. There iassurance that we will be able to pass througldies of such legislation in a manner that
will not adversely impact our operating results.

In addition, many of our delivery and warehousespenel are hourly workers subject to various minimumage requirements. Mandated
increases in minimum wage levels have recently la@eihcontinue to be proposed and implemented atfbderal and state government levels
Minimum wage increases may increase our labor costs

We are also subject to the regulations of the Giizenship and Immigration Services and U.S. Qustand Immigration Enforcement. Our
failure to comply with federal and state labor leamsl regulations, or our employees’ failure to nfederal citizenship or residency
requirements, could result in a disruption in owrkvforce, sanctions or fines against us and advauslicity.

As of December 26, 2014, we had approximately 1f28time and part-time employees, 159 of whompaximately 12.4%) are represented
by unions. Of the 159 represented by unions, 18 bperating under a collective bargaining agreenwethave in the past been the focus of
union negotiating efforts, and it is likely that wall be the focus of similar efforts in the future

As we increase our employee base and broaden stubdtion operations to new geographic marketduiling as a result of acquisitions, our
increased visibility could result in increased gp&nded union-organizing efforts or we may acghirsinesses with unionized workforces, as
was the case with our acquisition of Allen Brothd@wo labor unions have been certified to reprebangaining units at our Chicago and New
York facilities. We have entered into a collectbargaining agreement with our union employees iw Nerk and negotiations with the
Chicago unions are ongoing, and currently the bangg unit workers in Chicago are working without@llective bargaining agreement.
Although we have not experienced a work stoppagkate, if we are unable to successfully negotiaterucontracts, or renewals of existing
contracts, if additional employees were to uniomizé& we acquire additional businesses with urdediemployees, we could be subject to \
stoppages and increases in labor costs, eithehiohveould have a material adverse effect on osirass, financial condition or results of
operations.
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We are subject to significant governmental regutati and failure to comply could subject us to enfernent actions, recalls or other
penalties, which could have a material adverse effen our business, financial condition or resultf operations.

Our business is highly regulated at the federatesprovincial and local levels, and our specifdtyd products, meat, poultry and seafood
products and distribution operations require vagilicenses, permits and approvals. For example:

» the products we distribute in the United Statessaibject to regulation and inspection by the Fip#l the USDA, and the products we
distribute in Canada are subject to regulation balth Canada and the Canadian Food Inspection Ag

« our warehouse, distribution facilities, repackagactivities and other operations also are sulbjertgulation and inspection, as
applicable, by the FDA, the USDA, Health Canade,@anadian Food Inspection Agency and state andnaial health authorities;
and

e our U.S. and Canadian trucking operations argestito regulation by, as applicable, the U.S. Dipant of Transportation, the U.S.
Federal Highway Administration, Transport Canate,$urface Transportation Board and provincialgpantation authorities

Our suppliers are also subject to similar reguiateguirements and oversight. The failure to comyity applicable regulatory requirements
could result in civil or criminal fines or penakieproduct recalls, closure of facilities or openas, the loss or revocation of any existing
licenses, permits or approvals or the failure ttawbadditional licenses, permits or approvalsawiurisdictions where we intend to do
business, any of which could have a material adveffect on our business, financial condition @utes of operations.

In addition, as a distributor and repackager oty food products and meat, poultry and seafomdiucts, we are subject to increasing
governmental scrutiny of and public awareness tiggrfood safety and the manufacture, sale, paokagtorage and marketing of natural,
organic and other food products. Compliance wittsghlaws may impose a significant burden upon parations. If we were to distribute
foods that are or are perceived to be contaminateatherwise not in compliance with applicable $aany resulting product recalls could have
a material adverse effect on our business, finhooiadition or results of operations. In Januarg20President Obama signed into law the |
Food Safety Modernization Act, which greatly expatite FDAS authority over food safety, including giving thBA power to order the rec.
of unsafe foods, increase inspections at food psiog facilities, issue regulations regarding tetsry transportation of food, enhance
tracking and tracing requirements and order therdigin of food that it has “reason to believe” dsilkerated or misbranded, among other
provisions. The FDA has taken a number of stepspbement the law, including, among others, theasge of proposed rules on preventive
controls and to strengthen the oversight of imgbft®ds. These actions have resulted in increasegbliance costs that are likely to continue.
We cannot assure investors in our common stockthieae actions will not adversely impact us or ke our industry further, including
suppliers of the products we sell, many of whomsanall-scale producers who may be unable or umgillo bear the expected increases in
costs of compliance and as a result cease opesatiogeek to pass along these costs to us.

Additionally, concern over climate change, incluglthe impact of global warming, has led to sigmifitU.S. and international legislative and
regulatory efforts to limit greenhouse gas (“GH®@Hissions. Increased regulation regarding GHG eonissespecially diesel engine
emissions, could impose substantial costs upomhese costs include an increase in the cost dii#leand other energy we purchase and
capital costs associated with updating or replaoimgvehicles prematurely.

Until the timing, scope and extent of such regolatbecomes known, we cannot predict its effecturbasiness, financial condition or results
of operations. It is reasonably possible, howethat such regulation could impose material costaswhich we may be unable to pass on to
our customers.

Federal, state, provincial and local tax rules ih¢ United States and Canada may adversely impactbhusiness, financial condition or
results of operations.

We are subject to federal, state and local tax#seirtnited States, as well as federal, proviremal local taxes in Canada. Although we believ
that our tax estimates are reasonable, if thenatdRevenue Service (“IRS”) or any other taxinghatity disagrees with the positions we have
taken on our tax returns, we could face additidaaliability, including interest and penaltiesnifaterial, payment of such additional amounts
upon final adjudication of any disputes could haveaterial impact on our business, financial caowlior results of operations. In addition,
complying with new tax rules, laws or regulatiomsill impact our business, financial condition @ulés of operations, and increases to
federal, provincial or state statutory tax rated ather changes in tax laws, rules or regulatioag mcrease our effective tax rate. Any increas
in our effective tax rate could have a materialactpon our business, financial condition or resoltsperations.
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An adverse outcome of an ongoing New York state daxlit could have a material adverse effect on dwsiness, financial condition an
results of operations.

We recently received the results of a New Yorkestak audit, which assessed us up to approxim&&9,000, net of associated Federal tax
benefits, for the tax years 2010 thru 2012 rel&beckrtain tax credits. We are reviewing those tdudilings and expect to negotiate any final
assessment with the New York state tax authoritidiscal 2015. We are unable to predict the outeahthis or any other tax audit or its
potential impact on our operating results or firiahposition. Regardless of the outcome, we maurstibstantial costs and the diversion of
management time and attention resulting from ttibtaund the negotiation regarding the final assesgnwhich could potentially have an
adverse effect on our financial condition, resafteperations and cash flows. We also face thethakthis New York state tax audit will lead
to a more complete tax examination of other taxyead areas of our business by various tax atitsriVe will continue to reassess the
adequacy of our existing tax reserves as the regnis progress and, through that process, we m&@yrdine the need to increase our existing
reserves by a material amount. If the matter weteetresolved in a manner that is more adverse tban we currently anticipate, it could hi

a material adverse effect on our business, finhooiadition and results of operations.

The price of our common stock may be volatile anat stockholders could lose all or part of their iegtment.

Volatility in the market price of our common stogtay prevent our stockholders from being able tbtkelr shares at or above the price the
stockholders paid for their shares. The marketgpofcour common stock could fluctuate significarity various reasons, which include the
following:

» our quarterly or annual earnings or those of otloenpanies in our industr

* changes in laws or regulations, or new interpretetior applications of laws and regulations, thatsgplicable to our busine:

» the publi’s reaction to our press releases, our other pabhliouncements and our filings with the Si

» changes in accounting standards, policies, guidantpretations or principle

e additions or departures of our senior managemesbpael;

» sales of common stock by our directors and exeeutfficers;

» adverse market reaction to any indebtedness wemoay or securities we may issue in the futt

e actions by stockholder

» the level and quality of research analyst covefageur common stock, changes in financial estimateinvestment recommendatic
by securities analysts following our business dufa to meet such estimate

» the financial disclosure we may provide to thélfm) any changes in such disclosure or our faitormeet projections included in our
public disclosure

» various market factors or perceived market fagtmcluding rumors, whether or not correct, inwiadyus, our customers, our
distributors or suppliers or our competitc

« introductions of new products or new pricing p@iby us or by our competitol

e acquisitions or strategic alliances by us or oumgetitors;

» short sales, hedging and other derivative trarsastin our common stoc

» the operating and stock price performance of atberpanies that investors may deem comparable tanat

» other events or factors, including changes iregarconditions in the United States and globaheates or financial markets
(including those resulting from acts of God, wacidents of terrorism or responses to such eve

Concentration of ownership among our existing exéise officers, directors and their affiliates maygvent new investors from influencing
significant corporate decisions

As of March 2, 2015, our executive officers, ditgstand their affiliates beneficially owned, in #ggregate, approximately 23.3% of our
outstanding shares of common stock. In partic@arjstopher Pappas, our president and chief exexafficer, and John Pappas, our vice
chairman, beneficially owned approximately 21.4%of outstanding shares of common stock as of M2y@®915. Additionally, upon the
closing of our pending acquisition of Del Monteg tthareholders of Del Monte will receive approxiehafl.2 million shares, or 4.8%, of our
common stock, as well as $38.3 million in convéetibubordinated notes, which notes may be convéntedhares of our common stock by
such holders at any time. As a result of theirigicemt individual ownership levels, these stocldab will be able to exercise a significant l¢
of control over all matters requiring stockholdppeoval, including the election of directors, ammeaht of our certificate of incorporation and
approval of significant corporate transactions.sidontrol could have the effect of delaying or grting a change of control of our compan
changes in management and will make the approveibdin transactions difficult or impossible withidhe support of these stockholders.
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If securities analysts or industry analysts downgi&our stock, publish negative research or repatsdo not publish reports about ot
business, our stock price and trading volume codiecline.

The trading market for our common stock will bduehced by the research and reports that industsgaurities analysts publish about us, ou
business and our industry. If one or more anadt®ersely change their recommendation regardingtogk or our competitors’ stock, our
stock price may likely decline. If one or more a3 cease coverage of us or fail to regularly ishlleports on us, we could lose visibility in
the financial markets, which in turn could causesiock price or trading volume to decline.

We do not intend to pay dividends for the foresdedhture and our stock may not appreciate in value

We currently intend to retain our future earninfany, to finance the operation and growth of business and do not expect to pay any cash
dividends in the foreseeable future. As a reshidt,success of an investment in shares of our constock will depend upon any future
appreciation in its value. There is no guaranteé shares of our common stock will appreciate lnear that the price at which our
stockholders have purchased their shares will betatbe maintained.

Our issuance of preferred stock or debt securitgerild adversely affect holders of our common st@aid discourage a takeover.

Our board of directors is authorized to issue up,8®0,000 shares of preferred stock without atipaon the part of our stockholders. Our
board of directors also has the power, withoutldtolder approval, to set the terms of any serigweferred stock that may be issued, inclu
voting rights, dividend rights, preferences over common stock with respect to dividends or ingkient of a dissolution, liquidation or
winding up and other terms. In the event that waespreferred stock in the future that has preter@ver our common stock with respect to
payment of dividends or upon our liquidation, dlgfon or winding up, or if we issue preferred dtauith voting rights that dilute the voting
power of our common stock, the rights of the haddd#rour common stock or the market price of ounemwn stock could be adversely affec

In addition, the ability of our board of directdesissue shares of preferred stock without anyaain the part of our stockholders may impede
a takeover of us and prevent a transaction faverabbur stockholders.

Additionally, in the future, we may need to raisiElidional funds or pay all, or a portion, of theyatsition price for a business we acquire
through the issuance of new debt, including lortgem, fixed-rate debt. If we issue new debt seimg;tthe debt holders may have rights senio
to those of our common stockholders to make claimeur assets, and the terms of any debt couldatestir operations, including our ability
to pay dividends on our common stock.

Some provisions of our charter documents and Delagviaw may have an-takeover effects that could discourage an acqudsitof us by
others, even if an acquisition would be benefictalour stockholders, and may prevent attempts by stockholders to replace or remove ¢
current management.

Provisions in our certificate of incorporation dmdaws as well as provisions of the Delaware Gdr@saporation Law could make it more
difficult for a third party to acquire us or incsgathe cost of acquiring us, even if doing so wdaddefit our stockholders, including
transactions in which stockholders might otherwesseive a premium for their shares. These provisinadude:

» authorizing the issuance of “blank check” preddrstock, the terms of which may be establishedshades of which may be issued
without stockholder approve

« prohibiting stockholder action by written consehgreby requiring all stockholder actions to beetalat a meeting of our stockholde

« eliminating the ability of stockholders to call gesial meeting of stockholders; a

» establishing advance notice requirements for nations for election to the board of directorsargroposing matters that can be
acted upon at stockholder meetin
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Item 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.

Item 2. PROPERTIES

The following table sets forth the location, pupasd approximate size of our distribution and omafe facilities as of March 2, 2015:

Approximate Size

Name/Location Owned/Leased Purpose (Sq. Feet)
Ridgefield, Connectict Leasec Corporate Headquarte 20,00(
Bronx, New York #1 Leasec Distribution Cente 120,00(
Bronx, New York #z Leasec Distribution Cente 234,20(
Columbus, Ohio Leased Processing Facility/Distributior 60,00(
Center
Cincinnati, Ohic Owned Distribution Cente 66,50(
Chicago, lllinois Leasec Distribution Cente 9,50(
Chicago, lllinois Owned Processing Facilit 18,10(
Chicago, Illinois Owned Distribution Cente 13,00(
Chicago, lllinois Leased Processing Facility/Distributior 108,50(
Center
Hanover, Marylanc Leasec Distribution Cente 55,20(
Miami, Florida Leasec Distribution Cente 27,00(
Pompano Beach, Floric Leasec Distribution Cente 24,20(
Los Angeles, Californii Leasec Distribution Cente 80,00(
Downey, Californie Leasec Distribution Cente 40,30(
Hayward, Californie Leasec Distribution Cente 40,00(
Burlingame, Californie Leasec Distribution Cente 9,60(
San Francisco, California Leased Processing Facility/Distributior 117,50(
Center
Las Vegas, Nevac Leasec Distribution Cente 29,80(
Las Vegas, Nevac Owned Distribution Cente 80,00(
Portland, Orego Leasec Distribution Cente 46,50(
Tempe, Arizon: Leasec Distribution Cente 14,50(
Seattle, Washingto Leasec Distribution Cente 10,50(
Richmond, BC, Canac Leasec Distribution Cente 15,60(
Toronto, ON, Canad Leasec Distribution Cente 25,50(
Edmonton, AB, Canada Leasec Distribution Center 11.50(
Total Square Feet 1,277,501

We consider our properties to be in good condijenerally and believe our facilities are adequatetir operations and provide sufficient
capacity to meet our anticipated requirements.

Item 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

From time to time, we are subject to various lggateedings that arise from the normal course sinass activities. If an unfavorable ruling
were to occur, there exists the possibility of derial adverse impact on our results of operatipnsspects, cash flows, financial position and
brand. We are not currently aware of any pendintipi@atened legal proceeding against us that dualé a material adverse effect on our
business, operating results or financial condition.

Item 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not applicable
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PART Il

Item 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT 'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND IS SUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc. Common Stock

Our common stock is publicly traded under the syifiB&IEF” on the NASDAQ Global Select Market. Thdléwing table sets forth the high
and low sale prices for our common stock for tsedl periods indicated as reported by the NasdackS$flarket during the indicated quarters.

Common Stock Price

High Low

Fiscal Year Ended December 26, 2014

First Quarte! $ 29.9¢ $ 19.7¢
Second Quarte $ 21.6¢ $ 17.2¢
Third Quartel $ 20.0¢ $ 16.0¢
Fourth Quarte $ 22.4¢ $ 14.8(
Fiscal Year Ended December 27, 201

First Quartel $ 19.8¢ $ 14.72
Second Quarte $ 21.0¢ $ 16.2¢
Third Quartel $ 24.1( $ 17.0C
Fourth Quarte $ 29.3: $ 22.1:

On March 2, 2015, the closing price of our commiaels on the NASDAQ Global Select Market was $1988share. As of March 2, 2015,
there were 49 holders of record of our common stébks does not include the number of persons whtisek is in nominee or “street” name
accounts through brokers.

We have never paid a cash dividend on our comnuamk stnd do not anticipate paying any cash dividemdsur common stock in the
foreseeable future. Furthermore, we are prohilfitet paying cash dividends under the terms of enia secured credit facilities and the
agreement governing our senior secured notes withewconsent of the lenders or noteholders, reisjedg thereunder.

Performance Graph

The following graph compares the cumulative totatkholder return on our common stock during thegakefrom July 28, 2011 (the first day
our stock began trading on the NASDAQ Stock Marketpugh December 26, 2014 with the cumulativel tetturn on the NASDAQ
Composite and the S&P Smallcap Food Distributoeind’he comparison assumes that $100 was investddly 28, 2011 in our common
stock and in each of the foregoing indices andrassueinvestment of dividends, if any.

The following performance graph and related infotimia shall not be deemed “soliciting material” oo be “filed” with the Securities and
Exchange Commission, nor shall such informatiomberporated by reference into any future filingden the Securities Act of 1933 or i
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, each as amenaledpeto the extent that we specifically incorpersitich information by reference into such
filing.
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COMPARISON OF 3 YEAR 5 MONTH CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETUR N
AMONG THE CHEFS' WAREHOUSE, INC.
NASDAQ COMPOSITE INDEX AND THE S&P SMALLCAP FOOD DI STRIBUTOR INDEX

i 220.00
200.00
180.00
16000
140.00
120,00
100.00

B0.00

60.00
7/28/11 12/28/11 5/28/12 10/28/12 3/28/13 8/28/13 1/28/14 6/28/14 11/28/14

—— CHEF —a— NASDAQ Composite +— 5&P Smallcap Food Distributor Index

ASSUMES $100 INVESTED ON JULY 28, 2011

July 28, December 30 December 28 December 27 December 26
2011 2011 2012 2013 2014
The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc. $ 100.0¢ $ 102.0¢ $ 88.0C $ 166.5. $ 125.8¢
NASDAQ Composite Index $ 100.0C $ 102.1: % 103.7: % 166.3: $ 206.0:
S&P Smallcap Food Distributor
Index $ 100.0¢ $ 96.4: $ 110.3C  $ 199.9C¢ $ 200.9°
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UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS

Maximum
Number (or
Total Approximate
Number of Shares Dollar Value) of
Purchased as Par Shares That May
Total Number Average of Publicly Yet Be Purchased
of Shares Price Announced Plans  Under the Plans ol
Repurchased®) Paid Per Share or Programs Programs

September 27, 2014 to October 24, 2 251 $ 16.71 — —
October 25, 2014 to November 21, 2( — — — —
November 22, 2014 to December 26, 2! — — — —

(1) During the thirteen weeks ended December 26, 20&4yithheld 251 shares of our common stock to fyatéx withholding requiremen
upon the vesting of restricted shares of our comstook awarded to certain of our officers and keywlkyees.

Equity Compensation Plan Information
See Part lll, Item 12 for information regarding weties authorized for issuance under our equitpgensation plans.
Item 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The selected consolidated financial data presdretmiv as of the end of each of the fiscal yeathénfive-year period ended December 26,

2014 have been derived from our or our predecessopany’s audited consolidated financial statemdrite data set forth below is qualified
by reference to, and should be read in conjundtibim our consolidated financial statements andrthetes and “ManagemeastDiscussion an
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Ggtiems” included elsewhere in this Annual ReporfFanm 10K. Our consolidated stateme
of operations for the year ended December 30, 20hiained a 5% week while all other years presented contained &2k

On July 27, 2011, we converted our company fromeWare limited liability company (Chefs’ Warehoudeldings, LLC) to a Delaware
corporation (The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc.). The seteconsolidated financial data presented beloatedb Chefs’ Warehouse Holdings, LLC
and its consolidated subsidiaries for periods pgodhe conversion and to The Chefs’ Warehouse,dnd its consolidated subsidiaries for
periods following the conversion.
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Consolidated Statement of Operations Data:
(Amounts presented in thousands, except for peesdraounts)

Statement of Operations Data
Net sales
Cost of sale:

Gross profit
Operating expens¢

Operating incom:

Interest expense, n

Gain on fluctuation of interest rat
swap

(Gain) loss on sale of ass:

Income before income tax
Provision for income taxe

Net income

Deemed dividend accretion on
Class A membe’ units

Deemed dividend paid to Class A
member’ units

Net income (loss) attributable
common stockholdel

Basic net income (loss) per
share

Diluted net income (loss) per sh:

Weighted average common shar
outstanding

Basic

Diluted

Balance Sheet Data (at end ¢
period)

Cash and cash equivalel

Working capital

Total asset

Long-term debt, net of current
portion

Total liabilities

Total stockholder equity (deficit)

December 26,

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED

December 27,

December 28,

December 30,

December 24,

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

$ 836,628 $ 673,548  $ 480,29  $ 200,63. $ 330,111
630,57 501,18: 355,28t 294,69 244,34(
206,05: 172,36« 125,00« 105,93« 85,77¢
173,04 135,78: 96,23 78,13¢ 64,20¢

33,01( 36,58 28,76 27,79¢ 21,57:

8,167 7,77¢ 3,67¢ 14,57( 4,041

— — — (81) (910)

(5) 8 18 6 —

24,84¢ 28,79¢ 25,07 13,30: 18,44:

10,63: 11,80¢ 10,56+ 5,60: 2,567

$ 14218  $ 16,99  $ 1451 $ 7,696 3 15,87+
— — — — (4,129)

— — — — (22,429

$ 14218 $ 16,99C  $ 1451. $ 769% $ (10,679
$ 056 % 0.7¢  $ 0.7C % 044  $ (0.50)
$ 057 $ 077 $ 06 $ 04:  $ (0.50)
24,63¢ 21,76 20,61 17,59: 21,33:

24,84 21,99t 20,92¢ 18,03: 21,33:

$ 332 % 2001  $ 118 $ 2,03 $ 1,97¢
$ 111,94  $ 117,50  $ 57,80: $ 29,76¢  $ 12,20¢
$ 376,19:  $ 354,75¢  $ 210,13  $ 107,87¢  $ 82,67:
$ 135,800  $ 140,847  $ 119,35.  $ 3959 $ 82,58(
$ 229,39¢  $ 222,69 $ 170,85.  $ 84,30¢ $ 131,48
$ 146,79  $ 132,060  $ 39.28: $ 2357C  $ (48,81%)
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Item 7. MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion should be read in conjigrctvith information included in Item 8 of this reqh. Unless otherwise indicated, the terms
“Company”, “Chefs’ Warehouse”, “we”, “us”, and “durefer to The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc. and its sdibsies. All dollar amounts are in

thousands.

Overview and Recent Developments
Overview

We are a premier distributor of specialty foodegiight of the leading culinary markets in the Unigtdtes. We offer more than 31,800 SKUs,
ranging from high-quality specialty foods and irdjests to basic ingredients and staples and ceifitifre-plate proteins. We serve more than
22,600 customer locations, primarily located in ddirgeographic markets across the United State€andda, and the majority of our
customers are independent restaurants and finegd@stablishments. As a result of our acquisitibAllen Brothers, we also sell certain of our
center-of-the-plate products directly to consumers.

We believe several key differentiating factors of business model have enabled us to execute raegy consistently and profitably across
our expanding customer base. These factors cafsasportfolio of distinctive and hard-to-find sp&ty food products, an extensive selection
of center-of-the-plate proteins, a highly trained anotivated sales force, strong sourcing capads|ie fully integrated warehouse managemet
system, a highly sophisticated distribution anddtigs platform and a focused, seasoned manageesmt

In recent years, our sales to existing and newoowsts have increased through the continued growdemand for specialty food products and
center-of-the-plate products in general; increasadket share driven by our large percentage ofistighted and experienced sales
professionals, our high-quality customer servica amr extensive breadth and depth of product ofés;iincluding, as a result of our
acquisitions of Michael's in August 2012 and AllBrothers in December 2013 as well as our pendingiaition of Del Monte, meat, seafood
and other center-of-the-plate products, and, &saltrof our acquisition of Qzina in May 2013, goet chocolate, pastries and dessert; the
acquisition of other specialty food and centerkad-plate distributors; the expansion of our exgstiistribution centers; our entry into new
distribution centers, including the constructioraaiew distribution center in Chicago; and the impod sale of our proprietary brands.
Through these efforts, we believe that we have laddmto expand our customer base, enhance andgifiveur product selections, broaden
geographic penetration and increase our markeeskiée believe that as a result of these effortshawes increased sales from $330,118 in !
to $836,625 in 2014.

Recent Accounting Pronouncemen

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standardsrddqa=ASB”) issued guidance to clarify the prinaglfor recognizing revenue. This
guidance includes the required steps to achievedteprinciple that an entity should recognizesraie to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount tflatte the consideration to which the entity expdotbe entitled in exchange for those good:
or services. This guidance is effective for fispahrs and interim periods beginning after Deceribel016. Early adoption is not permitted.
We expect to adopt this guidance when effectivd,ae still evaluating the impact this standard adlve on our financial statements.

Key Acquisitions

On October 24, 2014, we acquired substantiallyhallassets of Euro Gourmet Inc. (“Euro Gourmeti)halesale specialty distributor based in
Beltsville, Maryland. Founded in 1999, Euro Gournsed leading supplier of imported and domestaljdh food and seafood products. Euro
Gourmet currently supplies more than 3,000 prodiactome of the finest restaurants in the Mitkntic United States. The total purchase [
paid for Euro Gourmet was $2,063 at closing, and fuaded with cash from operations. In addition,hage agreed to pay the sellers up to
$250 in additional consideration if certain perfamoe metrics are met.

On December 11, 2013, we acquired substantialifhalbssets of Allen Brothers, Inc. (and its subsiels) based in Chicago, lllinois. Founded
in 1893, Allen Brothers is a leading processor disttibutor of premium quality meats to nearly 46iGhe nation’s finest restaurants, hotels,
casinos and country clubs. In addition, Allen Besthsupplies many of those same high quality prisdiecover 100,000 consumers through a
direct mail and e-commerce platforiihe total purchase price for the business is egtidhi@ be approximately $30,670, which includes
approximately $23,939 paid at closing with caskcpenls from our September 2013 common stock offefihg remaining $6,731 represents
pension liabilities we assumed of $2,878 and earoousideration of $6,000 to be paid upon the aehreent of certain performance milesto
over the next four years following the closing,seff by $2,147 received as an adjustment to thenpsecprice.
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On May 1, 2013, we acquired 100% of the equityregts of Qzina Specialty Foods North America If@z({na”), a British Columbia, Canada
corporation based in Pompano Beach, Florida. Falimd&982, Qzina is a leading supplier of gourntetaolate, dessert and pastry products
dedicated to the pastry professional. Qzina curentpplies more than 3,000 products to some ofittesst restaurants, bakeries, patisseries,
chocolatiers, hotels and cruise lines throughoaitdts. and Canada. The total purchase price pai@fma was $31,396, net of $578 cash anc
was funded with borrowings under the revolving dréatility portion of our Amended and Restated dité&greement. In the third quarter of
2014, the Company received a settlement of $491 fte prior owners of Qzina directly related topdites regarding the working capital
adjustment. The Company reduced goodwill by $4@Dumed $91 to offset legal fees that were incuimexbnnection with the dispute.

On December 31, 2012, we acquired substantiallgfalie assets of Queensgate Foodservice (“Quetrijgafoodservice distributor based in
Cincinnati, Ohio. Queensgate strengthens our fddtimathe Ohio Valley and provides a platform oniefhto leverage the Michael's
acquisition completed in August 2012. The purchagee paid for Queensgate at the closing was $21588 was funded with borrowings
under the revolving credit facility portion of tii¥edit Agreement that we entered into in April 200& also agreed to pay certain additional
consideration to the owners of Queensgate if aegarformance metrics were achieved in fiscal 28i@fiscal 2014. None of these
performance metrics were achieved.

On August 10, 2012, we acquired 100% of the ecétyurities of Michael's Finer Meats (“Michael’'s§ specialty protein distributor based in
Columbus, Ohio. Michael’s distributes an extengweetfolio of custom cut beef, seafood and otheteeaf-the-plate products to many of the
leading restaurants, country clubs, hotels andhoashn Ohio, Indiana, lllinois, Tennessee, Michigdantucky, West Virginia and western
Pennsylvania. The total purchase price for thertmss was approximately $53,509 and was fundedheittowings under the revolving credit
facility portion of the Credit Agreement that wetered into in April 2012. In August 2013, we pdie tsellers $336 to settle a dispute over the
final working capital settlement. In the third qtgarof fiscal 2014, we received a payment of appnaxely $1,500 from the former owners of
Michael's related to the settlement of a dispusoamted with certain inventory issues we expegdrat Michael’s. This settlement was
recorded as a reduction of operating expenses.

On April 27, 2012, we acquired 100% of the outstag@ommon stock of Praml International, Ltd. (“P&), a Nevada corporation. The
purchase price paid to acquire Praml was approeiyn&t19,500. We financed the purchase price paithi® outstanding common stock of
Praml with borrowings under the revolving creditifidy portion of the Credit Agreement we enteratbiin April 2012. Praml| was a leading
specialty foods importer and wholesale distriblboated in Las Vegas, Nevada, which serviced treMlegas and Reno markets.

Our Growth Strategies and Outlook

We continue to invest in our people, facilities aachnology to achieve the following objectives amaintain our premier position within the
specialty foodservice distribution market:

sales and service territory expansi

operational excellence and high customer servigglde

expanded purchasing programs and improved buyingp:

product innovation and new product category intuiigdun;

operational efficiencies through system enhancesnanio

operating expense reduction through the centradizaif general and administrative functio

Our continued profitable growth has allowed ustpliove upon our organization’s infrastructure, opew distribution facilities and pursue
selective acquisitions. This improved infrastruethas allowed us to maintain our operating mangira increasingly competitive
environment. Over the last several years, we hasteased our distribution capacity to approximaltetyillion square feet in 21 distribution
facilities.

Key Factors Affecting Our Performanc

Due to our focus on menu-driven independent reatdsy fine dining establishments, country clubselsocaterers, culinary schools, bakeries,
patisseries, chocolatiers, cruise lines, casindssgecialty food stores, our results of operatemesmaterially impacted by the success of the
“food-away-from-home” industry in the United Statesd Canada, which is materially impacted by gdrem@nomic conditions, discretionary
spending levels and consumer confidence. When eciermonditions deteriorate, our customers’ busiegsge negatively impacted as fewer
people eat away-from-home and those that do sg=msdhhoney. As economic conditions begin to improue customers’ businesses
historically have likewise improved, which contribs to improvements in our business. Likewise dihect to consumer business of our Allen
Brothers subsidiary is significantly dependent onsumers’ discretionary spending habits and weakoaeancertainty in the economy could
lead to consumers buying less from Allen Brothers.

Food price costs also significantly impact our hessof operations. Food price inflation, like thvettich we have experienced throughout 2011,
portions of 2012, 2013 and 2014, may increase ttlardvalue of our sales because many of our prisdai@ sold at our cost plus a percentage
markup. When we experience deflation, as we expeei@ during portions of 2012, the dollar value of sales may fall despite our unit sales
remaining constant or growing. For those of ouidpiais that we price on a fixed fee-per-case basisgross profit margins may be negatively
affected in an inflationary environment, even thowgr gross revenues may be positively impactedléne cannot predict whether inflation
will continue at current levels, prolonged periadsnflation leading to cost increases above letleds we are able to pass along to our
customers, either overall or in certain producégaties, may have a negative impact on us andustioimers, as elevated food costs can re
consumer spending in the fc-away-from-home market and may negatively impact our sal@ssgmargins and earning
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Given our wide selection of product categoriesyal as the continuous introduction of new produets can experience shifts in product sale
mix that have an impact on net sales and gros pnafgins. This mix shift is most significantly pacted by the introduction of new catego

of products in markets that we have more recemttgred, the shift in product mix resulting from aisitions, as well as the continued growth
in item penetration on higher velocity items sushdairy products.

The foodservice distribution industry is fragmenged consolidating. Over the past six years, we Isapplemented our internal growth
through selective strategic acquisitions. We belithat the consolidation trends in the foodserdistribution industry will continue to present
acquisition opportunities for us, which may allow/to grow our business at a faster pace than wédvadhierwise be able to grow the business
organically.

Performance Indicators

In addition to evaluating our income from operasipour management team analyzes our performaned loasnet sales growth, gross profit
and gross profit margin.

e Net sales growtlOur net sales growth is driven principally by chesign volume and, to a lesser degree, changescim q@lated to th
impact of inflation in commodity prices and produdilx. In particular, product cost inflation and ldgifon impacts our results of
operations and, depending on the amount of inflatiodeflation, such impact may be material. F@meple, inflation may increase 1
dollar value of our sales, and deflation may cdheedollar value of our sales to fall despite onit gales remaining constant or
growing.

e Gross profit and gross profit margi@ur gross profit and gross profit as a percentdgeeibsales, or gross profit margin, are driven
principally by changes in volume and fluctuationgdod and commodity prices and our ability to passny price increases to our
customers in an inflationary environment and méinta increase gross profit margin when our costdide. Our gross profit margin
is also a function of the product mix of our ndesan any period. Given our wide selection of proiccategories, as well as the
continuous introduction of new products, we canegigmce shifts in product sales mix that have gpaichon net sales and gross pr
margins. This mix shift is most significantly impged by the introduction of new categories of prdduic markets that we have more
recently entered, impact of product mix from aciigiss, as well as the continued growth in itemegteation on higher velocity items
such as dairy product

Key Financial Definitions

e Net salesNet sales consist primarily of sales of speciattydpicts, center-of-the-plate proteins and othed fo@ducts to
independently-owned restaurants and other highf@dkservice customers, which we report net of @@geoup discounts and
customer sales incentives. Net sales also inclalds &y our Allen Brothers subsidiary that areatite consumers

e Cost of salesCost of sales include the net purchase price maigrbducts sold, plus the cost of transportatiecessary to bring the
product to our distribution facilities. Our costs#les may not be comparable to other similar coiegavithin our industry that
include all costs related to their distributionwetk in their costs of sales rather than as opsgagkpense:

e Operating expense®ur operating expenses include warehousing, promeasd distribution expenses (which include sakénd
wages, employee benefits, facility and distribufil@et rental costs and other expenses relatedgtelvousing, processing and delivi
and selling, general and administrative expenségtwinclude selling, insurance, administrativegeand benefit expenses and
shar-based compensation expen:

e Interest expensinterest expense consists primarily of interesbonoutstanding indebtedness and, as applicaldeytite off of
deferred financing fee

Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of our consolidated financial stegets requires us to make estimates and judgnteatitaffect the reported amounts of assets
liabilities, revenues and expenses, and relatadodisre of contingent assets and liabilities. TR€ $ias defined critical accounting policies as
those that are both most important to the portrafalur financial condition and results and requive most difficult, complex or subjective
judgments or estimates. Based on this definitiombelieve our critical accounting policies inclutie following: (i) determining our allowant
for doubtful accounts, (ii) inventory valuation,tiviregard to determining our reserve for excessadnstlete inventory, (iii) valuing goodwill
and intangible assets, (iv) vendor rebates and giteenotional incentives, (v) self-insurance ressnand (vi) accounting for income taxes. Fo
all financial statement periods presented, thewe lb@en no material modifications to the applicatbthese critical accounting policies.
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Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

We analyze customer creditworthiness, accountsvadale balances, payment history, payment termshéstdrical bad debt levels when
evaluating the adequacy of our allowance for daulat€counts. In instances where a reserve hasreeerded for a particular customer, future
sales to the customer are either conducted ussigaa-delivery terms or the account is closely rwed so that agreed-upon payments are
received prior to orders being released. A faitorpay results in held or cancelled orders. We aftonate receivables that will ultimately be
uncollectible based upon historical write-off expace. Our estimate could require change basethamging circumstances, including change
in the economy or in the particular circumstandasdividual customers. Accordingly, we may be rizgd to increase or decrease our
allowance. Our accounts receivable balance was3$8Gnd $76,413, net of the allowance for doulatbdounts of $4,675 and $3,642, as of
December 26, 2014 and December 27, 2013, resplctive

Inventory Valuation

We maintain reserves for slow-moving and obsoletemtories. These reserves are primarily based invemtory age plus specifically
identified inventory items and overall economic ditions. A sudden and unexpected change in conspraé&rences or change in overall
economic conditions could result in a significahéwege in the reserve balance and could requireraspmonding charge to earnings. We
actively manage our inventory levels as we seakitomize the risk of loss and have consistentlyiendd a relatively high level of inventory
turnover.

Valuation of Goodwill and Intangible Assets

We are required to test goodwill for impairmentesst annually and between annual tests if evertisrar circumstances change that would
more likely than not reduce the fair value of aoripg unit below its carrying amount. We have &ddo perform our annual tests for
indications of goodwill impairment during the folurquarter of each fiscal year. We test for goodimifbairment at the consolidated level, as
have only a single reporting unit, based on theketarapitalization approach. The goodwill impairmenalysis is a two-step test. The first
step, used to identify potential impairment, inas\comparing our estimated fair value to our cagyialue, including goodwill. If our
estimated fair value exceeds our carrying valuedgdll is considered not to be impaired. If thergarg value exceeds estimated fair value,
there is an indication of potential impairment dnel second step is performed to measure the ambimpairment. If required, the second ¢
involves calculating an implied fair value of owragiwill. The implied fair value of goodwill is detained in a manner similar to the amount of
goodwill calculated in a business combination, Basuring the excess of the estimated fair valudetessmined in the first step, over the
aggregate estimated fair values of the individsakss, liabilities and identifiable intangiblesfase were being acquired in a business
combination. If the implied fair value of our gooitivexceeds the carrying value of our goodwill, taés no impairment. If the carrying value
our goodwill exceeds the implied fair value of g@odwill, an impairment charge is recorded foreeess.

In accordance with the aggregation criteria of AZB0D-10-5011, we evaluate our goodwill on a consolidateddasing a market capitalizati
approach. When analyzing whether to aggregateauaponents into one reporting unit, we consider twieeach component has similar
economic characteristics. We have evaluated theasoiw characteristics of our different componeimsluding our recently acquired
businesses, along with the similarity of the ogerst and margins, nature of the products, typeaustamer and methods of distribution of
products and the regulatory environment in whichoperate and concluded that the components continbbe one reporting unit. Under this
approach fair value is calculated based on the etgmce of common stock multiplied by the numbkowtstanding shares. Any material
adverse change in our business or operations t@awiel a negative effect on our valuation and thusean impairment of our goodwill. As of
December 26, 2014, our annual assessment indittadedie are not at risk of failing step one of go®dwill impairment test and no
impairment of goodwill existed, as our fair valueeeded our carrying value. Total goodwill as ot&rmber 26, 2014 and December 27, 2013
was $78,508 and $78,026, respectively.

Intangible assets with finite lives are testedifigpairment whenever events or changes in circurneimdicate that the carrying value may
be recoverable. Cash flows expected to be genebgtdtk related assets are estimated over thesaaseful lives based on updated
projections. If the evaluation indicates that therging amount of the asset may not be recover#iidepotential impairment is measured basec
on a projected discounted cash flow model. Theve th@en no events or changes in circumstancesgd?20it4 or 2013 indicating that the
carrying value of our finite-lived intangible assare not recoverable. Total finite-lived intangiblssets as of December 26, 2014 and
December 27, 2013 were $50,485 and $57,450, régplyct

The assessment of the recoverability of intangaisigets will be impacted if estimated future castvdlare not achieved.
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Vendor Rebates and Other Promotional Incentives

We participate in various rebate and promotionegitiives with our suppliers, including volume amdvgth rebates, annual incentives and
promotional programs. In accounting for vendor tebawe follow the guidance in ASC 605-50 (Emerdssues Task Force, or EITF, No. 02-
16, Accounting by a Customer (Including a Reseller)Gertain Consideration Received from a Vendod EITF No. 03-10Application of
Issue No. 0-16 by Resellers to Sales Incentives Offered tcs@mers by Manufacturers)

We generally record consideration received undesdhincentives as a reduction of cost of goods kolMtever, in certain circumstances, we
record marketing-related consideration as a rednaif marketing costs incurred. We may receive id@mation in the form of cash and/or
invoice deductions.

We record consideration that we receive for volamé growth rebates and annual incentives as atieduaf cost of goods sold. We
systematically and rationally allocate the consatien for those incentives to each of the undegyilansactions that results in progress by us
toward earning the incentives. If the incentives rot probable and reasonably estimable, we raberthcentives as the underlying objectives
or milestones are achieved. We record annual ingentvhen we earn them, generally over the agreepeiod. We record consideration
received to promote and sell the suppliers’ praglasta reduction of our costs, as the considerggitypically a reimbursement of costs
incurred by us. If we received consideration frdva suppliers in excess of our costs, we recordeangss as a reduction of cost of goods sold

Self-Insurance Reserves

Effective October 1, 2011, we began maintainingl&iasured group medical program. The program aimstindividual stop loss thresholds of
$125 per incident and aggregate stop loss threstalsled upon the average number of employeeseshinlthe program throughout the year.
The amount in excess of the self-insured levelslig insured by third party insurers. Liabilitiessociated with this program are estimated in
part by considering historical claims experience aredical cost trends. Projections of future logseases are inherently uncertain because o
the random nature of insurance claims occurrencgsauld be significantly affected if future ocaemces and claims differ from these
assumptions and historical trends.

Effective August 1, 2012, we became self-insuredivforkers’ compensation and automobile liabilitydeductibles or seffRsured retentions «
$350 for workers compensation and $250 for autoladiaibility per occurrence. The amounts in exagfssur deductibles are fully insured by
third party insurers. Liabilities associated witiistprogram are estimated in part by consideristphical claims experience and cost trends.
Projections of future loss expenses are inhereméertain because of the random nature of insurelag®s occurrences and could be
significantly affected if future occurrences andieis differ from these assumptions and historieaids.

Income Taxes

The determination of our provision for income tareguires significant judgment, the use of estimated the interpretation and application of
complex tax laws. Our provision for income taxeisnarily reflects a combination of income earned tamad in the various U.S. federal and
state jurisdictions. Jurisdictional tax law chandesreases or decreases in permanent differertegbn book and tax items, accruals or
adjustments of accruals for unrecognized tax bemefnd our change in the mix of earnings fromettaging jurisdictions all affect the overall
effective tax rate.

Management has discussed the development andiseletthese critical accounting policies with dugard of directors, and the board of
directors has reviewed the above disclosure. Onsal@ated financial statements contain other itdmsrequire estimation, but are not as
critical as those discussed above. These othesitectude our calculations for bonus accruals, @eiption and amortization. Changes in
estimates and assumptions used in these and tghes ¢ould have an effect on our consolidated &irzustatements.

Results of Operations

The following table presents, for the periods iatkel, certain income and expense items expressegasentage of sales:
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FISCAL YEAR ENDED

December December December

26, 2014 27,2013 28,2012
Net sales 100.(% 100.(% 100.(%
Cost of sales 75.4% 74.4% 74.(%
Gross profit 24.6% 25.6% 26.(%
Operating expenses 20.7% 20.2% 20.(%
Operating incom 3.€% 5.4% 6.C%
Other expense (income
Other expense 0.€% 1.1% 0.£%
Income before income tax 3.C% 4.2% 5.2%
Provision for income taxes 1.2% 1.8% 2.2%
Net income 1.7% 2.5% 3.C%

Fiscal Year Ended December 26, 2014 compared to E# Year Ended December 27, 2013

Net Sales

Net sales for the 52 weeks ended December 26, iB8igased approximately 24.2% to $836,625 from $&¥3for the 52 weeks end
December 27, 2013. The increase in net sales ea®#ult of organic sales growth and the acquisitibEuro Gourmet in fiscal 2014 and the
full year impact of the acquisitions of Allen Bretis and Qzina, which were acquired in fiscal 208 ta a lesser degree the acquisition of
Euro Gourmet in late 2014. These acquisitions autalifor approximately $98,969 of our net salesmgindn fiscal 2014. Severe weather in
Northeast and Midwest during the month of Decen@®4r3 negatively impacted net sales during 2013ppyaximately $4,000. The seve
weather continued to affect the Midwest and Norsh@#o the first quarter of fiscal 2014 and neggli impacted our business in those
markets. Internally calculated inflation for fis@014 was approximately 5.9%.

Gross Profit

Gross profit increased approximately 19.5% to $268 for the 52 weeks ended December 26, 2014 frbi2 864 for the 52 weeks ended
December 27, 2013. Gross profit margin decreasprbapnately 96 basis points to 24.6% in fiscal 2@bdn 25.6% in the year earlier period.
The decrease was due in large part to the shiftaduct mix toward more proteins, as well as thégpmance of Allen Brothers. Gross profit
margin in fiscal 2014 was also negatively impadigdnflation, most significantly in the dairy cat@y, a portion of which we were unable to
pass through to customers.

Operating Expenses

Total operating expenses increased by approxima#®hpPs to $173,042 for the 52 weeks ended Decehe2014 from $135,783 for the 52
weeks ended December 27, 2013. As a percentags eles, operating expenses increased 52 basis pwi20.7% for fiscal 2014 from
20.2% for fiscal 2013. The increase in our opegadirpense ratio is primarily attributable to highet shipping costs and catalog promotion cost
related to the Company’s Allen Brothers subsidamg increased investments in information technoinijiatives offset in part by the recovery of
approximately $1,500 related to a settlement vhighformer owners of Michael's associated with éeritaventory issues we experienced at
Michael's and the reversal of earnout liabilities dur Queensgate and Allen Brothers acquisitisrth@ performance metrics applicable to these
earnouts were not achieved for fiscal 2014.

Operating Income

Operating income decreased approximately 9.8% 300&® for the 52 weeks ended December 26, 2014 amdpo $36,581 for the 52 weeks
ended December 27, 2013. As a percentage of rest, sgderating income was 3.9% in fiscal 2014 corgbsr 5.4% in fiscal 2013. The
decrease in operating income was primarily duéédricrease in operating expenses offset in pattidéyncreased sales volume as discussed

above.

Other Expense

Total other expense increased $379 to $8,162 toydlar ended December 26, 2014, from $7,783 foyehe ended December 27, 2013. This
increase in total other expense is primarily atitéble to the $392 increase in interest expensehwhas higher in fiscal 2014 due to the
increased debt levels to fund the Company’s adipiis, as well as the higher interest rate on the@any’s $100,000 of senior secured notes
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Provision for Income Taxe:!

Our effective income tax rate was 42.8% and 41.68the years ended December 26, 2014 and Decermib2023, respectively. The increase
in effective tax rate from fiscal 2013 to fiscall20is due primarily to the negative impact fromewNYork state tax audit for the years 2010
through 2012, which was reflected in fiscal 201djusted for the impact of the audit, our effectise rate for fiscal 2014 was approximately
40.7%. Based upon current enacted tax rates, vaoigld change, we expect our effective tax ratdigmal 2015 to approximate 41.5%.

Net Income

Reflecting the factors described in more detaiv@hoet income decreased $2,775 to $14,215 foyagheended December 26, 2014, compare
to $16,990 for the year ended December 27, 2013.

Fiscal Year Ended December 27, 2013 compared to E#d Year Ended December 28, 2012
Net Sales

Net sales for the 52 weeks ended December 27, iB8iSased approximately 40.2% to $673,545 from &Z&BDfor the 52 weeks end
December 28, 2012. The increase in net sales wea®#ult of organic sales growth and the acquisstiof Allen Brothers, Qzina and
Queensgate in fiscal 2013 and the full year impadtichael’'s and Praml, which were acquired in dis2012. These acquisitions accounted fo
approximately $157,091 of our sales growth in fi&@13. Severe weather in the Northeast and Mideeshg the month of December 2013
negatively impacted net sales by approximately 2., @ur fiscal 2012 net sales were negatively irtgghby approximately $3,000 from
Hurricane Sandy in the fourth quarter of fiscal 20hflation for fiscal 2013 was approximately 3.466 $16,474.

Gross Profit

Gross profit increased approximately 37.9% to $362 for the 52 weeks ended December 27, 2013 frtizb $04 for the 52 weeks ended
December 28, 2012. Gross profit margin decreasprbapnately 44 basis points to 25.6% in fiscal 2@3n 26.0% in the year earlier period.
The decrease in gross profit margin was due irelgagt to the impact on our sales mix, as welhasdiecline in gross margins, in each case
related to our Michael’s subsidiary. Gross proférgin in fiscal 2013 was also negatively impactgdhe approximately $469 adjustment we
recorded in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2013 assalt of our discovery that inventory balanceswf Michael's subsidiary had been overstated
at the closing of the acquisition and thereaftéie @ecrease was offset by the prior year impakhuwficane Sandy.

Operating Expenses

Total operating expenses increased by approximates to $135,783 for the 52 weeks ended Dece@ihe2013 from $96,237 for the 52
weeks ended December 28, 2012. As a percentags eles, operating expenses increased 12 basis pwi20.2% for fiscal 2013 from
20.0% for fiscal 2012. The increase in total opgagpéxpense ratio was primarily due to increasedstments in management infrastructure,
higher amortization expense related to the Compaagjuisitions, duplicate rent on the Company’'snBrdNew York facility, investigation
costs related to the previously-disclosed Michaatsounting matter and third-party transaction<osfated to our consideration of acquisition
candidates. This increase in operating expensewats offset in part by the prior year impact ofrtitane Sandy as well as the prior year cost
from the accelerated vesting of stock grants tofoumer chief operating officer.

Operating Income

Operating income increased approximately 27.2%8&%81 for the 52 weeks ended December 27, 201pa@d to $28,767 for the 52 weeks
ended December 28, 2012. As a percentage of rest, sgderating income was 5.4% in fiscal 2013 corgbsw 6.0% in fiscal 2012. The
increase in operating income was due to increasled solume offset in part by the reduction in grpeofit margin and the increase in
operating expenses discussed above.

Other Expense

Total other expense increased $4,091 to $7,78héoyear ended December 27, 2013, from $3,69htoyear ended December 28, 2012. Thi
increase in total other expense is attributabldéancrease in interest expense, which was highiggcal 2013 due to the increased debt levels
to fund the Company’s acquisitions as well as highterest rates on the Company’s $100,000 of sesgioured notes.

Provision for Income Taxe:

Our effective income tax rate was 41.0% and 42.48tHe years ended December 27, 2013 and Decer8b2022, respectively.
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Net Income

Reflecting the factors described in more detaiv@hoet income increased $2,479 to $16,990 foyéae ended December 27, 2013, compare
to $14,511 for the year ended December 28, 2012.

Liquidity and Capital Resource

We finance our day-to-day operations and growtmarily with cash flows from operations, borrowingsder our senior secured credit
facilities, operating leases, trade payables an# balebtedness. In the second quarter of fischB2®e also issued $100,000 of senior secure
notes, the proceeds of which we used to repay Wimgs under the revolving credit facility portiofi@ur senior secured credit facilities. In the
third quarter of fiscal 2013 we completed a secondéering of 3,800,000 shares of our common steblch resulted in net proceeds to us of
approximately $75,037 after deducting underwritégs’s and commissions and transaction expensess@éea portion of the proceeds from
the offering to repay all of our then outstandirgrbwings under the revolving credit facility pami of our senior secured credit facilities, and
we subsequently used $23,939 to finance our atguisif Allen Brothers and $2,063 to finance ouguaisition of Euro Gourmet. The
remaining portion of the net proceeds was useddoeral corporate purposes. We believe that olr @asiand and available credit through
our existing revolving credit facility as discusd@elow is sufficient for our operations and planeagital expenditures over the next twelve
months. Depending on our acquisition pipeline adted opportunities, we may need to obtain addhilidebt or equity financing, which may
include longer-term, fixed-rate debt, in order tanplete those acquisitions.

On April 25, 2012, Dairyland USA Corporation, Thadfs’ Warehouse Mid-Atlantic, LLC, Bel Canto FoolsC, The Chefs’ Warehouse
West Coast, LLC, The Chefs’ Warehouse of FloridaCl{each a “Borrower” and collectively, the “Borrevs”), the Company and Chefs’
Warehouse Parent, LLC (together with the Compames/;'Guarantors”) entered into a senior secureditcfadlity (the “Credit Agreement”)
with the lenders from time to time party there®@Mbrgan Chase Bank, N.A. (“Chase”), as administeatigent, and the other parties thereto.
On August 29, 2012, Michael’'s Finer Meats HoldingsC and Michael’'s were each added as a Guaramaenthe Credit Agreement. On
January 24, 2013, The CheWarehouse Midwest, LLC was added as a Guarantaruhd Credit Agreement. The Credit Agreement pted
for a (i) a four-year, $40,000 term loan facilityataring in 2017, and (ii) a five-year, $100,000aking credit facility maturing in 2017. The
agreement provided us with the option of increasiimgamount of the revolving credit facility by tgp$40,000. We exercised this option on
September 28, 2012 and as a result, capacity wheeevolving credit facility increased to $140,000

On April 26, 2012, Dairyland HP LLC (“DHP”), an iirdctly wholly-owned subsidiary of ours, enteretbia financing arrangement under the
New Markets Tax Credi“NMTC") program under the Internal Revenue Codd 886, as amended, pursuant to which Commercialibgrd
LLC (“CLII"), a community development entity andsabsidiary of Chase, provided to DHP an $11,00&taation loan (the “NMTC Loan”)
to help fund DHP’s expansion and build-out of owork, New York facility and the rail shed locatedtzat facility, which construction is
required under the facility lease agreement. Boimge/under the NMTC Loan are secured by a firgirfiyi secured lien on DHP’s leasehold
interest in our Bronx, New York facility, includirgl improvements made on the premises, as wedrasng other things, a lien on all fixtures
incorporated into the project improvements.

Under the NMTC Loan, DHP is obligated to pay Cli)Ironthly interest payments on the principal ba&athen outstanding and (ii) the entire
unpaid principal balance then due and owing onl/&8j 2017. So long as DHP is not in default, iegtraccrues on borrowings at 1.00% per
annum. We may prepay the NMTC Loan, in whole goart, in $100 increments, at any time.

For more information regarding the NMTC Loan, seaeNLO to the consolidated financial statementeappg elsewhere in this report.

On April 17, 2013, the Borrowers, the Guarantors #ne lenders a party thereto entered into an Amend and Restatement Agreement to
amend and restate the Credit Agreement (the “Antbadd Restated Credit Agreement”). The AmendedRestated Credit Agreement
provides for a senior secured term loan facilihe(tTerm Loan Facility”) in the aggregate amountipfto $36,000 (the loans thereunder, the
“Term Loans”) and a senior secured revolving loaility (the “Revolving Credit Facility” and, togeer with the Term Loan Facility, the
“Credit Facilities”) of up to an aggregate amouh$40,000 (the loans thereunder, the “RevolvingdirLoans”), of which up to $5,000 is
available for letters of credit and up to $3,00@vsilable for short-term borrowings on a swinglbasis. Unutilized commitments under the
Revolving Credit Facility portion of the AmendeddaRestated Credit Agreement are subject to a parmariee of from 0.35% to 0.45% based
on the Leverage Ratio (as defined below). A frapfiee of 0.25% per annum is payable on the faceuatmf each letter of credit issued under
the Credit Facilities. On May 31, 2013, Qzina SakgiFoods North America (USA), Inc., QZ AcquisitigUSA), Inc., The Chefs’ Warehouse
Pastry Division, Inc., Qzina Specialty Foods (Angaator), Inc., Qzina Specialty Foods, Inc. (WA), &mina Specialty Foods, Inc. (FL) were
added as Guarantors under the Amended and Re&isgdid Agreement. On October 18, 2013, CW LV Resthie LLC was added as a
Guarantor under the Amended and Restated Cred@ehgent. On January 10, 2014, Allen Brothers andGreat Steakhouse Steaks, LLC
were added as Guarantors under the Amended andt&e§redit Agreement.
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The final maturity of the Term Loans is April 23)27. Subject to adjustment for prepayments, weeareired to make quarterly principal
payments on the Term Loans on June 30, Septemb&eg@mber 31 and March 31, with each quarterlyr@amt equal to $1,500, with the
remaining balance due upon maturity.

Borrowings under the Revolving Credit Facility port of the Amended and Restated Credit Agreemerg baen used, and are expected to b
used, for capital expenditures, permitted acquoisgj working capital and general corporate purposése Borrowers. The commitments undel
the Revolving Credit Facility expire on April 25027 and any Revolving Credit Loans then outstandiitigoe payable in full at that time. As
of December 26, 2014, we had $135,155 of avaitghilnder the Revolving Credit Facility portion dfet Amended and Restated Credit
Agreement.

Borrowings under the Amended and Restated Credigdigent initially bear interest at our option dher (i) the alternate base rate
(representing the greatest of (1) Chase’s prine (8) the federal funds effective rate for ovenmilgorrowings plus 1/2 of 1.00% and (3) the
adjusted LIBO rate for one month plus 2.50%) ptusach case an applicable margin of from 1.75%26%, based on the Leverage Ratio (as
defined below), or (i) in the case of EurodollasrBwings (as defined in the Amended and RestatediCAgreement), the adjusted LIBO r.
plus an applicable margin of from 2.75% to 3.25%sd1l on the Leverage Ratio. The LIBO rate is tteefoa Eurodollar deposits for a period
equal to one, three or six months (as selectetdwppplicable Borrower) appearing on Reuters Sdrd@®R01 Page (or any successor or
substitute page on such screen), at approximafef0la.m. London time, two business days prioheodommencement of the applicable
interest period.

The Amended and Restated Credit Agreement init@iytained financial covenants that required @) r#tio of our consolidated EBITDA (as
defined in the Amended and Restated Credit Agregnmeinus the unfinanced portion of capital expemdis to our consolidated Fixed Chai
(as defined in the Amended and Restated Creditekgeait) on a trailing twelve month basis as of the @& each of our fiscal quarters to no
less than (A) 1.15 to 1.00 for the period from dfilective date of the Amended and Restated Creglie@ment through June 30, 2014 and (B)
1.25 to 1.00 for the quarterly period ending Septen80, 2014 and thereafter and (ii) the ratiowfansolidated Total Indebtedness (as
defined in the Amended and Restated Credit Agregnemur consolidated EBITDA (the “Leverage Rajiédr the then-trailing twelve
months to not be greater than (A) 4.00 to 1.0Gfor fiscal quarter ending in the period from thieetfve date of the Amended and Restated
Credit Agreement through December 31, 2013, (B% 871.00 for any fiscal quarter ending in the pérfirom March 31, 2014 through
December 31, 2014 and (C) 3.50 to 1.00 for anyafigoarter ending March 31, 2015 and thereaftera Assult of the amendments to the
Amended and Restated Credit Agreement we entetednifiscal 2014, as described below, the Ameratedl Restated Credit Agreement
currently includes financial covenants that requir¢éhe ratio of our consolidated EBITDA (as defthin the Amended and Restated Credit
Agreement) to our consolidated Fixed Charges (éretkin the Amended and Restated Credit Agreenm@ny trailing twelve month basis as
of the end of each of our fiscal quarters to nolelse than (A) 1.15 to 1.00 for the period from dfilective date of the Amended and Restated
Credit Agreement through June 30, 2014, (B) 1.5D.60 for the quarterly period ending December2®1,4 through December 31, 2015 and
(C) 1.75 to 1.00 for the quarterly period endingréa31, 2016 and thereafter, (ii) the ratio of oansolidated Total Indebtedness (as define
the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement) to ansalidated EBITDA (the “Total Leverage Ratio”) fime then-trailing twelve months to
not be greater than (A) 5.00 to 1.00 for any fisparter ending in the period from March 31, 2(ifetagh September 30, 2015, (B) 4.50 to
1.00 for the fiscal quarter ending in the periaahirOctober 1, 2015 through December 31, 2015, (@5 # 1.00 for any fiscal quarter ending
March 31, 2016 through September 30, 2016 and (9 ® 1.00 for any fiscal quarter ending Septendier2016 and thereafter, and (iii) the
ratio of our consolidated Total Indebtedness (othan Subordinated Indebtedness) (each as definde iAmended and Restated Credit
Agreement) to our consolidated EBITDA (the “Serfi@cured Leverage Ratio”) for the then-trailing tweeinonths to not be greater than (A)
4.50 to 1.00 for any fiscal quarter ending in tleeiqgd from March 31, 2015 through September 3052(RB) 4.00 to 1.00 for the fiscal quarter
ending in the period from October 1, 2015 througlt@nber 31, 2015, (C) 3.75 to 1.00 for any fiscarter ending March 31, 2016 through
September 30, 2016 and (D) 3.25 to 1.00 for amafiquarter ending September 30, 2016 and thereafte

On April 17, 2013, the Borrowers issued $100,000qypal amount of 5.90% Guaranteed Senior Secu@ds\due 2023 (the “Notes”). The
Notes are guaranteed by the Guarantors includirdh&d’s, Michael's Finer Meats Holdings, LLC and The &i&Varehouse Midwest, LLC
(collectively, the “Notes Guarantors”). The Notegich rank pari passu with the Borrowers’ and N@esrantorsbbligations under the Cre
Facilities, were issued to The Prudential Insurabompany of America and certain of its affiliatesl{ectively, the “Prudential Entities”)
pursuant to a note purchase and guarantee agredatedtas of April 17, 2013 (the “Note Purchase @odrantee Agreement”) among the
Borrowers, the Notes Guarantors and the Prudehtiifies. The net proceeds from the issuance oRtites were used to repay then
outstanding borrowings under the Revolving Creditiity. On May 31, 2013, Qzina Specialty Foods tRgkmerica (USA), Inc., QZ
Acquisition (USA), Inc., The Chefs’ Warehouse Pad&livision, Inc., Qzina Specialty Foods (Ambassadrc., Qzina Specialty Foods, Inc.
(WA), and Qzina Specialty Foods, Inc. (FL) wereedids Notes Guarantors.
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The Notes must be repaid in two equal installmehtsfirst $50,000 of which is due April 17, 2018ahe second $50,000 of which is due at
maturity on April 17, 2023. Moreover, the Borrowensy prepay the Notes in amounts not less thard$130100% of the principal amount of
the Notes repaid plus the applicable Make-Whole Amidas defined in the Note Purchase and Guar&gezement).

The Note Purchase and Guarantee Agreement cofiitzngial covenants related to leverage and fixeatges that are the same as the
corresponding provisions in the Amended and Resi@tedit Agreement, as amended.

On September 25, 2013, we completed a public offesf 3,800,000 shares of our common stock at $2[ied share, and certain existing
stockholders sold an additional 1,375,000 shanetyding 675,000 shares sold to the underwritemter over-allotments. We recognized
proceeds of approximately $75,037 after deductimdeowriting fees and commissions and estimatedinffeexpenses. We utilized
approximately $12,500 of the net proceeds fronoffering to repay outstanding borrowings underrénlving credit facility portion of our
senior secured credit facilities, and subsequerggd approximately $23,939 to finance our acqorsitif Allen Brothers, $2,063 to finance our
acquisition of Euro Gourmet and the remainder fmegal corporate purposes.

During fiscal 2014, we entered into various amenuisi& the Amended and Restated Credit Agreemesfteot the following changes: (i)
permit one of our subsidiaries to incur up to $08,0f permitted indebtedness and associated Ileeabthin construction and permit mortgage
financing for a new warehouse facility in Las Vegdevada, (ii) increase the basket for additiondebtedness that is not otherwise permittec
by the terms of the Amended and Restated Credieérgent from $5,000 to $10,000, (jii) eliminate ceguirement to achieve a certain
minimum Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio (as defindiénAmended and Restated Credit Agreement) aspieB8ber 30, 2014 and to amend
Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio definition (A) to agtdor the significant investments we have made, expect to continue to make, in our
business to support our growth and (B) to elimirthgededuction of the unfinanced portion of Capitapenditures (as defined in the Amended
and Restated Credit Agreement) from the calculatioBBITDA utilized to calculate the Fixed Chargev@rage Ratio, (iv) permit a sale-
leaseback transaction involving our Las Vegas ibigtion facility that is currently under construani (v) increase the amount of assets that th
loan parties may sell in any twelve month periott@msactions not otherwise permitted from $1,@0$3,000, (vi) adjust certain financial
covenants and the periods during which the loatiggamust comply with such covenants, and (vii)assataximum permitted amount of Capital
Expenditures that may be made or incurred by the fmarties in future fiscal years. The Note Puretzasl Guarantee Agreement was similarly
amended to modify the Note Purchase and Guarargesefent in the same manner as the Amended anat&k§&tredit Agreement.

In January 2015, we entered into an amendmentetdthended and Restated Credit Agreement that edbme effective upon consummation
of the Del Monte transaction to, among other thirfggeplace the definition of Leverage Ratio witéfinitions of Total Leverage Ratio and
Senior Secured Leverage Ratio and establish lionithhe amount of leverage and senior secured Igedtat the loan parties may incur, which
limits shall decrease through September 30, 20 8n@dify the applicable rate for borrowings undlee Amended and Restated Credit
Agreement to provide for an increased interestwditen the loan parties’ Total Leverage Ratio isaédo, or greater than, 4.25 to 1.00, (iii)
permit the acquisition of Del Monte and the relastiance of our common stock and up to $38,250loérdinated debt pursuant thereto, and
payment of the earn-out consideration in connegtiith the acquisition of Del Monte so long as tbar parties are not in default under the
Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, and (igteran expansion option whereby Borrowers may as&r¢he borrowings available under
the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement in inengsrof at least $10,000, such that the aggregeteases do not exceed $60,000. We
entered into a corresponding amendment to the Rotehase and Guarantee Agreement that will becdi@etige upon consummation of the
Del Monte transaction to effect similar changeth®Note Purchase and Guarantee Agreement, withxiteption of providing for the
possibility of increased borrowings.

Upon effectiveness of the January 2015 amendmesatitded above, borrowings under the Amended anthResCredit Agreement will bear
interest at our option of either (i) the alternbtese rate (representing the greatest of (1) Chpse'e rate, (2) the federal funds effective rate
for overnight borrowings plus 1/2 of 1.00% and 8 adjusted LIBO rate for one month plus 2.50%¥ph each case an applicable margin of
from 1.75% to 2.50%, based on the Total Leverag®Ras defined above), or (ii) in the case of Elmtar Borrowings (as defined in the
Amended and Restated Credit Agreement), the adjud®O rate plus an applicable margin of from 2.7&%8.50%, based on the Total
Leverage Ratio.

Our capital expenditures, excluding cash paid éguisitions, for fiscal 2014 were approximately ¥¥5, of which $5,578 was funded with
restricted cash from the NMTC Loan and which afsdudes $2,869 of financed software costs. We belikat our capital expenditures,
excluding cash paid for acquisitions, for fiscal3Qill be approximately $21,000. The decreaserajegted capital expenditures in fiscal 2(
is being driven by the completion of the renovatmm expansion of our new Bronx, New York distribatfacility, the completion of the
renovation and expansion of our new Las Vegas, 8eedéstribution facility, and completion of our Hiwards ERP implementation.
Recurring capital expenditures will be financedhwiaish generated from operations and borrowingsrumal Revolving Credit Facility. Our
planned capital projects will provide both new axganded facilities and improvements to our teabgythat we believe will produce
increased efficiency and the capacity to contirmugupport the growth of our customer base. Futurestments and acquisitions will be
financed through either internally generated césh,fborrowings under our senior secured credilifees in place at the time of the potential
acquisition or issuance of equity or debt secugitiecluding, but not limited to, longer-term, fikeate debt securities and shares of our
common stock.
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Net cash provided by operations was $9,797 forfig014, a decrease of $841 from the $10,638 peaviny operations for fiscal 2013. T
primary reasons for the decrease in net cash prd\igt operations were decreased net income of $2/@d a decrease in cash provided from
non-cash charges of $80 offset by a smaller usasii for working capital of $584 and an increaseash provided by other assets and
liabilities of $1,430. The decrease in cash pradiffem non-cash charges was primarily due to dee®a cash provided from changes in the
fair value of earn-outs consideration of $424 aefbded taxes of $797, offset by increases in dggtien and amortization of $926 and
increases in charges for provision for allowanaedfaubtful accounts of $271. The decrease in casl tor working capital was due to
increases in accounts payable and accrued liasilitf $11,956 and decreases in prepaid expensedtardassets of $15,281 and was partially
offset by cash used for accounts receivable of&%band inventory increase of $11,204. Net cashiged by operations was $10,638 for
fiscal 2013, an increase of $2,247 from the $8&@Vided by operations for fiscal 2012. The primgggisons for the increase in net cash
provided by operations were increased net incon#2ef79 and an increase in cash provided from @eh-charges of $2,417, offset by
increases in cash used in working capital of $2 @8 other assets and liabilities of $122. Thedase in non-cash charges was primarily due
to increases in depreciation and amortization o883, deferred taxes of $1,053, offset by decreimselsarges for provision for allowance for
doubtful accounts of $510, stock compensation 87$%&nd change in fair value of earn-out considenatif $1,157. The increase in cash used
for working capital was due to increases in cagidder prepaid expenses and other assets of $@ridlaccounts payable and accrued
liabilities of $2,562 offset by decreases in casbadufor inventory of $5,525 and receivables of $8,8

Net cash used in investing activities was $23,&r3iscal 2014, a decrease of $66,026 from theash used in investing activities of $89,¢
for fiscal 2013. The decrease in net cash usedovirmarily due to decreased cash paid for acquisitioet of cash received of $78,479, which
was partially offset by increased capital experrditof $12,502. Net cash used in investing aatisitvas $89,699 for fiscal 2013, an increas
$13,992 from the $75,707 used in investing acssifor fiscal 2012. The increase in net cash usesldue to increased capital expenditures o
$8,518 and increased cash paid for acquisitio5@f74. Net cash used for investing activities #&5,707 for fiscal 2012, due to the
acquisition of Praml and Michael’s at cash purchasees totaling $72,521 during fiscal 2012.

Net cash used in financing activities was $2,698sical 2014, a decrease of $101,425 from the $IBprovided by financing activities

fiscal 2013. This decrease primarily resulted fithwn receipt of proceeds from our offering of commstack and the private placement of our
senior secured notes offset by payment of our RéwpICredit Facility in fiscal 2013. Net cash prded by financing activities was $98,727 in
fiscal 2013, an increase of $33,326 from the $6bg@vided by financing activities in fiscal 20 ¥oceeds from our offering of common
stock and the private placement of our senior stnotes in 2013 were used to pay off our Revol@redit Facility. Net cash provided by
financing activities was $65,401 for fiscal 2012iSTresulted from proceeds of our then-existingitiran facility, borrowings under our
Revolving Credit Facility, net of payments made#y off borrowings under our senior secured crieditities in place prior to our April 2012
refinancing.

Commitments and Significant Contractual Obligations
The following table summarizes our contractual gdgions and commercial commitments at Decembe?2@564.

PAYMENTS DUE BY PERIOD (1)

LESS THAN 1-3 35
TOTAL ONE YEAR YEARS YEARS THEREAFTER
(In thousands)

Inventory purchase commitmer $ 25,30¢ $ 25,30¢ $ — $ — $ —

Indebtednes $ 172,67 $ 12,01( $ 43,941 $ 56,76( $ 59,95¢
Capital lease obligations and software

financing $ 5,54¢ $ 1,60( $ 3,18t $ 76 $ —

Long-term operating leases $ 88,03 $ 12,37¢ $ 22,08:. $ 16,56 $ 37,01¢

Total $ 291,56t $ 51,29: $ 69,21« $ 74,08¢ $ 96,97¢

(1) Interest on our various outstanding debt imetnts is included in the above table, except fertéinm loan portion of our senior secured
credit facilities, which has a variable interegeraAt December 26, 2014, we had borrowings of @2Tillion under our Term Loan Facili
and no borrowings under the Revolving Credit FacilDuring the fiscal year ended December 26, 28i€ljnterest rate on our Term Loan
Facility was 3.19% to 3.44%. During the year enBedember 26, 2014, we incurred interest expen$8®4, under our Term Loan
Facility. See Note 1“Debt Obligation” to our consolidated financial statements for furihéormation.
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A portion of the indebtedness obligations showthmabove table reflects the expiration of our @redcilities, not necessarily the underlying
individual borrowings. In addition, cash to be padincome taxes is excluded from the table above.

One of the Company’s subsidiaries, Dairyland USAgBaation, subleases one of its distribution centerm TCW Leasing Co., LLC

(“TCW?"), an entity controlled by the Company’s falers. TCW leases the distribution center from tlee/Nork City Industrial Development
Agency. In connection with this sublease arrangerard TCWS5 obligations to its mortgage lender, Dairyland USdtporation and two of tt
Company'’s other subsidiaries initially were reqdite act as guarantors of TC¥#nortgage obligation on the distribution centdre Thortgag:
payoff date is December 2029 and the potentiabakibn under this guarantee totaled $9,328 at Dbee6, 2014. By agreement dated Ju
2005, the lender released all three of the Compasybsidiaries from their guaranty obligations vited the sublease between Dairyland US/
Corporation and TCW remains in full force and eff@uring fiscal 2014, the Company and its subsidgawere in full compliance with that
requirement. In addition, during the first quaé2015, TCW plans to refinance its mortgage witbtaer lender, with the result that the
Company and its subsidiaries will be unconditionalhd fully released from any guaranty of TCW’s tgage loan.

We had outstanding letters of credit of approxinya®d,845 and $3,820 at December 26, 2014 and Dieeev, 2013, respectively.
Substantially all of our assets are pledged asieohl to secure our borrowings under our Crediilitias.
Seasonality

Excluding our direct-to-consumer business, we galyedo not experience any material seasonalitywél@r, our sales and operating results
may vary from quarter to quarter due to factordsag changes in our operating expenses, managesnadility to execute our operating and
growth strategies, personnel changes, demand fgeroducts, supply shortages, weather patterngiandral economic conditions.

Our direct-to-consumer business is subject to seddlictuations, with direct-to-consumer centestiod-plate protein sales typically higher
during the holiday season in our fourth quartecpadingly, a disproportionate amount of operatiagtcflows from this portion of our business
is generated by our direct-to-consumer businefisaifiourth quarter of our fiscal year. Despitegn#icant portion of these sales occurring in
the fourth quarter, there are operating expensewipally advertising and promotional expensesytighout the year.

Inflation

Our profitability is dependent on, among other gfsinour ability to anticipate and react to chariggke costs of key operating resources,
including food and other raw materials, labor, ggeand other supplies and services. Substantied@ses in costs and expenses could impact
our operating results to the extent that such asme cannot be passed along to our customersmpiaet of inflation on food, labor, energy
occupancy costs can significantly affect the padiility of our operations.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of December 26, 2014, we did not have any oféfize sheet arrangements, as defined in Iltem 3@3(i@) of Regulation S-K.

ltem 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MAR KET RISK

Interest Rate Risk

On April 25, 2012, the Borrowers and the Guaranémtered into the Credit Agreement with the lendiens) time to time party thereto, Chase,
as Administrative Agent, and the other partiesdteerOn April 17, 2013, the Borrowers and Guaranéstered into the Amended and Restate
Credit Agreement. On December 3, 2014, the Borrevaed Guarantors entered into Amendment No. 3ad@\thended and Restated Credit
Agreement. Each of the Credit Agreement and thefdead and Restated Credit Agreement, as amendeesdsibed in more detail above
under the caption “Liquidity and Capital Resourcies"Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finah€ondition and Results of
Operations.” Our primary market risks are relateéluctuations in interest rates related to borraysi under our current credit facilities.

As of December 26, 2014, we had an aggregate $2ifiobn of indebtedness outstanding under the Rengl Credit Facility and Term Loan

Facility and $5.3 million under a software finargiagreement that bore interest at variable rateO\basis point increase in market interest
rates would decrease our after tax earnings byoappately $190 per annum, holding other variablasstant.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

Board of Directors and Stockholders
The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc.
Ridgefield, CT

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheets of The Chef#/arehouse, Inc. as of December 26, 2014 and Dece®tt
2013 and the related consolidated statements oatipes and comprehensive income, stockholdsgsity, and cash flows for each of the tl
fiscal years in the period ended December 26, 20hkse consolidated financial statements are thporsibility of the Company’
management. Our responsibility is to express aniopion these consolidated financial statementedasa our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighamBioUnited States). Those stand.
require that we plan and perform the audit to ebtaasonable assurance about whether the congalitiatincial statements are free of mat
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on & b@sis, evidence supporting the amounts and disds in the consolidated finan
statements, assessing the accounting principled asd significant estimates made by managementyvedls as evaluating the over
presentation of the consolidated financial statdmafie believe that our audits provide a reasontadxés for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaarferred to above present fairly, in all mate®spects, the financial position of The Chefs
Warehouse, Inc. at December 26, 2014 and Decenthe204.3, and the results of its operations andath flows for each of the three fis
years in the period ended December 26, 2014, ifoomity with accounting principles generally acasgin the United States of Americ

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bloédnited States), The Chefs’
Warehouse, Inc.’s internal control over financiapaorting as of December 26, 2014, based on criestablished ininternal Control -
Integrated Framework (201issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatirie Treadway Commission (COSO) and our repatec
March 11, 2015 expressed an unqualified opiniorethre.

/s/ BDO USA, LLP

Stamford, CT

March 11, 2015
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THE CHEFS’ WAREHOUSE, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(In thousands, except share data)

ASSETS
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivalel
Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $4,6730t4 and $3,642 in 20
Inventories, ne
Deferred taxes, nt
Prepaid expenses and other current a:
Total current asse

Restricted cas

Equipment and leasehold improvements,
Software costs, nt

Goodwill

Intangible assets, n

Other asset

Total asset

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payabl
Accrued liabilities
Accrued compensatic
Current portion of lon-term debt
Total current liabilities

Long-term debt, net of current portic

Deferred taxes, nt

Other liabilities and deferred cred
Total liabilities

Commitments and contingenci

Stockholder equity:

Preferred Stock - $0.01 par value, 5,000,000 shart®rized, no shares issued an
outstanding at December 26, 2014 and Decemberd23,

Common Stock - $0.01 par value, 100,000,000 stear#®rized, 25,031,267 and
25,032,216 shares issued and outstanding at Decé&®p2014 and December 27
2013, respectivel

Additional paid in capita

Cumulative foreign currency translation adjustm

Retained earning

Total stockholdel equity

Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity

December 26,

December 27,

2014 2013
$ 332 $ 20,01
96,89¢ 76,41

75,52¢ 64,71

3,50( 2,70¢

9,75¢ 16,25(

189,00 180,09

— 5,57¢

47,93¢ 27,58

5,35¢ 2,26¢

78,50¢ 78,02¢

50,48 57,45(

4,891 3,75

$ 376,19 % 354,75
$ 4315,  $ 33,92t
19,52: 15,80

6,64¢ 5,99¢

7,73¢ 6,86

77,06( 62,59;

135,80( 140,84

8,067 8,33

8,47¢ 10,91

229,39 222,60.

25¢ 25(

97,96 96,97

(699) (212)

49,27 35,05

146,79 132,06!

$ 376,19: % 354,75

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsteitements.
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THE CHEFS’ WAREHOUSE, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHEN SIVE INCOME
(Amounts in thousands, except share and per sharer@unts)

Fiscal Years Ended

December 26 December 27 December 28
2014 2013 2012

Net sales $ 836,62! $ 673,54! $ 480,29.
Cost of sale: 630,57: 501,18: 355,28t

Gross profit 206,05: 172,36: 125,00
Operating expense 173,04. 135,78: 96,23’

Operating incom: 33,01( 36,58: 28,76
Interest expens 8,167 7,77¢ 3,674
(Gain) loss on sale of ass: (5 8 18
Income before income tax 24,84¢ 28,79¢ 25,07t
Provision for income taxe 10,63 11,80¢ 10,56
Net income $ 14,21! $ 16,99( $ 14,51:
Other comprehensive incorr

Foreign currency translation adjustme (479 (214) —
Comprehensive incorn $ 13,73¢ $ 16,77¢ $ 14,51:
Net income per shar

Basic $ 0.5¢ $ 0.7¢ $ 0.7¢

Diluted $ 0.57 $ 0.77 $ 0.6¢
Weighted average common shares outstani

Basic 24,638,13 21,766,74 20,612,40

Diluted 24,844,56 21,995,04 20,926,36

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsteiements.

48




Balance December 30, 201

Net income

Stock compensatic

Shares surrendered to pay
withholding taxes

Balance December 28, 201

Net income

Proceeds from secondary
offering

Stock compensatic

Excess tax benefits on stock
compensatiol

Cumulative translation
adjustmen

Shares surrendered to pay
withholding taxes

Balance December 27, 201

Net income

Stock compensatic

Excess tax benefits on stock
compensatiol

Cumulative translation
adjustmen

Shares surrendered to pay
withholding taxes

Balance December 26, 2014

THE CHEFS' WAREHOUSE, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

For the Years Ended December 26, 2014, December 2013 and December 28, 2012
(Amounts in thousands, except share amounts)

Common Stock

Accumulated

Additional Other
Paid in Comprehensive Retained
Shares Amount Capital Loss Earnings Total
20,84059 % 20 % 19,80¢ $ — % 3558 % 23,56¢
_ _ — — 14,51: 14,51:
171,23: 2 1,54t — — 1,547
(23,750 — (346) — — (346
20,988,07 $ 21C % 21,008 $ — 3 18,06¢ $ 39,28:
— — — — 16,99( 16,99(
3,800,00t 38 74,99¢ — — 75,031
258,34t 2 1,20¢ — — 1,21(
— — 30 — — 30
— — — (214 — (219
(14,209 — (269) — — (269
25,032,21 % 25C % 96,97 $ (219 % 35,05¢ $ 132,06!
— — — — 14,21 14,21
21,00¢ — 1,374 — — 1,374
— — 11C — — 11C
— — — (479 — 479
(21,95Y) — (497 — — (497
25,031,226 $ 25C % 97,96¢ $ (699 $ 49,27  $ 146,79

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finksteitements.
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THE CHEFS’ WAREHOUSE, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Years Ended December 26, 2014, December 2013, and December 28, 2012

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income

(Amounts in thousands)

December 26

December 27

December 28

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigea by

operating activities
Depreciatior
Amortization
Provision for allowance for doubtful accoul
Deferred ren
Deferred taxe
Amortization of deferred financing fe
Write off of deferred financing fee
Stock compensatic
Change in fair value of ee-outs
(Gain) loss on asset dispo:
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of acqaissti
Accounts receivabl
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current a:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilit
Other liabilities
Other asset

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital expenditure

Purchase price adjustment (Cash paid for acquisitinet of

cash receivec
Proceeds from asset dispos
Net cash used in investing activitie

Cash flows from financing activities:
Change in restricted ca
Proceeds of secondary offeri
Proceeds from new senior secured |
Proceeds from senior secured n¢
Payment of debt and capital lease obligati
Borrowing under revolving credit lir
Payments under revolving credit li
Payment of deferred financing fe
Surrender of shares to pay withholding ta
Excess tax benefits on stock compense
Net cash (used in)/provided by financing activitie:

Effect of foreign currency on cash and cash eqaiva
Net change in cash and cash equival
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information
Cash paid for income taxi
Cash paid for intere:
Noncash investing activity
Capital least
Software financing
Liabilities assumed with acquisitio

2014 2013 2012
$ 14,21* $ 16,99( $ 14,51:
3,11¢ 2,521 2,07¢
5,13( 4,79¢ 1,85¢
1,19t 924 1,43¢
(108) 331 302
172 97¢ (83
87¢ 647 44¢€
— — 237
1,37¢ 1,21( 1,547
(1,581) (1,157) —
%) 8 18
(21,33)) (5,88%) (7,739
(10,809 39¢ (5,130)
6,07¢ (9,207 (2,060)
10,74« (1,217) 1,35(
1,83( (199) —
(1,095) (49€6) (374)
9,797 10,63¢ 8,391
(24,206 (11,709 (3,186
484 (77,99 (72,52))
49 — —
(23,679 (89,699 (75,707)
5,57¢ 5,43( (7
— 75,03’ —
— — 40,00(
— 100,00( —
(7,059 (5,27)) (30,13)
19,10( 70,80( 248,25!
(19,100 (145,80() (190,64
(841) (1,230 (1,739
(491) (26¢) (34¢€)
11C 30 —
(2,699) 98,72 65,40"
(112) 23( —
(16,686 19,89¢ (1,915)
20,01¢ 11¢€ 2,03:
$ 3,32¢ $ 20,01+ $ 11¢
$ 10,65: $ 11,45, $ 12,29:
$ 8,161 $ 6,01: $ 2,781
$ — $ 137 $ 347
$ 2,86¢ $ 3,32¢ $ —
$ 23¢ $ 10,94: $ —

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsteitements
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THE CHEFS’ WAREHOUSE, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amounts in thousands, except share and per sharer@unts)

Note 1 - Operations and Basis of Presentation
Description of Business and Basis of Presentati

The financial statements include the consolidatedants of The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc. (the “Comfjamand its wholly-owned subsidiaries.
The Company’s quarterly periods end on the thitte&niday of each quarter. Every six to seven ydasCompany will add a fourteenth week
to its fourth quarter to more closely align its yead to the calendar year. In 2011, this resutted53-week year ended December 30, 2011.
The Company operates in one segment, food prodstcibdition, which is concentrated on the East Wbt Coasts of the United States. The
Company’s customer base consists primarily of mgsinen independent restaurants, fine dining esthbiients, country clubs, hotels, caterers
culinary schools, bakeries, patisseries, chocafat@uise lines, casinos and specialty food stores

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements includehaladccounts of the Company and its direct andéstlivholly-owned subsidiaries. All
significant intercompany accounts and transacti@ been eliminated.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the Company’s consolidated firerstatements in conformity with generally acegpaccounting principles requires it to
make estimates and assumptions that affect repandints of assets, liabilities, revenues, expesseslisclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities. Estimates are used in determining, amother items, the allowance for doubtful accourgserves for inventories, self-insurance
reserves for group medical insurance, workers’ aamsption insurance, and automobile liability insgeg future cash flows associated with
impairment testing for intangible assets (includimgpdwill) and long-lived assets, useful lives ifiangible assets, stock-based compensatior
and tax reserves. Actual results could differ frestimates.

Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Revenue Recognitio

Revenue from the sale of a product is recognizékeapoint at which the product is delivered to ¢hstomer. The Company grants certain
customers sales incentives, such as rebates audiscand treats these as a reduction of salbg &éinte the sale is recognized. Sales tax billec
to customers is not included in revenue but ratbeorded as a liability owed to the respectivertgrauthorities at the time the sale is
recognized.

Cost of Sales (COS)

The Company records cost of sales based upon thrirehase price paid for a product, including agafhile freight charges incurred to deliver
the product to the Company’s warehouse.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses include the costs of facilipesduct handling and replenishment, protein prsiogscosts, delivery, selling and general
administrative activities.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investmanith an original maturity of less than three manth be cash equivalents. The Company
periodically maintains balances at financial ingtitns which may exceed Federal Deposit Insurarm@dation insured limits. The Company
has not experienced any losses in such accountsediedes it is not exposed to any significantsisk its cash in bank accounts.

Accounts Receivabl

Accounts receivable consist of trade receivablesifcustomers and are recorded net of an allowanadolibtful accounts. The allowance for
doubtful accounts is determined based upon a nuoftspecific criteria, such as whether a custonaerfiled for or been placed into
bankruptcy, has had accounts referred to outsidepdor collections or has had accounts signifiyapast due. The allowance also covers
short paid invoices the Company deems to be urataliée as well as a portion of trade accounts vabét balances projected to become
uncollectable based upon historic patterns.
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Inventories

Inventories consist primarily of finished goodspdicand related food products held for resale aad/alued at the lower of cost or market. Our
different entities record inventory using a mixtofdirst-in, first-out and average cost, which bedieve approximates first-in, first-out. The
Company maintains reserves for slow-moving and lelsinventories.

Purchase Incentive:

The Company receives consideration and productpaiseccredits from certain vendors that the Compaogunts for as a reduction of cost of
sales. There are several types of cash considenraoeived from vendors. The purchase incentiypgimarily in the form of a specified amount
per pound or per case. For the years ended Dece2b2014, December 27, 2013, and December 28, 204 2ecorded purchase incentives
totaled approximately $8,175, $6,653, and $5,18gpectively.

Concentrations of Credit Risks

Financial instruments that subject the Companyotaentrations of credit risk consist of cash, terapocash investments and trade
receivables. The Company’s policy is to depositésh and temporary cash investments with majan@ial institutions. The Company
distributes its food and related products to aamst base that consists primarily of leading mernived independent restaurants, fine dining
establishments, country clubs, hotels, caterelmary schools, bakeries, patisseries, chocolat@tgse lines, casinos and specialty food st
To reduce credit risk, the Company performs ongaieglit evaluations of its customers’ financial ditions. The Company generally does not
require collateral. However, the Company, in certastances, has obtained personal guaranteescdain customers. There is no significant
balance with any individual customer.

Equipment and Leasehold Improvemer

The Company records equipment and leasehold imprerts at cost. Equipment that has been financeddhrcapital leases is recorded at
present value of the minimum lease payments, wagroximates cost. Equipment and leasehold impremsnincluding capital lease assets,
are depreciated on a straight-line basis based egtimated useful life.

Software Cost:

The Company capitalizes certain computer softwiaenses and software implementation costs thahaheded in software costs in its
consolidated balance sheets. These costs weraeddarconnection with developing or obtaining cangp software for internal use if it has a
useful life in excess of one year, in accordandb viccounting Standards Codification (ASC) 350-#@érnal-Use Software.” Subsequent
additions, modifications or upgrades to interna-ssftware are capitalized only to the extent they allow the software to perform a task that
it previously did not perform. Internal use softeé amortized on a straight-line basis over agthoeseven year period. Capitalized costs
include direct acquisitions as well as software soitivare development acquired under capitalizadde and internal labor where appropriate
Capitalized software purchases and related devedopoosts, net of accumulated amortization, werd3gbat December 26, 2014 and $2,265
at December 27, 2013.

Impairment of Lon¢-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets, other than goodwill, are revigia impairment in accordance with ASC 360-10-F-1mpairment or Disposal of Long-
Lived Assets’ which only requires testing whenever events or gbarin circumstances indicate that the carryinguarhof the assets may not
be recoverable. If any indicators are presentcaverability test is performed by comparing thergiag amount of the asset to the net
undiscounted cash flows expected to be generatedtiie asset. If the net undiscounted cash flowsad@xceed the carrying amount (i.e., the
asset is not recoverable), an additional stepri®pred that determines the fair value of the aasdtthe Company records an impairment, if
any.

Debt Issuance Cost

Certain costs associated with the issuance ofidetstuments are capitalized and included in nomenirassets in the consolidated balance
sheets. The Company had unamortized debt issuasteaf $2,751 and $2,803 as of December 26, 20dDacember 27, 2013, respectively.
These costs are amortized over the terms of théeedebt instruments by effective interest ratthote Amortization of debt issuance costs
was $876 for the fiscal year ended December 26428847 for the fiscal year ended December 27, 2848 $446 for the fiscal year ended
December 28, 2012.

Intangible Asset:

The intangible assets recorded by the Company stoofscustomer relationships, covenants not to @aispnd trademarks which are amortize
over their useful lives on a schedule that apprexés the pattern in which economic benefits ofiikengible assets are consumed. Intangible
assets with finite lives are tested for impairmehenever events or changes in circumstances irdibat the carrying value may not be
recoverable. Undiscounted cash flows expected geberated by the related assets are estimatedhevassets’ useful lives based on update
projections. If the evaluation indicates that therging amount of the asset may not be recover#iidepotential impairment is measured basec
on a projected discounted cash flow model. Theve l@en no events or changes in circumstancesgdiisoal 2014, fiscal 2013 or fiscal 20



indicating that the carrying value of our finitedd intangible assets are not recoverable.
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Goodwill

Goodwill is the excess of the acquisition cost wfihesses over the fair value of identifiable resets acquired in accordance with ASC 350,
“Intangibles-Goodwill and Other.” Impairment tegifor goodwill is performed at least annually andrenfrequently if indicators of
impairment exist. Impairment testing for goodwtias a two-step approach, which is performed atdhsolidated level, as the Company has :
single reporting unit. Step one compares the falney of the Company (using the market capitalizatipproach) with its carrying value. If the
carrying value exceeds the fair value, there istamial impairment and step two must be perforn®tdp two compares the carrying value of
the entity’s goodwill to its implied fair value €L, fair value of the entity less the fair valuglod entity’s assets and liabilities, including
identifiable intangible assets). If the carryindueaof goodwill exceeds its implied fair value, tecess is required to be recorded as
impairment. There have been no events or changascimstances during fiscal 2014, fiscal 2013isedl 2012 indicating that goodwill may
be impaired.

Employee Benefit Program

The Company sponsors a defined contribution plaeigog substantially all full-time employees (th#01 (k) Plan”). Beginning in fiscal 2011,
the Company elected to make matching contributiorike 401(k) Plan at 50% of employee contributitna maximum of six percent of an
employee’s salary, capped at $2.5 per associatgeper The Company recognized expense relatedtdah(k) Plan totaling $717, $449 and
$337, respectively, for the years ended Decembe2@8B4, December 27, 2013 and December 28, 2012.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordaitbeASC 740, “Income Taxes.” Deferred tax assetkabilities are recorded to reflect
the future tax consequences of temporary differeibetween the financial reporting basis of asseddiabilities and their tax basis at each
yea-end. These amounts are adjusted, as appropoatfect enacted changes in tax rates expectbd io effect when the temporary
differences reverse. The Company follows certadovigions of ASC 740, “Income Taxes” (previously oejed as Interpretation No. 48,
“Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes — ateipretation of FASB Statement No. 109”) which bbshed a single model to address
accounting for uncertain tax positions and clasitiee accounting for income taxes by prescribingramum recognition threshold that a tax
position is required to meet before being recoghinehe financial statements. The Company evasuateertain tax positions, if any, by
determining if it is more likely than not to be twised upon examination by the tax authorities. Thenpany records uncertain tax positions
when it is estimable and probable that such litsédihave been incurred. The Company, when requiviidaccrue interest and penalties rele
to income tax matters in income tax expense.

Commitments and Contingencies

The Company is subject to various claims and cgsticies related to lawsuits, taxes and environrheratters, as well as commitments undel
contractual and other commercial obligations. Tlen@any recognizes liabilities for contingencies anchmitments when a loss is probable
and can be reasonably estimated.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company measures stock-based compensatioa gitatht date based on the fair value of the aviRedtricted stock awards are valued
based on the fair value of the stock on the grate dnd the related compensation expense is remmmjaver the service period. Similarly, for
time-based restricted stock awards subject to gradsting, the Company ensures that the compensatjpense recognized is at least equal t
the vested portion of the award.

Self-Insurance Reserves

Effective October 1, 2011, the Company began migiintg a self-insured group medical program. Thegpa contains stop loss thresholds of
$125 per incident and aggregate stop loss threstizlged upon the average number of employeeseshinlthe program during the year. The
amount in excess of the self-insured levels iy fisured by third party insurers. Liabilities asisted with this program are estimated in part
by considering historical claims experience andioaaost trends. Projections of future loss expsrare inherently uncertain because of the
random nature of insurance claims occurrences anid @e significantly affected if future occurres@nd claims differ from these assumpt
and historical trends.

Effective August 1, 2012, the Company became ssliitied for workers’ compensation and automobilaillig to deductibles or self-insured
retentions of $350 for workers compensation and$2abautomobile liability per occurrence. The amtsuin excess of the Company’s
deductibles are fully insured by third party ingsre.iabilities associated with this program areneated in part by considering historical cla
experience and cost trends. Projections of fulnse &xpenses are inherently uncertain because aditilom nature of insurance claims
occurrences and could be significantly affectefdtifire occurrences and claims differ from thesemggions and historical trends.
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Fair Value Measurements

The carrying values of the Company’s assets ahditias approximate the fair values except for thie value of the Company’s fixed rate
debt, which is based on prevailing interest ratesraarket prices for debt of similar terms and maés. The carrying amount of the
Company'’s senior secured notes at December 26, 20drbximates fair value as the interest rate nbthby the Company approximates the
prevailing interest rates for similar instrumemts.of December 26, 2014, the Company’s only assdiabilities measured at fair value were
the contingent earn-out liabilities for the AllemdBhers, Queensgate and Euro Gourmet acquisifidrese liabilities were estimated using
Level 3 inputs and had fair values of $5,696, $0 $243 at December 26, 2014, respectively.

Note 3 — Net Income per Share
The following table sets forth the computation asiz and diluted earnings per share:

Fiscal Year Ende

December 26, December 27, December 28,
2014 2013 2012

Net income $ 14,21¢ $ 16,99( $ 14,51:
Net income per share

Basic $ 0.5¢ $ 0.7¢ $ 0.7¢
Diluted $ 0.57 $ 0.77 $ 0.6¢
Weighted average common shares outstanc

Basic 24,638,13 21,766,74 20,612,40
Diluted 24,844,56 21,995,04 20,926,36

Reconciliation of earnings per share:

Fiscal Year Ende

December 26, December 27, December 28,
2014 2013 2012

Numerator:
Net income $ 14,21°¢ $ 16,99( $ 14,51:
Denominator:
Weighted average basic common shares outstal 24,638,13 21,766,74 20,612,40
Dilutive effect of unvested common shares 206,43( 228,29¢ 313,95!¢
Weighted average diluted common shares outstanding 24,844,56 21,995,04 20,926,36

We had unvested common shares of 8,903, 20,9480 #mt were anti-dilutive at December 26, 2014, dbealoer 27, 2013, and December 28,
2012, respectively.

Note 4 — Fair Value Measurements

The Company accounts for certain assets and ligkifat fair value. The Company categorizes eadts ¢dir value measurements in one of the
following three levels based on the lowest leveliinthat is significant to the fair value measuraete its entirety:

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology amedjusted quoted prices in active markets for idahtissets.
Level 2 - Observable inputs other than quoted prineactive markets for identical assets and ligdsl include the following:
a) quoted prices for similar assets in active mark
b) quoted prices for identical or similar assets mctive markets
¢) inputs other than quoted prices that are obsenfabklhe asset; an
d) inputs that are derived principally from or corrobied by observable market data by correlatiortleeromeans
If the asset has a specified (contractual) term#vel 2 input must be observable for substagtthl full term of the asset.

Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology anehservable (i.e., supported by little or no maggdivity) and significant to the fair
value measure.
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Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Valt

As of December 26, 2014 the Company’s only asgdiahlities measured at fair value were the cogéint earn-out liabilities for the Allen
Brothers, Euro Gourmet and Queensgate acquisitidrese liabilities were estimated using Level duispand had fair values of $5,696, $243
and $0 at December 26, 2014, respectively. Thabdities are reflected as accrued liabilities atiter liabilities and deferred credits on the
balance sheet. The fair value of contingent comatdm was determined based on a probability-bagpdoach which includes projected
results, percentage probability of occurrence aedapplication of a discount rate to present vilegpayments. A significant change in
projected results, discount rate, or probabilitiesccurrence could result in a significantly higle lower fair value measurement.

The following table presents the changes in Levai®ingent consideration liability:

Euro Allen
Gourmet Brothers Queensgat Total
Balance December 28, 20 $ — % — — —
Opening liability — 6,322 2,11¢ 8,44(
Payment: — — — —
Changes in fair valu — — (1,15¢) (1,15§)
Balance December 27, 20 — 6,322 96( 7,28z
Opening liability 23¢ — — 23¢
Payment: — — — —
Changes in fair valu 5 (62€) (960) (1,587
Balance December 26, 20 $ 24t % 569 $ 0 5,93¢

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts reported in the Company’s aligeted balance sheets for accounts receivabl@aeomilints payable approximate fair
value, due to the immediate to short-term matwftthese financial instruments. The fair valueshef current and former revolving credit
facilities and term loans approximated their boalues as of December 26, 2014 and December 27, 2681Bese instruments had variable
interest rates that reflected current market ratke.carrying amount of the Company’s senior satames at December 26, 2014
approximates fair value, as the interest rate nbthby the Company approximates the prevailingésterates for similar instruments.

Note 5 — Acquisitions

The Company accounts for acquisitions in accordantteASC 805 “Business Combinations”. Assets amiand liabilities assumed are
recorded in the accompanying consolidated balaineets at their estimated fair values, as of theiaitipn date. Results of operations are
included in the Company’s financial statements ftomdate of acquisition. For the acquisitions ddielow, the Company used the income
approach to determine the fair value of the custamlationships, the relief from royalty methoddetermine the fair value of trademarks and
the comparison of economic income using the witthfaut approach to determine the fair value of ntompete agreements. The Company
Level 3 inputs to determine the fair value of hlt$e intangible assets.

On December 11, 2013, the Company acquired submtauat| the assets of Allen Brothers, Inc. (atglsubsidiaries) based in Chicago, Illine
Founded in 1893, Allen Brothers is a leading preoesnd distributor of premium quality meats totlagion’s finest restaurants, hotels, cas
and country clubs. In addition, Allen Brothers sliggomany of those same high quality products twsamers through a direct mail and e-
commerce platformThe total purchase price for the business is estidh@ be approximately $30,670, which includesraximately $23,939
paid at closing with cash proceeds from the ComisaBgptember 2013 common stock offering. The remgifi6,731 represents pension
liabilities the Company assumed of $2,878 and edroonsideration of $6,000 to be paid upon theeaahnent of certain performance
milestones over the next four years following thesing, offset by $2,147 received as an adjustri@tite purchase price. The Company
expensed $300 of professional fees in operatingresgs related to the acquisition during the yedeémbecember 27, 2013. During fiscal
2014, the Company completed a valuation of theitdm@gnd intangible assets of Allen Brothers athefacquisition date. These assets were
valued at fair value using Level 3 inputs. Custoiists will be amortized over 20 years and traddmavill be amortized over 40 years.
Goodwill for the Allen Brothers acquisition will kemortized over 15 years for tax purposes.
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On May 1, 2013, the Company acquired 100% of thetginterests of Qzina Specialty Foods North Aroariinc. (“Qzina”), a British

Columbia, Canada corporation based in Pompano Bé&#atida. Founded in 1982, Qzina is a leading §appf gourmet chocolate, dessert
and pastry products dedicated to the pastry priofieals At the time of its acquisition, Qzina sugglisome of the finest restaurants, bakeries,
patisseries, chocolatiers, hotels and cruise limesighout the U.S. and Canada. The total purchase for Qzina was approximately $31,796,
net of $578 of cash and was funded with borrowingder the revolving credit facility portion of ti@®@mpany’s senior secured credit facilities.
In the third quarter of 2014, the Company rece@egttlement of $491 from the prior owners of Qairactly related to disputes regarding the
working capital adjustment. The Company reducedigalbby $400 and used $91 to offset legal fees tiere incurred in connection with the
dispute. The Company expensed $149 of legal feepenating expenses related to the acquisitioheryear ended December 27, 2013. The
Company has completed a formal valuation of thgitde and intangible assets of Qzina, as of thaiia@pn date. These assets were valued ¢
fair value using Level 3 inputs. Other intangibssets consist of trademarks, which will be amodtiaeer 20 years, customer relationships,
which will be amortized over 20 years and covenantsto compete, which will be amortized oveb ®ears. Goodwill for the Qzina acquisiti

is not deductible for tax purposes.

On December 31, 2012, the Company purchased stibdi{aall the assets of Queensgate Foodservicei¢&psgate”)a foodservice distributc
based in Cincinnati, Ohio. The purchase price foe€hsgate was approximately $21,934, which the @agnfinanced with borrowings under
the revolving credit facility portion of the Compas then-existing senior secured credit facilitidglditionally, the purchase price could have
been increased by up to $2,400 based upon thevachént of certain EBITDA milestones over a two-ypariod following the closing. This
contingent consideration was not earned, as Quatndid not meet the EBITDA threshold requiring mpayt for fiscal 2014 and 2013 results,
and was recorded as a reduction of operating exgeiifie Company expensed $69 of legal fees in tipgrexpenses related to the acquisitior
in the year ended December 27, 2013. The Compasgdrapleted a formal valuation of the tangible em@ngible assets of Queensgate. T
assets were valued at fair value using Level 3tsipDther intangible assets consist of customatiogiships, which will be amortized over 7
years, and covenants not to compete, which wiinertized over 5 years. Goodwill for the Queensgatgiisition will be amortized for te
purposes over 15 years.

On August 10, 2012, the Company acquired 100%ebthistanding equity interests of Michael’s for mpmately $52,973, net of $536 of
cash. In August of 2013, we paid the sellers $83%ettle a dispute over the final working capittlsment. Michael’s distributes an extensive
portfolio of custom cut beef, seafood and othet&eaf-the-plate products to many of the leadirgfaarants, country clubs, hotels and casino
in Ohio, Indiana, lllinois, Tennessee, Michigan nikecky, West Virginia and western Pennsylvania. Tooenpany financed the purchase price
with borrowings under the revolving credit faciliprtion of the Company’s then-existing senior sedwredit facilities. During the year ended
December 28, 2012, the Company expensed $85 dffegmin operating expenses related to the adprisiThe Company has completed a
formal valuation of the intangible and certain tétgyassets of Michael's. The financial statemeetiect the results of the valuation of the
goodwill, intangible assets and fixed assets the@my acquired in the transaction. These assets wadued at fair value using Level 3 inputs.
Other intangible assets consist of customer redakips, which will be amortized over 10 years, tremlemarks, which will be amortized over
12-20 years, and covenants not to compete, whithbeamortized over 5 years. Goodwill for the Maelis acquisition will be amortized for
tax purposes over a period of 15 years.

On April 27, 2012, the Company acquired 100% ofdbtstanding common stock of Praml Internationdd, La Nevada corporation (“Praml”),
for approximately $19,548 in cash. Praml is a legdipecialty foodservice company that has sentited.as Vegas and Reno markets for ove
20 years. The Company financed the purchase pitbebarrowings under the revolving credit facilipprtion of the Company’s then-existing
senior secured credit facilities. During the yemded December 28, 2012, the Company expensed $28aiffees in operating expenses rel

to the acquisition. The Company has completed aati@in of the tangible and intangible assets ofrffPrahese assets were valued at fair value
using Level 3 inputs. Other intangible assets aridicustomer relationships, which will be amatizover 11 years, covenants not to compet
which will be amortized over 6 years, and two tradeks, which will be amortized over 1-20 years. @Gaill for the Praml acquisition is not
deductible for tax purposes.

The table below details the assets and liabilaeguired as part of the acquisitions of Allen Besth which was effective as of December 9,
2013, Qzina, which was effective as of May 1, 20Q8eensgate, which was effective as of Decembe2@I2, Michael's, which was effective
as of August 10, 2012, and Praml, which was effectis of April 27, 2012, and the allocation of phuechase price paid in connection with
these acquisitions.
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Allen Brothers Qzina Queensgat Michae’s Praml

Current assel $ 15,79: $ 22,49¢ $ 4,14( $ 16,16: $ 3,31t
Customer relationshiy 2,52 6,07( 1,52( 12,43: 4,18
Trademarks 4,78 4,411 — 12,72¢ 1,36¢
Goodwill 10,92 5,44¢ 15,24: 12,23¢ 12,86¢
Non-compete agreeme — 2,48( 2,92( 477 1,25¢
Fixed asset 4,37( 90¢ 1,90¢ 2,871 —
Other asset 33

Deferred tax asse — — — 29 —
Deferred tax liability — (4,3072) (863) — (2,67¢€)
Capital lease — (137) — (349 —
Earr-out liability (6,327) — (2,119 — —
Pension exit liability (2,87¢) — — — —
Unfavorable lease — (6) — — —
Current liabilities (7,436 (5,39)) (817) (2,749 (767)
Cash purchase price $ 21,79: $ 31,97 $ 21,93« $ 53,84! $ 19,54¢

Note 6 — Inventory

Inventory consists of finished product. Our differentities record inventory using a mixture o§fim, first-out and average cost, which we
believe approximates first-in, first-out. Inventasyreflected net of reserves for shrinkage analessence totaling $1,130 and $683 at
December 26, 2014 and December 27, 2013, resplctive

Note 7 — Restricted Cash

On April 26, 2012, Dairyland HP LLC, an indirectisholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (“DHP”), erdgd into a financing arrangement
under the New Markets Tax Credit (‘“NMTC") programder the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as ameftidedCode”), pursuant to which
Commercial Lending Il LLC (“CLII"), a community dedopment entity and a subsidiary of JPMorgan Cliges®, N.A. (“Chase”)provided tc
DHP an $11,000 construction loan (the “NMTC Loatt help fund DHP’s expansion and build-out of tre@pany’s new Bronx, New York
distribution facility. The proceeds from the NMT@©@&n were fully utilized during fiscal 2014. Priartheir use, the proceeds from this loan
were reflected as restricted cash on the balareet.shor more information on the NMTC Loan see Ndie

Note 8 — Equipment and Leasehold Improvements

Plant, equipment and leasehold improvements cakadtthe following:

As of
Useful Lives December 26, 201 December 27, 201

Land Indefinite  $ 1,464 $ 1,46¢
Buildings 20 year 3,672 3,67
Machinery and equipme 5-10 year 7,22( 7,111
Computers, data processing and other equip 3-7 year 6,42¢ 6,00¢
Leasehold improvemen 7-15 year 9,057 9,091
Furniture and fixture 7 year 904 622
Vehicles 5-7 year. 987 1,001
Other 7 year. 95 9%
Constructiorin-process 36,20( 14,41«

66,02! 43,47¢
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortize (18,085 (15,88)
Equipment and leasehold improvements, $ 47,93t % 27,58¢

Construction-in-process at December 26, 2014 arwbiDber 27, 2013 relates primarily to the build @ubur new distribution facility in
Bronx, New York, the build out of our new distribart facility in Las Vegas, Nevada and the costsiired related to the implementation of «
JD Edwards ERP system. The Company expects to sgmmrdximately $20,000 in fiscal 2015 to complétese projects.
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At December 26, 2014, December 27, 2013 and Dece2@&e012, the Company had $509, $820 and $63peontively, of equipment and
vehicles financed by capital leases. The Compatyrded depreciation of $96, $211 and $132 on thssets for the years ended Decembe
2014, December 27, 2013 and December 28, 2012 ataply.

Depreciation expense was $2,166, $2,024 and $I¢or3be fiscal years ended December 26, 2014, Dbee2i7, 2013 and December 28,
2012, respectively.

Capitalized software is recorded net of accumulatadrtization of $2,423 and $1,572 for the fisasdns ended December 26, 2014 and
December 27, 2013, respectively. Amortization espeon software was $851, $286 and $221 for thelfiszars ended December 26, 2014,
December 27, 2013, and December 28, 2012, resphctiv

Note 9 — Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwillesented as follows:

Carrying amount as of December 28, 2! $ 45,35¢
Goodwill increase 32,71¢
Foreign currency translation (52)
Carrying amount as of December 27, 2! 78,02¢
Goodwill increase 564
Foreign currency translation (82
Carrying amount as of December 26, 2014 $ 78,50¢

Other intangible assets consist of customer redaliips being amortized over a period ranging froar to twenty years, trademarks being
amortized over a period of one to forty years, aod-compete agreements being amortized over adoefitwo to six years. Other intangible
assets were consisted of the following at Decer@b6e2014 and December 27, 2013:

Weighted-Average

Remaining Gross Accumulated
Amortization Perio Carrying Amoun Amortization Net Amount

December 26, 201

Customer relationshif 131 months $ 32,26: $ (6,939 $ 25,32;
Non-compete agreemer 38 months 7,16¢ (2,825 4,341
Trademarks 270 months 23,58¢ (2,769 20,82:
Total 181 monthe $ 63,01 $ (12,529 $ 50,48!
December 27, 201

Customer relationshif 132 months $ 29,43¢ $ (4199 % 25,24(
Non-compete agreemer 49 months 7,131 (1,417 5,71¢
Other amortizable intangible 119 months 9,27¢ (54) 9,22(
Trademarks 239 month:s 18,80 (1,539 17,27:
Total 154 months $ 64,64¢ $ (7,199 $ 57,45(

Amortization expense for other intangibles was $6,14,796 and $1,858 for the years ended Decef@e014, December 27, 2013 and
December 28, 2012, respectively. At December 21320ther amortizable intangibles representedrthiali purchase price allocation for Alli
Brothers.

As of December 26, 2014, estimated amortizatioreegp for other intangible assets for each of théfine years and thereafter is as follows:

2015 $ 5,25¢
2016 5,19¢
2017 5,162
2018 4,02
2019 3,74¢
Thereaftel 27,10:
Total $ 50,48¢
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Note 10 — Debt Obligations

Debt obligations as of December 26, 2014 and Deee@b, 2013 consisted of the following:

December 26, December 27,
2014 2013
Senior secured nott $ 100,00( $ 100,00(
Term loan 27,00( 33,00(
New Markets Tax Credit Loa 11,00( 11,00(
Capital leases and financed software 5,53¢€ 3,714
Total debt obligation 143,53¢ 147,71
Less: current installments (7,73€) (6,867
Total debt obligations excluding current installrtsen $ 135,80( $ 140,84

On April 25, 2012, Dairyland USA Corporation, Thadfs’ Warehouse Mid-Atlantic, LLC, Bel Canto Fool&C, The Chefs’ Warehouse
West Coast, LLC, The Chefs’ Warehouse of FloridaCl{each, a “Borrower” and collectively, the “Bowers”), the Company and Chefs’
Warehouse Parent, LLC (together with the Compamg/,'Guarantors”) entered into a senior secureditcfadlity (the “Credit Agreement”)
with the lenders from time to time party theretba€e, as Administrative Agent, and the other mattiereto. The Credit Agreement replaced
the credit agreement that the Borrowers and thedBtars entered into in connection with the Compamjtial public offering. On August 29,
2012, Michael's Finer Meats Holdings, LLC and Mielia Finer Meats, LLC each was added as a Guaramiger the Credit Agreement. On
January 24, 2013, The Chefs’ Warehouse Midwest, la€ added as a Guarantor under the Credit Agrege@arOctober 18, 2013, CW LV
Real Estate LLC was added as a Guarantor undértended and Restated Credit Agreement. On Jan@&ar3014, Allen Brothers and The
Great Steakhouse Steaks, LLC were added as Gueramder the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement.

The Credit Agreement provided for a senior secteett loan facility (the “Term Loan Facility”) in ¢haggregate amount of up to $40,000 (the
loans thereunder, the “Term Loans”) and a seniourgel revolving loan facility (the “Revolving Crediacility” and, together with the Term
Loan Facility, the “Credit Facilities”) of up to aggregate amount of $100,000 (the loans thereutidefRevolving Credit Loans”). The
Credit Agreement also provided that the Borrowendd, at their option, increase the aggregate amaofuinorrowings under either the
Revolving Credit Facility or the Term Loan Facilityan aggregate amount up to $40,000 (but ine=st than $10,000 increments) (the
“Accordion”) without the consent of any lenders patticipating in such increase, subject to certaistomary conditions and lenders
committing to provide the increase in funding. Timal maturity of the Term Loans and Revolving Qtéehcility was April 25, 2017. Subject
to adjustment for prepayments, the Company wasnedjto make quarterly principal payments on thenTkoans on

June 30, September 30, December 31 and March 81th first four quarterly payments equal to $0,p@r quarter and the last sixteen
quarterly payments equal to $1,500 per quarteh thié remaining balance due upon maturity.

The Credit Facilities were secured by substantalllyhe assets of the Borrowers and the Guaramtithsthe exception of equity interests in
and assets of DHP. Borrowings under the Creditlifiasibore interest at the Company’s option ofieit(i) the alternate base rate (representin
the greatest of (1) Chase’s prime rate, (2) therf@dunds effective rate for overnight borrowingiss 1/2 of 1% and (3) the Adjusted LIBO
Rate for one month plus 2.50%, plus in each caseapiplicable margin of 0.50% for Revolving Crediialns or Term Loans or (i), in the case
of Eurodollar Borrowings (as defined in the Crefifreement), the Adjusted LIBO Rate plus the applieanargin of 3.0% for Revolving
Credit Loans or Term Loans. The Credit Agreemest aicluded financial covenants that required tbenf@any to meet targeted leverage and
fixed charge ratios.

On September 28, 2012, the Borrowers exerciseé¢erdion under the Credit Agreement in full torease the aggregate commitments u
the Revolving Credit Facility by $40,000. As a résidi the Borrowers’ exercise of the Accordion, lmwing capacity under the Revolving
Credit Loans increased from $100,000 to $140,0000ther terms of the Credit Agreement were uncleahg

On April 26, 2012, DHP entered into a financingaagement under the NMTC program under the Codsppnt to which CLII provided to
DHP the NMTC Loan to help fund DHP’s expansion dndd-out of its new Bronx, New York facility, whiicconstruction is required under
the lease agreement related to such facility. TWRE'® Loan is evidenced by a Mortgage Note, datedfaspril 26, 2012 (the “Mortgage
Note”), between DHP, as maker, and CLII, as payee. UtiteMortgage Note, DHP is obligated to pay Ci)linfonthly interest payments on
the principal balance then outstanding and (ii)ehire unpaid principal balance then due and owimdpril 26, 2017. Interest accrues under
the Mortgage Note at 1.00% per annum for as longHB is not in default thereunder, which interdstlsbe calculated on the basis of the
actual number of days elapsed over a year of 3g6.da
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On April 17, 2013, the Borrowers, the Guarantord #ne lenders a party thereto entered into an Amend and Restatement Agreement to
amend and restate the Credit Agreement (the “Antade Restated Credit Agreement”). On May 31, 2@ZAna Specialty Foods North
America (USA), Inc., QZ Acquisition (USA), Inc., €Chefs’ Warehouse Pastry Division, Inc., Qzinacidty Foods (Ambassador), Inc.,
Qzina Specialty Foods, Inc. (WA), and Qzina Spégigbods, Inc. (FL) were added as Guarantors utideAmended and Restated Credit
Agreement.

The Amended and Restated Credit Agreement amemteatates the Term Loan Facility and the Revol@nedit Facility. The Amended and
Restated Credit Agreement provides for $36,00Qrimcpal amount of Term Loans under the Term LoanilRy and up to an aggregate
amount of $140,000 of Revolving Credit Loans untierRevolving Credit Facility. The sub-limits fatlers of credit and swingline loans
under the Credit Facilities were unchanged. Umagtilicommitments under the revolving credit facitirtion of the Amended and Restated
Credit Agreement are subject to a per annum fémof 0.35% to 0.45%, based on the Company’s leweratjo. A fronting fee of 0.25% per
annum is payable on the face amount of each letteredit issued under the Credit Facilities.

The final maturity of the Credit Facilities remaifpril 25, 2017. Subject to adjustment for prepayptsethe Company is required to make
quarterly principal payments on the Term Loansume30, September 30, December 31 and March 34cbfyear, with each quarterly
payment equal to $1,500, with the remaining balaheeupon maturity.

After giving effect to the amendment and restatentegreof, borrowings under the Credit Facilitiestinue to be secured by all the assets of
the Borrowers and Guarantors, with the excepticth@fequity interests in and assets of DHP, antblaangs thereunder will bear interest at
Company’s option of either (i) the alternate baste (representing the greatest of (1) Chase’s prattge (2) the federal funds effective rate for
overnight borrowings plus 1/2 of 1.00% and (3) &dgusted LIBO rate for one month plus 2.50%) ptusach case an applicable margin of
from 1.75% to 2.25%, based on the Company’s leerago, or (ii) in the case of Eurodollar Borrogi(as defined in the Amended and
Restated Credit Agreement), the adjusted LIBO pate an applicable margin of from 2.75% to 3.25%sdd on the Company’s leverage ratio.
The LIBO rate is the rate for Eurodollar deposiisd period equal to one, three or six months éected by the applicable Borrower)
appearing on Reuters Screen LIBORO1 Page (or aroessor or substitute page on such screen), avdpyately 11:00 a.m. London time, t
business days prior to the commencement of thacatyhd interest period. The Amended and RestatediCAgreement also includes financial
covenants that require the Company to meet tardetedage and fixed charge ratios.

On April 17, 2013, the Company issued $100,000uiargnteed senior secured notes (the “Notes”) tdétial Capital Group, an institutional
investment division of Prudential Financial, Inbrough a private placement transaction pursuaatNote Purchase and Guarantee Agreeme
dated April 17, 2013 (the “Note Purchase and GuamAgreement”). The Notes bear an annual inteagstof 5.9% and mature in 2023. The
Notes must be repaid in two equal installments5gf,@00. The first payment is due on April 17, 20IBe second payment is due at maturit
April 17, 2023. The proceeds from the private pfaeat of the Notes were used to repay borrowingeutiee Revolving Credit Facility. The
Notes have financial covenants that are substinsiahilar to the financial covenants for the Ameddand Restated Credit Agreeme

During fiscal 2014, the Company entered into vasiamendments to the Amended and Restated CredieAgmt to effect the following
changes: (i) permit one of the Company’s subsiégaid incur up to $15,000 of permitted indebtedaeskassociated liens to obtain
construction and permit mortgage financing for & mearehouse facility in Las Vegas, Nevada, (iiyaase the basket for additional
indebtedness that is not otherwise permitted byetras of the Amended aiestated Credit Agreement from $5,000 to $10,06De(iminate
the Company’s requirement to achieve a certainrmim Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio (as defined irAthended and Restated Credit
Agreement) as of September 30, 2014 and to amenEixed Charge Coverage Ratio definition (A) tocact for the significant investments
the Company has made, and expects to continueke,rimits business to support its growth and (Bgltminate the deduction of the
unfinanced portion of Capital Expenditures (asmdiin the Amended and Restated Credit Agreemiat) the calculation of EBITDA

utilized to calculate the Fixed Charge Coveragedrét) permit a sale-leaseback transaction invmthe Company’s Las Vegas distribution
facility that is currently under construction, farrease the amount of assets that the loan panagssell in any twelve month period in
transactions not otherwise permitted from $1,0083®00, (vi) adjust certain financial covenantd #re periods during which the loan parties
must comply with such covenants, and (vii) set aimam permitted amount of Capital Expenditures thaly be made or incurred by the loan
parties in future fiscal years. The Note Purchask@uarantee Agreement was similarly amended tafyntsee Note Purchase and Guarantee
Agreement in the same manner as the Amended andt&ESredit Agreement.

As of December 26, 2014, the Borrowers and Guarantere in compliance with all debt covenants underAmended and Restated Credit
Agreement, as amended, the Notes and the Note #&@a@nd Guarantee Agreement, as amended, DHP wampliance with all debt
covenants under the NMTC Loan and the Company ésetved $4,845 of the Revolving Credit Facility e issuance of letters of credit. As
of December 26, 2014, funds totaling $135,155 veweglable for borrowing under the Revolving Crdeticility.
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Note 11 — Stockholders’ Equity

On September 25, 2013, the Company completed écpffdring of 3,800,000 shares of its common statk21.00 per share, and certain
existing stockholders sold an additional 1,375,8B@res, including 675,000 shares sold to the uniters/to cover over-allotments. The
Company recognized proceeds of approximately $75a0@r deducting underwriting fees and commissan estimated offering expenses.
The Company utilized approximately $12,500 of teeproceeds from the offering to repay outstan@iogowings under the Revolving Credit
Facility, and subsequently used $23,939 to finarscacquisition of Allen Brothers, $2,063 to finanits acquisition of Euro Gourmet and the
remainder for general corporate purposes.

Equity Incentive Plan

The Company has adopted the 2011 Omnibus Equignthe Plan (the “Equity Plan”). The purpose of Bruity Plan is to promote the
interests of the Company and its stockholders ogt(iacting and retaining key officers, employard directors; (ii) motivating such
individuals by means of performance related ine@stito achieve long-range performance goals;giigbling such individuals to participate in
the long-term growth and financial success of tbenBany; (iv) encouraging ownership of stock in @@mpany by such individuals; and (v)
linking their compensation to the long-term intésesf the Company and its stockholders.

The Equity Plan is administered by the Compensdiommittee (the “Committee”) of the Board of Direxct and allows for the issuance of
stock options, stock appreciation rights (“SARs8stricted share awards (“RSAs”), restricted shunits, performance awards, or other stock-
based awards. Stock option exercise prices ard iydhe Committee but shall not be less thandivenfiarket value of a common share on the
date of the grant of the option, except in the adsibstitute awards. Similarly, the grant pri€@oe SAR may not be less than the fair market
value of a common share on the date of the grdrg.Jommittee will determine the expiration dateath stock option and SAR, but in no
case shall the stock option or SAR be exercisdide thhe expiration of ten years from the datehef grant. The Company plans to issue new
shares upon exercise of any stock options. Thet{&lan provided 1,750,000 shares available fontyiaf which no more than 1,000,000
could be for Incentive Stock Options. As of Decenié® 2014, there were 1,078,511 shares availablgrant.

On August 2, 2011, the Company granted RSAs tadb6,666 shares to two employees. The awardswadwed at $18.01 per share,
representing the closing price of the Company’smam stock on August 2, 2011. Fifty percent of thewals (103,333 shares) vested
immediately resulting in a compensation chargelg861 and the remainder of the awards, a totaD8f333 shares, were scheduled to vest in
equal amounts on each of the next four anniverdarys of the grant of which $193 was recognizetbagpensation expense during fiscal
2011. During fiscal 2014, 2013 and 2012, the Companognized expense totaling $54, $93 and $1,055ese RSAs, respectively. This
included a charge for $713 during fiscal 2012 elab the accelerated vesting of 41,334 RSAs issudite Company’s former chief operating
officer as part of his separation from the Comparhyrough December 26, 2014, RSAs granted in 20thling 25,830 shares were forfeited.

On November 2, 2011, the Company granted RSAsSrgtal652 shares to its four independent direatdrieh vested on the date of the first
annual stockholders’ meeting. These shares weredalt $14.30 each (the closing price of our comstock on November 2, 2011). The
Company recognized $38 of expense related to gyeses in fiscal 2012.

During fiscal 2012, the Company issued 229,031 RiBAs employees and independent directors atightex] average grant date fair value of
$17.63 each. Of these awards, 34,783 RSAs wererpahce-based grants. The Company recognized rems&mn the performance-based
grants in fiscal 2014, 2013 or 2012 because thegaomdid not achieve the performance targets agipkcto those periods. The remaining
awards were time-based grants which will vest dvBryears from the date of grant. During fiscal 202013 and 2012 the Company
recognized expense totaling $631, $742 and $45pentively, on the time-based grants. Through Dées6, 2014, 35,441 of the RSAs
granted in 2012 were forfeited. During fiscal 208582 RSAs, which were issued prior to the Compamyjtial public offering, were forfeite

During fiscal 2013, the Company granted 268,889 &&#Aits employees and independent directors aighted average grant date fair value
of $16.90 each. Of these awards, 183,700 were npeafuce-based grants. The Company recognized nmssma the performance-based
grants during fiscal 2014 and 2013, because thep@aoyndid not achieve the performance targets agdpkcto fiscal 2014 and 2013. The
remaining awards were time-based grants whichusgk between one and four years from the dateasftgbDuring fiscal 2014 and 2013, the
Company recognized expense totaling $355 and $87bease time-based RSAs. During fiscal 2014, 20¢68he time vesting RSAs and
37,432 of the performance-vesting RSAs were farteiDuring fiscal 2013, 2,108 of the time vestirgAR and 8,692 of the performance-
vesting RSAs were forfeited.

During fiscal 2014, the Company granted 91,176 R®Ats employees and independent directors atightex] average grant date fair value of
$19.78 each. Of these awards, 27,201 were perfaredbased grants. The Company recognized no experthe performance-based grants
during fiscal 2014, because the Company did naeaetthe performance targets applicable to fisba42 The remaining awards were time-
based grants which will vest between one and fears/from the date of grant. During fiscal 2014, @ompany recognized expense totaling
$334 on these time-based RSAs.
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At December 26, 2014, the Company had 374,567 wésted RSAs outstanding. At December 26, 2014tatia unrecognized compensation
cost for these unvested RSAs was $6,208, and tighted-average remaining useful life was approxatyat4 months. Of this total, $2,484
related to RSAs with time-based vesting provisiang $3,724 related to RSAs with performance-bassting provisions. At December 26,
2014, the weighted-average remaining useful livesevapproximately 15 months for time-based vedti8és and 13months for the
performance-based vesting RSAs. No compensatioanseprelated to the Company’s RSAs has been daedal

The Company has not issued any type of equity aatirel than RSAs under the Equity Plan.

Note 12 — Leases

The Company leases various warehouse and offidéiéscand certain vehicles and equipment undegerm operating lease agreements th:
expire at various dates, with related parties aitld @thers. See Note 15 for additional discussibretated party transactions. The Company

records operating lease costs, including any débafsfe rent increases, on a straight-line basis theslease term. As of December 26, 2014,
the Company is obligated under non-cancelable tipgreease agreements to make future minimum Ipagments as follows:

Related
Party Real Third Party Third Party Third Party
Estate Real Estate Vehicles Other Total
2015 $ 48¢ $ 5,55¢ $ 561z $ 71t $ 12,37
2016 49¢ 5,15¢ 5,421 447 11,52(
2017 50¢ 4,90¢ 5,04¢ 95 10,56:
2018 51¢ 4,38¢ 3,89¢ 30 8,83¢
2019 52¢ 3,77 3,42¢ — 7,728
Thereaftel 2,661 31,40 2,952 — 37,01¢
Total minimum lease payments $ 5,20¢ $ 55,19 $ 26,357 $ 1,282 $ 88,031

Total rent expense for operating leases for thesyeladed December 26, 2014, December 27, 2013 aceniber 28, 2012 was $16,381,
$13,529 and $10,172, respectively. One of the Cayipasubsidiaries, Dairyland USA Corporation, saiskes one of its distribution centers
from TCW Leasing Co., LLC (“TCW"), an entity contled by the Companyg founders. TCW leases the distribution center fioenNew York
City Industrial Development Agency. In connectioithithis sublease arrangement and TCW's obligattorits mortgage lender, Dairyland
USA Corporation and two of the Company’s other g@libses initially were required to act as guarastof TCW’s mortgage obligation on the
distribution center. The mortgage payoff date isdsber 2029 and the potential obligation undergherantee totaled $9,328 at Decembe
2014. By agreement dated July 1, 2005, the lereleased all three of the Company’s subsidiarie® fiteeir guaranty obligations, provided the
sublease between Dairyland USA Corporation and Tr€mains in full force and effect. During fiscal 20the Company and its subsidiaries
were in full compliance with that requirement. bid@tion, during the first quarter of 2015, TCW pdato refinance its mortgage with another
lender, with the result that the Company and itssiliaries will be unconditionally and fully releaisfrom any guaranty of TCW's mortgage
loan.

Note 13 — Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes consists of theolwihg for the years ended December 26, 2014, Deeeflih 2013 and December 28, 2012:

December 26, December 27, December 28,
2014 2013 2012
Current income tax expen
Federa $ 7,411 $ 8,40z $ 8,17:
Foreign 114 86 —
State 2,93t 2,35( 2,47¢
Total current income tax expense 10,46( 10,83¢ 10,64
Deferred income tax expense (bene
Federa 92 83C (69
Foreign 30 — —
State 51 14C (14
Total deferred income tax expense (benefit) 172 97( (83)
Total income tax expense $ 10,63: $ 11,80¢ $ 10,56¢
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The income tax expense differed from the totalstay income tax expense as computed by applyiegtatutory federal income tax rate to

income before taxes. The reasons for the diffeefmethe years ended December 26, 2014, Decemh@023 and December 28, 2012 are s¢

forth and quantified in the following table:

Statutory U.S. Federal t:
Differences due tc
Other permanent differenc
State and local taxes, net of federal ber
Foreign tax rate differenti:
Change in prior year tax estimg
Other, net

December 26, December 27, December 28,
2014 2013 2012
$ 8,697 $ 10,07¢ $ 8,77¢
26€ 292 21E
1,49¢ 1,70¢ 1,52t
74 86 —
227 (185) 147
130) (170 (99)
$ 10,63: $ 11,80¢ $ 10,56¢

Deferred tax assets and liabilities at Decembef@64 and December 27, 2013 consist of the follgwin

Current deferred tax asse
Receivables and invento

Paid time off accrue

Selfinsurance reserve

Cumulative foreign exchange differer
Current deferred tax asst

Current deferred tax liabilitie:
Earnout liabilities

Deduction of prepaid expenses
Current deferred tax assets, net

Non-current deferred tax assets and liabilit
Foreign tax credit payab

Federal net loss carryforwar

State net loss carryforwar

Rent accrua

Stock compensatic

Deferred acquisition cos

Other

Net nor-current deferred tax asst

Non-current deferred tax liabilitie:
Property & equipmer

Intangible asset

Other

Non-current deferred tax liabilities

Non-current deferred tax liabilities, net

December 26,

December 27,

2014 2013
$ 3,94¢ $ 3,20¢
45 65
1,332 81¢t
70z 22C
6,02¢ 4,30¢
(1,145 —
(1,389 (1,596
$ 3,50( $ 2,70¢
$ 202 $ —
112 11¢
15¢ 131
69€ 73¢
382 332
18¢ 82
1 J—
1,741 1,397
(599) (537)
(9,212 (9,199
2 J—
9,80¢) 9,73
$ (8,067 $ (8,339)
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The deferred tax provision results from the effedtaet changes during the year in deferred tagtasmnd liabilities arising from temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assetdiabilities for financial reporting purposesiaghe amounts used for income tax purpa
The Company files income tax returns in the U.Sldfal and various state and local jurisdictionsael as the Canadian Federal and provir
districts. For Federal income tax purposes, thel2Bfough 2014 tax years remain open for examindiiothe tax authorities under the normal
three-year statute of limitations and the fact thathave not yet filed our tax return for 2014. Btate tax purposes, the 2010 through 2013 ta:
years remain open for examination by the tax aittesrunder a fol-year statute of limitations. The Company recordsrest and penalties, if
any, in income tax expense.

At December 26, 2014, the Company had a federdbastcarryforward of $323 which resulted from @@mpany’s acquisition of Qzina in
2013. This federal net loss carryforward expirefiscal 2033. The Company also acquired stateasst tarryforwards totaling $1,725 upon
completion of the Qzina acquisition in 2013. Thetetet loss carryforwards expire between 20312838. During 2014, the Company
generated state net loss carryforwards of $142 fiperations. These state net loss carryforwardseekptween 2019 and 2034.

The foreign net loss carryforward represents theigm deductions impact from the deferred tax aszetl liabilities related to the Qzina
acquisition. These net loss carryforwards are fiderved for as the foreign tax credit is disa#idvas a result of IRC Section 901(m), which
does not allow use of foreign tax credits on thaipo of the deductions to a step-up in basis efahsets.

For financial reporting purposes, income from opere before income taxes for our foreign subsidgawas $1,108 for the year ended
December 26, 2014. We had no foreign operatioms prifiscal 2013. Since it is our intention to éfichitely reinvest these earnings, no U.S.
taxes have been provided for these amounts. Ithaaged our reinvestment policy and decided to rearitings as a dividend, a deferred tax
liability would arise. Determination of the amowftunrecognized deferred tax liability on theseamitted taxes is not practicable.

There was an examination of the 2010-2012 New take tax returns. It was asserted during the shalithe QEZE tax credit in New York
state, which is a credit of the franchise tax ofedloing business in a qualified enterprise zaheuld have started being phased out in 20%
increments in 2010. The Company began to phastie@EZE credit in 2011. It was also asserted dutie audit that the QEZE credit was
only applicable to the ratio of tax for the Comparairyland subsidiary. The company is currenilgpdting this argument and has accountec
for a more-likely-than-not final assessment for tdseyears 2010-2013 of $511, net of federal taxefie If all the Company’s proposals are
rejected, the Company believes the final assesswittite $725, net of federal tax benefit.

Note 14 — Employee Benefit Plans
Employee Tax-Deferred Savings Plan

The Company offers a 401(k) Plan to all full-tinmaoyees that provides for tax-deferred salary dédas for eligible employees. Employees
may choose to make voluntary contributions of taeinual compensation to the 401(k) Plan, limitedrt@nnual maximum amount as set
periodically by the Internal Revenue Service. Bagig in 2011, the Company provided discretionaryatiag contributions equal to 50
percent of the employee’s contribution amount,aip thaximum of six percent of the employeahnual salary, capped at $2.5 per associa
year. Matching contributions begin vesting afteo tyears and are fully vested after six years. Egg@acontributions are fully vested wh
made. Under the 401(k) Plan there is no optionlalis to the employee to receive or purchase thegamy’s common stock. Matching
contributions under the 401(k) Plan were $717 ikrdl 2014, $449 for fiscal 2013 and $337 for i@l 2.

Note 15 — Related Parties

The Company leases two warehouse facilities frdated parties. These facilities are owned by estibwned 100% by Christopher Pappas,
the Company’s chairman, president and chief exeeuwtficer, John Pappas, the Company’s vice chairara one of its directors, and Dean
Facatselis, a former non-employee director of tbem@any and the brother-in-law of Messrs. Pappakaae deemed to be affiliates of these
individuals. Expense related to the above facilitias $1,564 for the year ended December 26, 201451537 for the years ended December
27, 2013 and December 28, 2012, respectively.
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One of the Company’s non-employee directors, Steptanson, was the President and a 50% owner ofiaaWek City-based multi-concept
restaurant operator holding company until Decen20di3. Certain subsidiaries of this holding compareycustomers of the Company and its
subsidiaries that purchased an aggregate of appately $3,609, $3,616 and $3,200 of products frerduring fiscal 2014, fiscal 2013 and
fiscal 2012, respectively.

Each of Christopher Pappas, John Pappas and Deats&ls owns 8.33% of a New York City-based restatucustomer of the Company and
its subsidiaries that purchased an aggregate abzippately $144, $195 and $213 of products from@aenpany during fiscal 2014, fiscal 2(
and fiscal 2012, respectively. Messrs. Pappas andtSelis have no other interest in the restawtiier than these equal interests and are not
involved in the day-to-day operation or managenoéihis restaurant.

John Pappas’s brother-in-law, Constantine Papatarosie of the Company’s employees. The Compait/lpa approximately $185, $170
and $140 in total compensation during fiscal 20it¢al 2013 and fiscal 2012, respectively.

Christopher Pappas’s brother, John Pappas, isfahe €ompany’s employees and a member of the Coyg8oard of Directors. The
Company paid John Pappas approximately $447, $482302 in total compensation for fiscal 2014,dls2013 and fiscal 2012, respectively.
John Pappas did not receive any compensationdal {2914, fiscal 2013 or fiscal 2012 for his seevim the Company’s Board of Directors.

An entity owned by Messrs. C. Pappas, J. Couri@aridanson own an interest in an aircraft that veefasbusiness purposes in the course of
our operations. Each of Messrs. C. Pappas, J. @odrs. Hanson paid for their respective ownerstigrests (25% for each individual) in the
aircraft himself and bears his respective shawdlafperating, personnel and maintenance costiassd with the operation of the aircraft. In
2014, we made payments of $280 for use of suchadtirevhich included $264 paid directly to an entibt owned by Messrs. C. Pappas, J.
Couri or S. Hanson, that manages the aircraft.

Note 16 — Commitments and Contingencies
Guarantees

One of the Company’s subsidiaries, Dairyland USAgBaation, subleases one of its distribution centerm TCW Leasing Co., LLC

(“TCW"), an entity controlled by the Company’s falers. TCW leases the distribution center from tlee/Nork City Industrial Development
Agency. In connection with this sublease arrangerard TCWS5 obligations to its mortgage lender, Dairyland USdtporation and two of tt
Company'’s other subsidiaries initially were reqdite act as guarantors of TC¥#nortgage obligation on the distribution centdre Thortgag:
payoff date is December 2029 and the potentiabatibn under this guarantee totaled $9,328 at Dbee6, 2014. By agreement dated Ju
2005, the lender released all three of the Compasybsidiaries from their guaranty obligations vited the sublease between Dairyland US/
Corporation and TCW remains in full force and eff@uring fiscal 2014, the Company and its subsidgawere in full compliance with that
requirement. In addition, during the first quaé2015, TCW plans to refinance its mortgage witbtaer lender, with the result that the
Company and its subsidiaries will be unconditionalhd fully released from any guaranty of TCW'’s tgage loan.

Legal Contingencie

The Company is involved in various legal proceedifithe Company establishes reserves for specifad f[groceedings when it determines tha
the likelihood of an unfavorable outcome is prokadmd the amount of loss can be reasonably estinld@nagement has also identified
certain other legal matters where the Company \edi@an unfavorable outcome is reasonably possitilafor which no estimate of possible
losses can be made. Management believes thatttididbilities to the Company that may arise assult of currently pending legal
proceedings will not have a material adverse effacthe Company taken as a whole.

Tax Audits

The Company is involved in various tax mattershwéspect to some of which the outcome is uncerfdiase audits may result in the
assessment of additional taxes that are subseguentived with authorities or potentially throutile courts. Refer to Note 13 for further
information.

Risk Management Program

The Company maintains a self-insured group meghicairam. The program contains individual stop kbsesholds of $125 per incident and
aggregate stop loss thresholds based upon thegaveuanber of employees enrolled in the programuginout the year. The amount in excess
of the self-insured levels is fully insured by thpparty insurers. Liabilities associated with thiegram are estimated in part by considering
historical claims experience and medical cost tseRdojections of future loss expenses are inhigrantertain because of the random natul
insurance claims occurrences and could be significaffected if future occurrences and claimsatifirom these assumptions and historical
trends. The Company’s self-insurance reserveddonéedical program totaled $574 and $378 at Dece2#he2014 and December 27, 2013,
respectively.

The Company maintains an insurance program fautemobile liability and workers compensation irswre subject to deductibles or self-
insured retentions of $350 for workers compensadiwh $250 for automobile liability per occurrentee amounts in excess of our deductible:
are fully insured by third party insurers. Liabdi# associated with this program are estimateauiihlyy considering historical claims experience
and cost trends. Projections of future loss expease inherently uncertain because of the randdorenaf insurance claims occurrences



could be significantly affected if future occurrescand claims differ from these assumptions artdrigal trends. The Company’s self-
insurance reserves for its automobile liabilitygnam totaled $928 and $777 at December 26, 20149Dandmber 27, 2013, respectively. Self-
insurance reserves for workers compensation to%2e@il1 and $1,559 at December 26, 2014 and Dece2iib2013, respectively.

65




Workforce (unaudited)

As of December 26, 2014 we had approximately 1f28time and part-time employees, 159 of whom (@pgmately 12.4%) are represented
by unions. Of the 159 represented by unions, 12 bperating under a collective bargaining agreenTéns agreement expires in August of
2017 and we expect we will be able to renegotlateaigreement on satisfactory terms at that timedtVeot contribute to a pension plan on

behalf of our union employees. The Company beliéga®lations with its employees are generallyséattory.
Note 17 — Valuation Reserves

A summary of the activity in the accounts receieaddlowance for doubtful accounts appears below:

December December December

26, 2014 27,2013 28, 2012
Balance at beginning of peric $ 3,64z $ 3,44( $ 2,90(
Charged to costs and expen 1,19¢ 924 1,43¢
Customer accounts written off, net of recoveries (162) (722) (899
Balance at end of period $ 4,67¢ $ 3,64: $ 3,44(
A summary of activity in the inventory valuatiorsegve appears below:

December December December

26, 2014 27, 2013 28, 2012
Balance at beginning of peric $ 682 $ 65C $ 57t
Charged to costs and expen 3,42 3,051 1,94¢
Inventory written off (2,979 (3,01%) (1,879
Balance at end of period $ 1,13( $ 682 $ 65C
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Note 18 — Quarterly Results (unaudited)

The quarterly results of the Company for the yesmded December 26, 2014 and December 27, 2013 fodavs:

March 28, June 27, Sept. 26, Dec. 26,

2014 2014 2014 (1) 2014 (2)
Net sales 187,18. $ 213,14 208,071 228,221
Gross profit 46,06¢ 52,40: 50,69: 56,88
Operating profit 3,751 8,551 9,03t 11,66¢
Income before income tax 1,69: 6,45¢ 7,132 9,56¢
Net income 98¢ 3,82( 4,207 5,19¢
Basic net income per she 0.0¢ 0.1¢ 0.17 0.21
Diluted net income per sha 0.0¢ 0.1t 0.17 0.21

March 29, June 28, Sept. 27, Dec. 27,

2013 (3) 2013 (4) 2013 (5) 2013 (6)
Net sales 139,41 170,15 170,58: 193,38t
Gross profit 35,15« 44,04: 43,95’ 49,21
Operating profit 5,891 11,05¢ 9,43¢ 10,19¢
Income before income tax 4,53( 9,14¢ 7,107 8,01
Net income 2,641 5,34t 4,16( 4,83¢
Basic net income per she 0.1z 0.2¢ 0.2C 0.2C
Diluted net income per sha 0.1z 0.2t 0.2C 0.1¢

(1) The Company recorded a recovery of approxinpa&|500 related to the settlement with the prieners of Michael's of a dispute
associated with the inventory issues it previoesigerienced at Michael's. This recovery was refidas a reduction of operating

expenses.

(2) Beginning in the fourth quarter of 2014 the @amy began to reflect the results of the Euro Getilsaquisition.

(3) Beginning in the first quarter of 2013 the Canp began to reflect the results of the Queensgaisisition.

(4) Beginning in the second quarter of 2013 the gamy began to reflect the results of the Qzina @@¢pn. The Company also closed on
its $100,000 Notes offering in the second quart&0d 3.

(5) The Company completed its secondary offering,800,000 shares in the third quarter of 2013.

(6) Beginning in the fourth quarter of 2013 the Quamy began to reflect the results of the Allen Beo$ acquisition. In the fourth quarter
of 2013, the Company recorded a $900 adjustmertigbof sales related to the previously disclosegtsiatement of inventory at
Michael’s.

Note 19 — Subsequent Event

On January 11, 2015, the Company entered intoinitilef agreement to acquire substantially alllef tissets and certain equity interests o
Monte Capitol Meat Co. and certain related entif€el Monte”) for approximately $191,200 (subjeotcustomary working capital
adjustments as well as final audited results ofitwuired entities) consisting of (i) $127,500 &sle, which will be funded from cash on hand
and additional borrowings under our existing craditngements, (i) 1.2 million shares of our commstock (valued at $22.00 per share), and
(iii) $38,300 in convertible subordinated noteshnatsix-year maturity bearing interest at 2.5% wittonversion price of $29.70 per share. In
addition, the Company has agreed to pay additiomatingent consideration that is expected to taparoximately $25,500 (subject to certain
conditions and upon the successful achievemerdjobted EBITDA targets over the six years followihg closing of the acquisition). The
transaction is subject to the satisfaction of amstxy closing conditions and is expected to close tiee end of the first quarter of 2015 or early
in the second quarter of 2015.
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On January 11, 2015, the Company entered into @amdment to the Amended and Restated Credit Agreem&previously amended, that
will become effective upon consummation of the Bleinte acquisition to, among other things, (i) repléghe definition of Leverage Ratio with
definitions of Total Leverage Ratio and Senior Sedl_everage Ratio (each as defined in the Ameadddrestated Credit Agreement) and
establish limits on the amount of leverage andmsesecured leverage that the loan parties may imdhich limits shall decrease through
September 30, 2016, (ii) modify the applicable fateborrowings under the Amended and RestatediCggleement to provide for an
increased interest rate when the loan parties’| T&teerage Ratio is equal to, or greater than, 4026.00, (iii) permit the acquisition of Del
Monte and the related issuance of the Company’stoemstock and up to $38,250 of subordinated defsiyaunt thereto, and payment of the
earn-out consideration in connection with the asitjon of Del Monte so long as the loan partiesraein default under the Amended and
Restated Credit Agreement, and (iv) create an esiparoption whereby Borrowers may increase thedvargs available under the Amended
and Restated Credit Agreement in increments afadt!$10,000, such that the aggregate increasest@xceed $60,000. The Company ent
into a corresponding amendment to the Note Purcliadé€suarantee Agreement that will become effeatp@n consummation of the Del
Monte acquisition to effect similar changes to lf@e Purchase and Guarantee Agreement, with threpéra of providing for the possibility
increased borrowings.

Upon effectiveness of the January 2015 amendmesatibed above, borrowings under the Amended anthResCredit Agreement will bear
interest at the Company’s option of either (i) #fternate base rate (representing the greate$) @fhase’s prime rate, (2) the federal funds
effective rate for overnight borrowings plus 1/21000% and (3) the adjusted LIBO rate for one mauhtis 2.50%) plus in each case an
applicable margin of from 1.75% to 2.50%, basedhenTotal Leverage Ratio (as defined in the Amerateti Restated Credit Agreement), or
(i) in the case of Eurodollar Borrowings (as definn the Amended and Restated Credit Agreemédmt)adjusted LIBO rate plus an applicable
margin of from 2.75% to 3.50%, based on the Totaldrage Ratio.
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Item 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTAN TS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE

Not applicable
Item 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Disclosure Controls and Procedures.

Our management, with the participation of our cleiedcutive officer and chief financial officer, éwated the effectiveness of our disclosure
controls and procedures pursuant to Rule 13a-1Bnthe Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as ame(ttiedExchange Act”), as of the end of
the period covered by this Annual Report on ForrK10

Based on that evaluation, our Chief Executive @ffiand Chief Financial Officer concluded that oiscbhsure controls and procedures were
effective, as of the end of the period coveredHiy teport, to provide reasonable assurance tf@niation we are required to disclose in
reports that we file or submit under the Exchangei#\recorded, processed, summarized and repaithih the time periods specified in SEC
rules and forms, and that such information is aadated and communicated to our management, inadualim Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allamely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Management’'s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting.

The Company’s management is responsible for estabfi and maintaining adequate internal controt éwancial reporting as defined in
Rules 13a—-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange e Company'’s internal control over financigboeting is designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliabilitynaiicial reporting and the preparation of finansiatements for external purposes in
accordance with GAAP. The Company’s internal cdrixer financial reporting includes those polica® procedures that: (i) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detxlrately and fairly reflect the transactions disgpositions of the assets of the Company; (ii)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions@elded as necessary to permit preparation ofidiahstatements in accordance with GA,
and that receipts and expenditures of the Companpe&ing made only in accordance with authorizatishmanagement and directors of the
Company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurancardiug prevention or timely detection of unauthedacquisition, use or disposition of the
Company'’s assets that could have a material effethe financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢tmisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods atgexct to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, or
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

Under the supervision of our Chief Executive Offiaad Chief Financial Officer, our management asshe effectiveness of the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting as of Batber 26, 2014. In making this assessment, managersed the criteria set forth internal
Control—Integrated Framework (2018sued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrike Treadway Commission (“COSQO”"). Based
on this assessment, our Chief Executive Officer@higf Financial Officer have concluded that therPany’s internal control over financial
reporting was effective as of December 26, 2014.

The Company'’s financial statements included in &nsual Report on Form 10-K have been audited byDBISA, LLP, an independent
registered public accounting firm, as indicatethie report appearing on page 46 of this Form 18BO USA, LLP has also provided an
attestation report on the Company'’s internal cdrtver financial reporting.

Changes In Internal Control Over Financial Reporting.

There have been no changes in our internal coowe financial reporting during the most recentdisquarter that have materially affected, or

are reasonably likely to materially affect, ourimtal control over financial reporting.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

Board of Directors and Stockholders
The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc.
Ridgefield, CT

We have audited The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc. interoalrol over financial reporting as of December 2814, based on criteria established in
Internal Control- Integrated Framework (2018sued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidribe Treadway Commission (the
COSO criteria). The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc. managemeaesponsible for maintaining effective intdroantrol over financial reporting and
for its assessment of the effectiveness of interaatrol over financial reporting, included in thecompanying “Item 9A, Management'’s
Annual Report on Internal Control Over FinanciapBeing” under Item 9A of this Form 10-K. Our regysibility is to express an opinion on
the company’s internal control over financial repay based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the statgdof the Public Company Accounting OversightriBq&nited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtaasonable assurance about whether effectivenaiteontrol over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. Our auditudeld obtaining an understanding of internal coraxer financial reporting, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing aald&ing the design and operating effectivenesstefnal control based on the assessed risk.
Our audit also included performing such other pdoces as we considered necessary in the circunestave believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company'’s internal control over financial repodiis a process designed to provide reasonableamesuregarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statet:iéor external purposes in accordance with gelyesatepted accounting principles. A
company’s internal control over financial reportingludes those policies and procedures that (ftajmeto the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleettitansactions and dispositions of the assetsofdmpany; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatg@aparation of financial statements in accor@anwith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditureb®tbmpany are being made only in accordance witioaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanabburance regarding prevention or timely detectfainauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzaneterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢taisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods agject to the risk that controls may become inadegibecause of changes in conditions, or
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

In our opinion, The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc. mairddinin all material respects, effective internaitcol over financial reporting as of
December 26, 2014, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), the consolidated
balance sheets of The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc. Beoémber 26, 2014 and December 27, 2013, and ldtedeconsolidated statements of
operations, changes in stockholders’ equity, asth §aws for each of the three years in the peeinded December 26, 2014 and our report
dated March 11, 2015 expressed an unqualified opitiiereon.

/s/ BDO USA, LLP

Stamford, CT

March 11, 201!
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Item 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.

PART llI

Item 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNA NCE

The information set forth under the captions “Cagbe Governance,” “Proposal 1 - Election of Direstand “Section 16(a) Beneficial
Ownership Reporting Compliance” in our definitiveoRy Statement for our 2015 Annual Meeting of Stualklers to be held on May 15, 2015,
which we intend to file within 120 days after oigchl year-end, is incorporated herein by refereAseprovided in General Instruction G(3) to
Form 10-K and Instruction 3 to Item 401(b) of Rewign S-K, information regarding executive officefsour Company is provided in Part | of
this Annual Report on Form 10-K under the capti@xecutive Officers.”

Item 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information set forth under the caption “Ex@éeiCompensation” in our definitive Proxy Statemfamtour 2015 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders to be held on May 15, 2015, whichnterid to file within 120 days after our fiscal yead, is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information set forth under the captions “St@knership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Managetthin our definitive Proxy
Statement for our 2015 Annual Meeting of Stockhdde be held on May 15, 2015, which we intendleviithin 120 days after our fiscal
yearend, is incorporated herein by reference.

The following table provides certain informationtivrespect to equity awards under our equity corsa@igon plans as of December 26, 2014

Number of securities
remaining available
for future issuance
under equity
compensation plans
(excluding securities

Number of securities
to be issued upon
exercise of

Weighted-average
exercise price of

Plan Category

outstanding options,
warrants and rights

outstanding options,
warrants and rights

reflected in the
second column)

Plans approved by stockholdt — — 1,078,51
Plans not approved by stockholders — — —
Total — — 1,078,51

Item 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information set forth under the captions “Cagbe Governance — Director Independence” and “Gatpdsovernance — Certain
Relationships and Related Transactions” in oumitefe Proxy Statement for our 2015 Annual Meetaigtockholders to be held on May 15,
2015, which we intend to file within 120 days after fiscal year-end, is incorporated herein berefice.

Item 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information set forth under the captions “Pgl@ — Ratification of Independent Registered ieubtcounting Firm — Fees Paid to BDO
USA, LLP” and “Proposal 2 — Ratification of Indememt Registered Public Accounting Firm — Policyfardit Committee Pre-Approval of
Audit and Permissible Non-Audit Services” in oufiditive Proxy Statement for our 2015 Annual Meegtiof Stockholders to be held on May
15, 2015, which we intend to file within 120 day&eaour fiscal year-end, is incorporated hereinrdfgrence.
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PART IV

Iltem 15.

EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

The following documents are filed as part of tiepart:

1.

2.

Financial Statemen- See Index to the Consolidated Financial Statenaritem 8 of this Annual Report on Form-K.

Financial Statement Schedules - Supplementaldsités are not provided because of the absenaendftions under which they
are required or because the required informatigivisn in the financial statements or notes the:

Exhibits— The following exhibits are filed as part of, or amporated by reference into, this Annual ReporfForm 1(-K.

Exhibit Description
No.
2.1 Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of April 27228mhong The Chefs’ Warehouse West Coast, LLC atalh®id

Putze and Rudolf Putze (in corporated by referéadechibit 2.1 to the Company’s Formk8filed on April 30, 2012
(Pursuant to Item 601(b)(2) of Regulation S-K, shbedules and exhibits to this agreement are ainiig will be
provided supplementally to the Securities and ErgeaCommission upon reques

2.2 Securities Purchase Agreement, dated as of Augu&Qil 2, among Chefs’ Warehouse Parent, LLC, Tref<Ch
Warehouse Mid-Atlantic, LLC, Michael's Finer Meal4,C and the other parties party thereto (incorpeddy
reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Company’s Form 8kd on August 13, 2012) (Pursuant to Item 601Zpx(f
Regulation S-K, the schedules and exhibits todgieement are omitted, but will be provided supgletally to the
Securities and Exchange Commission upon reqt

2.3 Asset Purchase Agreement, dated as of Decemb@032, among The Chefs’ Warehouse Midwest, LLC, QG
Holding, Inc., Queensgate Food Group, LLC, MullagRaoperties, LLC, SP Beverage Co., LLC and theropiartie:
party thereto (incorporated by reference to ExHbitto the Company’s Formi{iled on January 2, 2013) (Pursu
to ltem 601(b)(2) of Regulation S-K, the schedwaled exhibits to this agreement are omitted, butheilprovided
supplementally to the Securities and Exchange Casion upon reques!

2.4 Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of May 1, 20t8ng The Chefs’ Warehouse Pastry Division Candda, the
Shareholders set forth therein, and Fulcrum Capiainers Inc., as the Sharehold&spresentative (incorporated
reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Company’s Form 8kd on May 1, 2013) (Pursuant to Item 601(b)(2Regulation
S-K, the schedules and exhibits to this agreemenbmitted, but will be provided supplementallythie Securities
and Exchange Commission upon reque

2.5 Asset Purchase Agreement, dated as of Decemb@013, by and among Allen Brothers 1893, LLC, Al@nothers,
Inc., The Great Steakhouse Steaks LLC, The Chefgeibuse, Inc., and the other parties thereto rfiacated by
reference to the Company’s Form 8-K filed on Decenily, 2013) (Pursuant to Item 601(b)(2) of RegoaSK, the
schedules and exhibits to this agreement are amitigt will be provided supplementally to the Sées and
Exchange Commission upon reque:

2.6 Asset Purchase Agreement, dated as of January1%, By and among The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc., aviee
corporation, Del Monte Capitol Meat Company, LLM@ealaware limited liability company, T.J. Foodsee/iCo.,
Inc., a California corporation, TJ Seafood, LLG alifornia limited liability company, John DeBen¢tileVictoria
DeBenedetti, Theresa Lincoln, and John DeBeneadstthe Sellers’ Representative (incorporated fareace to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K filed on dary 15, 2015) (Pursuant to Item 601(b)(2) of Ratioh S-K,
the schedules and exhibits to this agreement argeainbut will be provided supplementally to thec8rities and
Exchange Commission upon reque

2.7 Merger Agreement, dated as of January 11, 201&ndyamong The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc., a Delawayocation,
Del Monte Merger Sub, LLC, a Delaware limited liitgicompany, Del Monte Capitol Meat Co., Inc., ali®rnia
corporation, David DeBenedetti, Victoria DeBeneid€eBenedetti/Del Monte Trust, and John DeBenégdeitthe
Sellers’ Representative (incorporated by referd¢adexhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Form 8-K filed danuary 15,
2015) (Pursuant to Item 601(b)(2) of Regulatio,3he schedules and exhibits to this agreemenvraiged, but wil
be provided supplementally to the Securities anchBErge Commission upon reque
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3.1

3.2

41

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7*

10.8*

10.9*

10.10*

10.11*

10.12*

Certificate of Incorporation of the Company, dasedof July 27, 2011 (incorporated by referencexioiliit 3.1 to the
Compan’s Form &K filed on August 2, 2011)

Bylaws of the Company, dated as of July 27, 20ddafiporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Canys Form 8-
K filed on August 2, 2011)

Form of Common Stock Certificate (incorporated &ference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s S-1/Aditn July 1,
2011).

Agreement of Lease, dated as of April 26, 2012xyben the City of New York, as Landlord, and DaindaHP LLC,
as Tenant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10the Compar's Form K filed on April 30, 2012)

Amendment to Agreement of Lease, dated as of 262012, between the City of New York, as Land|amaid
Dairyland HP LLC, as Tenant, dated February 27 32@icorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.38 te @ompany's
Form 1(-K filed on March 13, 2013

Mortgage Note, dated as of April 26, 2012, betwBairyland HP LLC, as Maker, and Commercial LendinigLC,
as Payee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit idtBe Compar’s Form K filed on April 30, 2012).

Leasehold Mortgage and Security Agreement and Assigt of Leases and Rents, dated as of April 26220
between Dairyland HP LLC, as Mortgagor, and Commaétending Il LLC, as Mortgagee (incorporated lefarenc
to Exhibit 10.3 to the Compa’s Form K filed on April 30, 2012).

Joint and Several Guaranty of Payment, dated Apiof 26, 2012, among The Chefs’ Warehouse, InbefS
Warehouse Parent, LLC, Dairyland USA Corporatiome Thefs’ Warehouse Mid-Atlantic, LLC, Bel Cantoois,
LLC, The Chefs’ Warehouse West Coast, LLC, and Thefs’Warehouse of Florida, LLC (incorporated by refer
to Exhibit 10.4 to the Compa’s Form K filed on April 30, 2012).

Lease between The Chefs’ Warehouse Leasing Co.,dridDairyland USA Corporation, dated as of Decar2be
2004 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.theoCompan’s Form -1/A filed on June 8, 2011

Employment Agreement between Christopher Pappadhadhefs’ Warehouse, Inc., together with its gliages,
dated as of August 2, 2011 (incorporated by refard¢a Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K filenl August 2,
2011).

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement betws#enBappas and The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc., togeflier
its subsidiaries, dated as of January 12, 2012(jorated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the ComyfsaForm 8-K
filed on January 19, 2012

Offer letter between The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc. dotth D. Austin, dated May 29, 2012 (incorporatgddierence
to Exhibit 10.2 to the Compa’s Form K filed on May 30, 2012).

Offer letter between Chefs’ Warehouse Holdings, ldr@ Frank CDowd, dated as of January 28, 2007 (incorpol
by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to the Comp’s Form {-1/A filed on June 8, 2011)

Offer letter between Chefs’ Warehouse Holdings, Ldr@ Patricia Lecouras, dated as of January 317, 200
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 to@wmpan’s Form 1-K filed on March 13, 2013

Offer letter between Chefs’ Warehouse Holdings, ldr@ Alexandros Aldous, dated as of February 18120
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to@wmpan’s Form 1-K filed on March 13, 2013
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10.13*

10.14*

10.15*

10.16*

10.17*

10.18*

10.19*

10.20*

10.21*

10.22*

10.23*

10.24*

10.25+

10.26

10.27

10.28

Severance Agreement, made as of August 1, 201dntypetween The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc. and Alexandr
Aldous (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1@2he Compar’s Form K filed on August 6, 2014

The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc. 2011 Omnibus Equityntige Plan (incorporated by reference to ExhibitlB0to the
Compan’s Form &1/A filed on July 1, 2011

The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc. 2013 Cash Incentive ftaorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to @@mpany’s
Form &K filed on January 24, 2013

The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc. 2014 Cash Incentive ftaorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to @@mpany’s
Form &K filed on March 12, 2014

The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc. Executive Change in @bRian (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1@ the
Compan’s Form K filed on August 6, 2014

Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement (Oéfis and Employees) (incorporated by reference tolix
10.14 to the Compar's Form -1/A filed on July 1, 2011)

Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement (Dias) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.45he
Compan’s Form &1/A filed on July 1, 2011)

Form of Restricted Share Unit Award Agreement (Btioes) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1Qtd.éhe
Compan’s Form &1/A filed on July 1, 2011)

Form of Restricted Share Award Agreement (OffiGard Employees) (incorporated by reference to Exhiil7 to
the Compan’s Form &1/A filed on July 1, 2011)

Form of Restricted Share Award Agreement (Diregt@ircorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18 te @ompany’s
Form &-1/A filed on July 1, 2011)

Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement (incorpedaby reference to Exhibit 10.19 to the Compaigem S1/A
filed on July 1, 2011).

Form of Performance Restricted Share Award Agre¢it@fficers and Employees) (incorporated by refeesto
Exhibit 10.3 to the Compa’s Form &K filed on January 19, 2012

Amendment and Restatement Agreement, dated asrdfl&p 2013, among Dairyland USA Corporation, Tieefs’
Warehouse Mid-Atlantic, LLC, Bel Canto Foods, LLThe Chefs’ Warehouse West Coast, LLC, and The Chefs
Warehouse of Florida, LLC, as Borrowers, the finahiastitutions party thereto, and JPMorgan Chaark, N.A., a
Administrative Agent (incorporated by referenceéesdibit 10.1 to the Compar's Form 1-Q filed on May 7, 2013)

Amendment No. 1, dated as of July 23, 2014, toMimended and Restated Credit Agreement dated aprilf 1,
2013, by and among Dairyland USA Corporation, Thef€ Warehouse Mid-Atlantic, LLC, Bel Canto Food&C,
The Chefs’ Warehouse West Coast, LLC, and The Ciédsehouse of Florida, LLC, as Borrowers, the othean
Parties thereto, the Lenders party thereto, andod®ah Chase Bank, N.A., as Administrative Agent Gotateral
Agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1h® Compan’'s Form K filed on July 28, 2014,

Amendment No. 2, dated as of November 4, 2014dddmended and Restated Credit Agreement datefiAgsrid
17, 2013, by and among Dairyland USA Corporatidme Thefs’ Warehouse Mid-Atlantic, LLC, Bel Cantooés,
LLC, The Chefs’ Warehouse West Coast, LLC, and Chefs’ Warehouse of Florida, LLC, as Borrowers, dtieer
Loan Parties thereto, the Lenders party theret J&Morgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Administrative Agenl
Collateral Agent (incorporated by reference to BiHi0.3 to the Compar's Form 1-Q filed on November 5, 2014

Amendment No. 3, dated as of December 3, 201hadmended and Restated Credit Agreement dateflAgwib
17, 2013, by and among Dairyland USA Corporatidme Thefs’ Warehouse Mid-Atlantic, LLC, Bel Cantooés,
LLC, The Chefs’ Warehouse West Coast, LLC, and Chefs’ Warehouse of Florida, LLC, as Borrowers, dtiger
Loan Parties thereto, the Lenders party theret J&Morgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Administrative Agerd
Collateral Agent (incorporated by reference to Bt 0.1 to the Compar's Form &K filed on December 9, 2014
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10.29

10.30+

10.31+

10.32

10.33

10.34

Amendment No. 4, dated as of January 9, 2015 g@dthended and Restated Credit Agreement dated &grivfl3,
2013, by and among Dairyland USA Corporation, Thef€ Warehouse Mid-Atlantic, LLC, Bel Canto Food&C,
The Chefs’ Warehouse West Coast, LLC, and The Ciédsehouse of Florida, LLC, as Borrowers, the othean
Parties thereto, the Lenders party thereto, andod@ah Chase Bank, N.A., as Administrative Agent @otlateral
Agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3® Compan’'s Form &K filed on January 15, 201t

Amended and Restated Pledge and Security Agreenfeied April 17, 2013, by and among Dairyland USA
Corporation, The Chefs’ Warehouse Mid-Atlantic, LLB2l Canto Foods, LLC, The Chefs’ Warehouse Westst;
LLC, The Chefs’ Warehouse of Florida, LLC, The Gli&W/arehouse, Inc., Chefs’ Warehouse Parent, LL{E€hkkl's
Finer Meats, LLC, Michael's Finer Meats Holdings,@, The Chefs’ Warehouse Midwest, LLC, and the pthe
Subsidiaries of The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc. thabbecparty thereto after the date thereof, as Grenand
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Collateral Agentofiporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the ComyfmaForm
1C-Q filed May 7, 2013)

Note Purchase and Guarantee Agreement, datedfgsibl7, 2013, by and among Dairyland USA Corpumat The
Chefs’ Warehouse Mid-Atlantic, LLC, Bel Canto FopHkC, The Chefs’ Warehouse West Coast, LLC, and Th
Chefs’ Warehouse of Florida, LLC, as Issuers, Thef€ Warehouse, Inc., Chefs’ Warehouse Parent,, i@
Chefs’ Warehouse Midwest, LLC, Michael's Finer Mehioldings, LLC, and Michael’s Finer Meats, LLC,ths
Initial Guarantors, The Prudential Insurance ComypafrAmerica, Pruco Life Insurance Company, Prui@dértrizons
Reinsurance Captive Company, and Prudential Retineiimsurance and Annuity Company (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Comp’s Form 1i-Q filed May 7, 2013)

Amendment No. 1, dated as of July 23, 2014, td\ibi Purchase and Guarantee Agreement, datedfgmibl7,
2013, by and among Dairyland USA Corporation, Thef€ Warehouse Mid-Atlantic, LLC, Bel Canto Food&C,
The Chefs’ Warehouse West Coast, LLC, and The Ci¢fisehouse of Florida, LLC, as Issuers, The Chefs’
Warehouse, Inc., Chefs’ Warehouse Parent, LLC,Otnefs’ Warehouse Midwest, LLC, Michael's Finer Meat
Holdings, LLC, and Michael’s Finer Meats, LLC, ag tinitial Guarantors, The Prudential Insurance Gamy of
America, Pruco Life Insurance Company, Prudentid@na Reinsurance Captive Company, and Prudential
Retirement Insurance and Annuity Company (incorjgal &y reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Companygmir8-K
filed on July 28, 2014

Amendment No. 2, dated as of November 4, 2014dd\Jote Purchase and Guarantee Agreement, datédhasil
17, 2013, by and among Dairyland USA Corporatidme Thefs’ Warehouse Mid-Atlantic, LLC, Bel Cantooés,
LLC, The Chefs’ Warehouse West Coast, LLC, and Chefs’ Warehouse of Florida, LLC, as Issuers, Thef€
Warehouse, Inc., Chefs’ Warehouse Parent, LLC,Otefs’ Warehouse Midwest, LLC, Michael’'s Finer Meat
Holdings, LLC, and Michael’s Finer Meats, LLC, ag tinitial Guarantors, The Prudential Insurance Gamy of
America, Pruco Life Insurance Company, Prudentid@@na Reinsurance Captive Company, and Prudential
Retirement Insurance and Annuity Company (incorjgaldy reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Companyef10-Q
filed November 5, 2014

Amendment No. 3, dated as of December 3, 2014adbte Purchase and Guarantee Agreement, dat#dhasil
17, 2013, by and among Dairyland USA Corporatidme Thefs’ Warehouse Mid-Atlantic, LLC, Bel Cantooés,
LLC, The Chefs’ Warehouse West Coast, LLC, and Chefs’ Warehouse of Florida, LLC, as Issuers, Thef€
Warehouse, Inc., Chefs’ Warehouse Parent, LLC,Othefs’ Warehouse Midwest, LLC, Michael's Finer Meat
Holdings, LLC, and Michael’s Finer Meats, LLC, ag tinitial Guarantors, The Prudential Insurance Gamy of
America, Pruco Life Insurance Company, Prudentid@@na Reinsurance Captive Company, and Prudential
Retirement Insurance and Annuity Company (incoraty reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Companyai8-K
filed on December 9, 2014
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10.35 Amendment No. 4, dated as of January 9, 2015 gdtite Purchase and Guarantee Agreement, datddiasilal7,
2013, by and among Dairyland USA Corporation, Thef€ Warehouse Mid-Atlantic, LLC, Bel Canto Food&C,
The Chefs’ Warehouse West Coast, LLC, and The Cii¢dsehouse of Florida, LLC, as Issuers, The Chefs’
Warehouse, Inc., Chefs’ Warehouse Parent, LLC,Olmefs’ Warehouse Midwest, LLC, Michael's Finer Meat
Holdings, LLC, and Michael’s Finer Meats, LLC, &g tinitial Guarantors, The Prudential Insurance Gamy of
America, Pruco Life Insurance Company, Prudenti@@na Reinsurance Captive Company, and Prudential
Retirement Insurance and Annuity Company (incorjgar&y reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Companynir8-K
filed on January 15, 201¢

10.36 Form of Note (incorporated by reference to Exhiifit4 to the Company’s Form 10-Q filed May 7, 2013).

10.37 Building Loan Agreement, dated as of April 26, 20fki@tween Commercial Lending Il LLC, as Lender, and
Dairyland HP LLC, as Borrower (incorporated by refece to Exhibit 10.5 to the Company’s Form 8-Kilad on
May 1, 2012).

10.38+  Loan Agreement, dated as of April 26, 2012, amoagyland HP LLC, as Borrower, The Chefs’ Warehouse,,
Chefs’ Warehouse Parent, LLC, Dairyland USA Corfiora The Chefs’ Warehouse Mid-Atlantic, LLC, Behfto
Foods, LLC, The Chefs’ Warehouse West Coast, LIn@, Bhe Chefs’ Warehouse of Florida, LLC, as Guanant
and Commercial Lending Il LLC, as Lender (incorpedaby reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Companygmi8-K
filed on April 30, 2012)

10.39* Form of Indemnification Agreement by and betweeer Thefs’ Warehouse, Inc. and its directors and gkex
officers (incorporated by reference to Exhibit ¥0t8 the Compar’s Form -1/A filed on July 14, 2011)

141 The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc. Code of Business CorahuattEthics (incorporated by reference to ExhiitLlto the
Compan’s Form 1-Q filed on August 6, 2013)

21t Subsidiaries of the Company.

23.1t Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing.

31.1¢t Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant$ection 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
31.2t Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant $ection 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
32.1t Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant$ection 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
32.2t Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant $ection 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
101.INST XBRL Instance Document

101.SCH- XBRL Schema Document

101.CAL1 XBRL Calculation Linkbase Document

101.DEF{ XBRL Definition Linkbase Document

101.LABt1 XBRL Label Linkbase Document
101.PRE" XBRL Presentation Linkbase Document

* Management Contract or Compensatory Plan or Arrziegdt
Filed herewitt
+ Certain confidential portions of this exhibit veesmitted by means of redacting a portion of tkxé fEhis exhibit has been

filed separately with the Securities and Exchangmf@ission accompanied by a confidential treatmeguest pursuant
Rule 241-2 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amabr
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatp authorized on March 11, 2015.

THE CHEFS’ WAREHOUSE, INC.

March 11, 2015 /sl Christopher Pappi

Christopher Papp:
Chairman, President and Ch
Executive Officel

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on
behalf of the registrant and in the capacities@mthe dates indicated.

Signature Capacity Date
/sl Christopher Pappi Chairman, President and March 11, 2015
Christopher Pappas Chief Executive Officer

(Principal Executive Officer
/s/ John D. Austit Chief Financial Officer March 11, 2015
John D. Austin (Principal Accounting and

Financial Officer)

/sl John Pappz Director and Vice Chairman March 11, 2015
John Pappa

/sl Alan Guarinc Director March 11, 2015
Alan Guarina

/s/ John A. Cour Director March 11, 2015
John A. Cour

/s/ Dominick C. Cerbon Director March 11, 2015

Dominick C. Cerboni

/sl Joseph Cugin Director March 11, 2015
Joseph Cugin

/s/ Stephen Hansc Director March 11, 2015
Stephen Hansc
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Exhibit
No.

INDEX OF EXHIBITS

Description

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

3.1

3.2

Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of April 27228mhong The Chefs’ Warehouse West Coast, LLC atalh®id
Putze and Rudolf Putze (incorporated by refereadexhibit 2.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K filed onm30, 2012)
(Pursuant to Item 601(b)(2) of Regulation S-K, skhedules and exhibits to this agreement are aimiig will be
provided supplementally to the Securities and ErgeaCommission upon reques

Securities Purchase Agreement, dated as of Augu&Qil 2, among Chefs’ Warehouse Parent, LLC, Tref<Ch
Warehouse Mid-Atlantic, LLC, Michael's Finer Meal4,C and the other parties party thereto (incorpeady
reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Company’s Form 8kd on August 13, 2012) (Pursuant to Item 601Zpx(f
Regulation S-K, the schedules and exhibits todgieement are omitted, but will be provided supgletally to the
Securities and Exchange Commission upon reqt

Asset Purchase Agreement, dated as of Decemb@032, among The Chefs’ Warehouse Midwest, LLC, QG
Holding, Inc., Queensgate Food Group, LLC, MullagRaoperties, LLC, SP Beverage Co., LLC and theropiartie:
party thereto (incorporated by reference to ExHbitto the Company’s Formi{iled on January 2, 2013) (Pursu
to Item 601(b)(2) of Regulation S-K, the schedwed exhibits to this agreement are omitted, butheilprovided
supplementally to the Securities and Exchange Casion upon reques!

Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of May 1, 20ti8ng The Chefs’ Warehouse Pastry Division Candda, the
Shareholders set forth therein, and Fulcrum Capigatners Inc., as the Sharehold&spresentative (incorporated
reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Company’s Form 8kd on May 1, 2013) (Pursuant to Item 601(b)(2Regulation
S-K, the schedules and exhibits to this agreemenbmitted, but will be provided supplementallythie Securities
and Exchange Commission upon reque

Asset Purchase Agreement, dated as of Decemb&013, by and among Allen Brothers 1893, LLC, AlRnothers,
Inc., The Great Steakhouse Steaks LLC, The Chefgeibuse, Inc., and the other parties thereto rfacated by
reference to the Company’s Form 8-K filed on Decenily, 2013) (Pursuant to Item 601(b)(2) of RegoaSK, the
schedules and exhibits to this agreement are aitigt will be provided supplementally to the Sées and
Exchange Commission upon reque:

Asset Purchase Agreement, dated as of January1%, By and among The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc., aviee
corporation, Del Monte Capitol Meat Company, LLMelaware limited liability company, T.J. Foodsee/iCo.,
Inc., a California corporation, TJ Seafood, LLGC alifornia limited liability company, John DeBendtileVictoria
DeBenedetti, Theresa Lincoln, and John DeBeneadstthe Sellers’ Representative (incorporated fereace to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K filed on dary 15, 2015) (Pursuant to Item 601(b)(2) of Ratioh S-K,
the schedules and exhibits to this agreement aitteninbut will be provided supplementally to thec8rities and
Exchange Commission upon reque

Merger Agreement, dated as of January 11, 201&ndyamong The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc., a Delawaysocation,
Del Monte Merger Sub, LLC, a Delaware limited liitgicompany, Del Monte Capitol Meat Co., Inc., ali®rnia
corporation, David DeBenedetti, Victoria DeBeneg&tBenedetti/Del Monte Trust, and John DeBengdastthe
Sellers’ Representative (incorporated by referd¢adexhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Form 8-K filed danuary 15,
2015) (Pursuant to Item 601(b)(2) of Regulatio,3he schedules and exhibits to this agreemenvraiged, but wil
be provided supplementally to the Securities anchBErge Commission upon reque

Certificate of Incorporation of the Company, dasedof July 27, 2011 (incorporated by referencexiailiit 3.1 to the
Compan’s Form &K filed on August 2, 2011)

Bylaws of the Company, dated as of July 27, 20dddfiporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Canys Form 8-
K filed on August 2, 2011)
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10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7*

10.8*

10.9*

10.10*

10.11*

10.12*

10.13*

10.14*

Form of Common Stock Certificate (incorporated &ference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s S-1/Aditn July 1,
2011).

Agreement of Lease, dated as of April 26, 2012yben the City of New York, as Landlord, and DaindeHP LLC,
as Tenant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1@the Compar’'s Form K filed on April 30, 2012)

Amendment to Agreement of Lease, dated as of 262012, between the City of New York, as Land|amid
Dairyland HP LLC, as Tenant, dated February 27 32xicorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.38 t® @ompany’s
Form 1(-K filed on March 13, 2013

Mortgage Note, dated as of April 26, 2012, betwairyland HP LLC, as Maker, and Commercial LendinigLC,
as Payee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit i®tBe Compar’s Form K filed on April 30, 2012).

Leasehold Mortgage and Security Agreement and Assigt of Leases and Rents, dated as of April 26220
between Dairyland HP LLC, as Mortgagor, and Commaétending Il LLC, as Mortgagee (incorporated lefarenc
to Exhibit 10.3 to the Compa’s Form K filed on April 30, 2012).

Joint and Several Guaranty of Payment, dated Apiiif 26, 2012, among The Chefs’ Warehouse, InbefS’
Warehouse Parent, LLC, Dairyland USA Corporatiome Thefs’ Warehouse Mid-Atlantic, LLC, Bel Cantooés,
LLC, The Chefs’ Warehouse West Coast, LLC, and Chefs’'Warehouse of Florida, LLC (incorporated by refer
to Exhibit 10.4 to the Compa’s Form K filed on April 30, 2012).

Lease between The Chefs’ Warehouse Leasing Co.,dridDairyland USA Corporation, dated as of Decar2Be
2004 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.theoCompan’s Form &1/A filed on June 8, 2011

Employment Agreement between Christopher Pappa3hadhefs’ Warehouse, Inc., together with its glibges,
dated as of August 2, 2011 (incorporated by refard¢a Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K filenl August 2,
2011).

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement betws#enBappas and The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc., togeflier
its subsidiaries, dated as of January 12, 2012(jorated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the ComyfsaForm 8-K
filed on January 19, 2012

Offer letter between The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc. dotth D. Austin, dated May 29, 2012 (incorporatgddference
to Exhibit 10.2 to the Compa’s Form K filed on May 30, 2012).

Offer letter between Chefs’ Warehouse Holdings, ldr@ Frank CDowd, dated as of January 28, 2007 (incorpol
by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to the Comp’s Form {-1/A filed on June 8, 2011)

Offer letter between Chefs’ Warehouse Holdings, Ldr@ Patricia Lecouras, dated as of January 317, 200
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 to@wmnpan’s Form 1-K filed on March 13, 2013

Offer letter between Chefs’ Warehouse Holdings, ldr@ Alexandros Aldous, dated as of February 18120
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to@wmpan’s Form 1-K filed on March 13, 2013

Severance Agreement, made as of August 1, 201dntypetween The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc. and Alexandr
Aldous (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1@2he Compar’s Form K filed on August 6, 2014

The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc. 2011 Omnibus Equityntige Plan (incorporated by reference to ExhibitlBto the
Compan’s Form &1/A filed on July 1, 2011
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10.15*

10.16*

10.17*

10.18*

10.19*

10.20*

10.21*

10.22*

10.23*

10.24*

10.25+

10.26

10.27

10.28

The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc. 2013 Cash Incentive ftaorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to @@mpany’s
Form &K filed on January 24, 2013

The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc. 2014 Cash Incentive fmorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to @@mpany’s
Form &K filed on March 12, 2014

The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc. Executive Change in @bRian (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 11@.the
Compan’s Form K filed on August 6, 2014

Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement (Oéfis and Employees) (incorporated by reference tolix
10.14 to the Compars Form -1/A filed on July 1, 2011)

Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement (Dias) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4%he
Compan’s Form &1/A filed on July 1, 2011)

Form of Restricted Share Unit Award Agreement (Btioes) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1Qtd.éhe
Compan’s Form &1/A filed on July 1, 2011)

Form of Restricted Share Award Agreement (OffiGard Employees) (incorporated by reference to Exhiil7 to
the Compan’s Form &1/A filed on July 1, 2011)

Form of Restricted Share Award Agreement (Diregt@ircorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18 te @ompany’s
Form &-1/A filed on July 1, 2011)

Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement (incorpedaby reference to Exhibit 10.19 to the Compaigan S1/A
filed on July 1, 2011).

Form of Performance Restricted Share Award Agre¢it@fficers and Employees) (incorporated by refeesto
Exhibit 10.3 to the Compa’s Form &K filed on January 19, 2012

Amendment and Restatement Agreement, dated asrdfl&p 2013, among Dairyland USA Corporation, Tieefs’
Warehouse Mid-Atlantic, LLC, Bel Canto Foods, LLThe Chefs’ Warehouse West Coast, LLC, and The Chefs
Warehouse of Florida, LLC, as Borrowers, the finahiostitutions party thereto, and JPMorgan CHaaek, N.A., a
Administrative Agent (incorporated by referenceetdibit 10.1 to the Compa’'s Form 1-Q filed on May 7, 2013)

Amendment No. 1, dated as of July 23, 2014, toMimended and Restated Credit Agreement dated aprilf ¥,
2013, by and among Dairyland USA Corporation, Thef€ Warehouse Mid-Atlantic, LLC, Bel Canto Food&C,
The Chefs’ Warehouse West Coast, LLC, and The Cliédsehouse of Florida, LLC, as Borrowers, the othean
Parties thereto, the Lenders party thereto, andod®ah Chase Bank, N.A., as Administrative Agent Gotateral
Agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1h® Compan’'s Form K filed on July 28, 2014,

Amendment No. 2, dated as of November 4, 2014dddmended and Restated Credit Agreement datetiAgsid
17, 2013, by and among Dairyland USA Corporatidme Thefs’ Warehouse Mid-Atlantic, LLC, Bel Cantooés,
LLC, The Chefs’ Warehouse West Coast, LLC, and Chefs’ Warehouse of Florida, LLC, as Borrowers, atieer
Loan Parties thereto, the Lenders party theret J&Morgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Administrative Agerd
Collateral Agent (incorporated by reference to BiHi 0.3 to the Compar's Form 1-Q filed on November 5, 2014

Amendment No. 3, dated as of December 3, 201hadmended and Restated Credit Agreement dateflAgwib
17, 2013, by and among Dairyland USA Corporatidme Thefs’ Warehouse Mid-Atlantic, LLC, Bel Cantooés,
LLC, The Chefs’ Warehouse West Coast, LLC, and Chefs’ Warehouse of Florida, LLC, as Borrowers, dtieer
Loan Parties thereto, the Lenders party theret J&Morgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Administrative Agerd
Collateral Agent (incorporated by reference to Bt 0.1 to the Compar's Form &K filed on December 9, 2014
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10.29

10.30+

10.31+

10.32

10.33

10.34

10.35

10.36

Amendment No. 4, dated as of January 9, 2015 g@dthended and Restated Credit Agreement dated &grivfl3,
2013, by and among Dairyland USA Corporation, Thef€ Warehouse Mid-Atlantic, LLC, Bel Canto Food&C,
The Chefs’ Warehouse West Coast, LLC, and The Ciédsehouse of Florida, LLC, as Borrowers, the othean
Parties thereto, the Lenders party thereto, andod@ah Chase Bank, N.A., as Administrative Agent @otlateral
Agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3® Compan’'s Form &K filed on January 15, 201t

Amended and Restated Pledge and Security Agreeoteiet] April 17, 2013, by and among Dairyland USA
Corporation, The Chefs’ Warehouse Mid-Atlantic, LLEBel Canto Foods, LLC, The Chefs’ Warehouse Westst;
LLC, The Chefs’ Warehouse of Florida, LLC, The Gli&Warehouse, Inc., Chefs’ Warehouse Parent, LLEhkEl's
Finer Meats, LLC, Michael's Finer Meats Holding4,&, The Chefs’ Warehouse Midwest, LLC, and the pthe
Subsidiaries of The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc. thablrexparty thereto after the date thereof, as Grsrand
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Collateral Agentofiporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the ComyfsaForm
1C-Q filed May 7, 2013)

Note Purchase and Guarantee Agreement, datedfgsibl7, 2013, by and among Dairyland USA Corpumat The
Chefs’ Warehouse Mid-Atlantic, LLC, Bel Canto FopHkC, The Chefs’ Warehouse West Coast, LLC, and Th
Chefs’ Warehouse of Florida, LLC, as Issuers, Thef€ Warehouse, Inc., Chefs’ Warehouse Parent,, T@
Chefs’ Warehouse Midwest, LLC, Michael's Finer Mehioldings, LLC, and Michael’s Finer Meats, LLC,ths
Initial Guarantors, The Prudential Insurance ComypafrAmerica, Pruco Life Insurance Company, Prui@déntrizons
Reinsurance Captive Company, and Prudential Retinéiimsurance and Annuity Company (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Comp’s Form 1+-Q filed May 7, 2013)

Amendment No. 1, dated as of July 23, 2014, td\ibi Purchase and Guarantee Agreement, datedfgmibl7,
2013, by and among Dairyland USA Corporation, Thef€ Warehouse Mid-Atlantic, LLC, Bel Canto Food&C,
The Chefs’ Warehouse West Coast, LLC, and The Cliédsehouse of Florida, LLC, as Issuers, The Chefs’
Warehouse, Inc., Chefs’ Warehouse Parent, LLC,Othefs’ Warehouse Midwest, LLC, Michael's Finer Meat
Holdings, LLC, and Michael’s Finer Meats, LLC, ag tinitial Guarantors, The Prudential Insurance Gamy of
America, Pruco Life Insurance Company, Prudentid@@na Reinsurance Captive Company, and Prudential
Retirement Insurance and Annuity Company (incoratdy reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Companyeai8-K
filed on July 28, 2014

Amendment No. 2, dated as of November 4, 2014dd\Jote Purchase and Guarantee Agreement, datédhasil
17, 2013, by and among Dairyland USA Corporatidme Thefs’ Warehouse Mid-Atlantic, LLC, Bel Cantooés,
LLC, The Chefs’ Warehouse West Coast, LLC, and Chefs’ Warehouse of Florida, LLC, as Issuers, Thef€
Warehouse, Inc., Chefs’ Warehouse Parent, LLC,Otefs’ Warehouse Midwest, LLC, Michael’'s Finer Meat
Holdings, LLC, and Michael’s Finer Meats, LLC, ag tinitial Guarantors, The Prudential Insurance Gamy of
America, Pruco Life Insurance Company, Prudentid@na Reinsurance Captive Company, and Prudential
Retirement Insurance and Annuity Company (incorjgaldy reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Companyef10-Q
filed November 5, 2014

Amendment No. 3, dated as of December 3, 2014headNbte Purchase and Guarantee Agreement, datédhasil
17, 2013, by and among Dairyland USA Corporatidme Thefs’ Warehouse Mid-Atlantic, LLC, Bel Cantooés,
LLC, The Chefs’ Warehouse West Coast, LLC, and Chefs’ Warehouse of Florida, LLC, as Issuers, Thef€
Warehouse, Inc., Chefs’ Warehouse Parent, LLC,Othefs’ Warehouse Midwest, LLC, Michael's Finer Meat
Holdings, LLC, and Michael's Finer Meats, LLC, &g tinitial Guarantors, The Prudential Insurance gamy of
America, Pruco Life Insurance Company, Prudentid@na Reinsurance Captive Company, and Prudential
Retirement Insurance and Annuity Company (incoratdy reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Companyai8-K
filed on December 9, 2014

Amendment No. 4, dated as of January 9, 2015 gdtite Purchase and Guarantee Agreement, datddhasilal7,
2013, by and among Dairyland USA Corporation, Thef€ Warehouse Mid-Atlantic, LLC, Bel Canto Fool&C,
The Chefs’ Warehouse West Coast, LLC, and The Cl¢dsehouse of Florida, LLC, as Issuers, The Chefs’
Warehouse, Inc., Chefs’ Warehouse Parent, LLC,Otefs’ Warehouse Midwest, LLC, Michael’'s Finer Meat
Holdings, LLC, and Michael’s Finer Meats, LLC, ag tinitial Guarantors, The Prudential Insurance Gamy of
America, Pruco Life Insurance Company, Prudentid@@na Reinsurance Captive Company, and Prudential
Retirement Insurance and Annuity Company (incoratdy reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Companyai8-K
filed on January 15, 201t

Form of Note (incorporated by reference to Exhiiit4 to the Company’s Form 10-Q filed May 7, 2013).
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10.37 Building Loan Agreement, dated as of April 26, 20fki@tween Commercial Lending Il LLC, as Lender, and
Dairyland HP LLC, as Borrower (incorporated by refece to Exhibit 10.5 to the Company’s Form 8-Kilad on
May 1, 2012).

10.38+  Loan Agreement, dated as of April 26, 2012, amoagyland HP LLC, as Borrower, The Chefs’ Warehouse,,
Chefs’ Warehouse Parent, LLC, Dairyland USA Corgiora The Chefs’ Warehouse Mid-Atlantic, LLC, Behfto
Foods, LLC, The Chefs’ Warehouse West Coast, LIn@, Bhe Chefs’ Warehouse of Florida, LLC, as Guanant
and Commercial Lending Il LLC, as Lender (incorpedaby reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Companygmi8-K
filed on April 30, 2012)

10.39* Form of Indemnification Agreement by and betweeer Thefs’ Warehouse, Inc. and its directors and gkex
officers (incorporated by reference to Exhibit #0t8 the Compar’s Form -1/A filed on July 14, 2011)

14.1 The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc. Code of Business CorahuattEthics (incorporated by reference to ExhiBitLlto the
Compan’s Form 1i-Q filed on August 6, 2013)

21% Subsidiaries of the Company

23.1t Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing .

31.1¢t Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant$ection 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
31.2% Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant $ection 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
32.17 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant$ection 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
32.2t Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant $ection 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

101.INST XBRL Instance Document

101.SCH" XBRL Schema Document

101.CAL1 XBRL Calculation Linkbase Document
101.DEF{ XBRL Definition Linkbase Document
101.LABt XBRL Label Linkbase Document
101.PRE" XBRL Presentation Linkbase Document

* Management Contract or Compensatory Plan or Arrziegdt
Filed herewitr
Certain confidential portions of this exhibit wemmitted by means of redacting a portion of the.t€kis exhibit has been
+ filed separately with the Securities and Exchangmf@ission accompanied by a confidential treatmeguest pursuant
Rule 24l-2 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amabr
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THE CHEFS’ WAREHOUSE, INC. 10-K

Exhibit 21
The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc.

Subsidiaries of the Registrant

Entity Name State of Organization
Dairyland USA Corporatio New York
Dairyland HP LLC (1) Delaware
Bel Canto Foods, LLC (1 New York
Chef¢ Warehouse Parent, LL Delaware
The Chef’ Warehouse Mi-Atlantic, LLC (2) Delaware
The Chef’ Warehouse West Coast, LLC | Delaware
The Chef’ Warehouse of Florida, LLC (. Delaware
The Chef’ Warehouse Midwest, LLC (: Delaware
Michae’s Finer Meats Holdings, LLC (: Delaware
Michae’s Finer Meats, LLC (3 Delaware
The Chef’ Warehouse Pastry Division, Inc. | Delaware
The Chef’ Warehouse Pastry Division Canada ULC British Columbia, Canad
QZ Acquisition (USA), Inc. (2 Delaware
Qzina Specialty Foods North America (USA), Inc. Delaware
Qzina Specialty Foods, Inc. ( Florida
Qzina Specialty Foods, Inc. ( Washingtor
Qzina Specialty Foods (Ambassador), Inc. California
CW LV Real Estate LLC (7 Delaware
Allen Brothers 1893, LLC (8 Delaware
Del Monte Capitol Meat Company Holdings, LLC Delaware
Del Monte Capitol Meat Company, LLC ( Delaware
Del Monte Merger Sub, LLC (1( Delaware
(1) Dairyland HP LLC and Bel Canto Foods, LLC areolly-owned by Dairyland USA Corporation, whichwéolly-owned by The

)

®3)

(4)

®)

(6)

()

(8)

9)

Chef¢ Warehouse, Inc

The Chefs’ Warehouse Mid-Atlantic, LLC, The @iaVarehouse West Coast, LLC,The Chefs’ Warehadigdorida, LLC, The
Chefs’ Warehouse Midwest, LLC, Michael's Finer Melloldings, LLC, The Chefs’ Warehouse Pastry Dorsiinc., QZ
Acquisition (USA), Inc. and Del Monte Capitol Meabmpany Holdings, LLC are wholly-owned by Chefs’ Mlaouse Parent, LLC,
which is wholly-owned by The Che’ Warehouse, Inc

Michael’s Finer Meats, LLC is wholly-owned byidhael's Finer Meats Holdings, LLC, which is whellyned by ChefsWarehous
Parent, LLC, which is whol-owned by The Che’ Warehouse, Inc

The Chefs’ Warehouse Pastry Division Canada i @holly-owned by The Chefs’ Warehouse Pastryigdn, Inc., which is
wholly-owned by Che’ Warehouse Parent, LLC, which is wh-owned by The Che’ Warehouse, Inc

Qzina Specialty Foods North America (USA), liscwholly-owned by QZ Acquisition (USA), Inc., wdii is wholly-owned by Chefs
Warehouse Parent, LLC, which is wh«owned by The Che’ Warehouse, In¢

Qzina Specialty Foods, Inc. (a Florida corpiorgt Qzina Specialty Foods, Inc. (a Washingtorpooation) and Qzina Specialty
Foods (Ambassador), Inc. are wholly-owned by Q&8pacialty Foods North America (USA), Inc., whichwibolly-owned by QZ
Acquisition (USA), Inc., which is wholly-owned byh&fs’ Warehouse Parent, LLC, which is wholly-owrgdThe Chefs’
Warehouse, Inc

CW LV Real Estate LLC is wholly-owned by The&@$i Warehouse West Coast, LLC, which is wholly-e@drby Chefs’ Warehouse
Parent, LLC, which is whol-owned by The Che’ Warehouse, Inc

Allen Brothers 1893, LLC is wholly-owned by Tefs’ Warehouse Midwest, LLC, which is wholly-oshby Chefs’ Warehouse
Parent, LLC, which is whol-owned by The Che’ Warehouse, Inc

Del Monte Capitol Meat Company, LLC is whollyvned by Del Monte Meat Company Holdings, LLC, whistwholly-owned by
Chef¢ Warehouse Parent, LLC, which is wh-owned by The Che’ Warehouse, Inc

(10) Del Monte Merger Sub, LLC is who-owned by The Che’ Warehouse, Inc




THE CHEFS’ WAREHOUSE, INC. 10-K
Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriinm

The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc.
Ridgefield, CT

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémt¢kee Registration Statement on Form S-8 (No-BB83974), the Registration Statemen
Form S-3 (No. 333-187348) and the Registratione®tant on Form S-4 (No. 333-187349) of The Chéfarehouse, Inc. of our reports d¢
March 11, 2015, relating to the consolidated finanstatements and the effectiveness of The Ch&fehouse, Incs’ internal control o
financial reporting, which appear in the Annual Bepn Form 10-K of The Chef&Warehouse, Inc. for the fiscal year ended Decerfiby
2014.

/s/ BDO USA, LLP

Stamford, CT
March 11, 2015




THE CHEFS’ WAREHOUSE, INC. 10-K
Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATIONS

I, Christopher Pappas, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of The Chef’ Warehouse, Inc

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report doésantain any untrue statement of a material dactimit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this ref

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememid,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this rep

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%(nd internal control over financial reportirgg @defined in Exchange Act Rule
13e15(f) and Rule 1&5-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedorecaused such disclosure controls and procedotee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isifge prepared

(b) Designed such internal control over financégarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atauce with generally accepted accounting princijy

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presenttisi report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cousyeldis report based on
such evaluation; an

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thesegnt's internal control over financial reportitigait occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth quarter in the case of an annual i¢ploat has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registra’s internal control over financial reporting; &

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer antdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimrernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of registrant’s board of directors ersons performing the equivalent
function):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakgses in the design or operation of internal cboirer financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrdgistrant’s ability to record, process, summaaizd report financial
information; anc

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a sagmiifiole in the
registran’s internal control over financial reportir

Dated: March 11, 2015 /s Christopher Pappi
By: Christopher Papp:
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Off
(Principal Executive Officer




THE CHEFS’ WAREHOUSE, INC. 10-K
Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATIONS

[, John D. Austin, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of The Chef’ Warehouse, Inc

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report doésantain any untrue statement of a material dactimit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this ref

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd,other financial information included in théport fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this rep

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%(nd internal control over financial reportirgg @defined in Exchange Act Rule
13e15(f) and Rule 1&5-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedorecaused such disclosure controls and procedotee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isifge prepared

(b) Designed such internal control over financégarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atauce with generally accepted accounting princijy

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presenttisi report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cousyeldis report based on
such evaluation; an

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thesegnt's internal control over financial reportitigait occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth quarter in the case of an annual i¢ploat has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registra’s internal control over financial reporting; &

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer antdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimrernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of registrant’s board of directors ersons performing the equivalent
function):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakgses in the design or operation of internal cboirer financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrdgistrant’s ability to record, process, summaaizd report financial
information; anc

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a sagmiifiole in the
registran’s internal control over financial reportir

Dated: March 11, 2015 /s/ John D. Austit
By: John D. Austir
Chief Financial Office
(Principal Financial Officer and Principal AccourgiOfficer)




THE CHEFS’ WAREHOUSE, INC. 10-K
Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the annual report of The Ch#¥grehouse, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K far trear ended December 26, 2014 as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissioithe date hereof (the “Report”), |, Christophep®as, President and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 ICS§ 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of thieaBas-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefiction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh1934; anc

(2) The information contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the finan@aldition and results of operations of the
Company.

Date: March 11, 2015 By: /s/ Christopher Pappi
Christopher Papp:
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Off
(Principal Executive Officer

A signed original of this written statement hasrbpeovided to the Company and will be retainedi®sy€ompany and furnished to the SEC or
its staff upon request.




THE CHEFS’ WAREHOUSE, INC. 10-K
Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the annual report of The Ch#t&rehouse, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form KGer the year ended December 26, 201
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiontlee date hereof (the “Report™), John D. Austin, Chief Financial Officer of
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 135Gdpted pursuant to 8 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley#2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefiction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh1934; anc

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly gets, in all material respects, the financial ctodiand results of operations of
Company.

Date: March 11, 2015 By: /s/ John D. Austit
John D. Austir
Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Offic
and Principal Accounting Office

A signed original of this written statement hasrbpeovided to the Company and will be retainedi®sy€ompany and furnished to the SEC or
its staff upon request.




